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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the REIT”), and its subsidiaries (the REIT and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the “Group”), (“the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements”) which
comprise of the following:

»  the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2025;

» the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income) for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2025;

+ the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2025;

+  the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unithoiders’ Equity for the
half year ended 30 September 2025;

<  the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at 30
September 2025;

* the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value for the half
year ended 30 September 2025;

= the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable Cash Fiows of the Mindspace Business Parks
REIT and each of its special purpose vehicles (subsidiaries) for the quarter and half year
ended 30 September 2025; and

* select explanatory notes.

These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are being submitted by the Manager pursuant
to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 as amended (the “REIT Regulations”), and pursuant to requirement of Regulations
52 and 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (“Listing Regulations”).

2. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the Manager and
approved by the Manager’s Board of Directors, have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the REIT Regulations, Listing Regulations, the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (*Ind AS 34",
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express a
conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements based on our review,
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Scope of Review

3. We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with
the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of Manager’s personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. We have also performed
procedures in accordance with Regulation 13(5) of the REIT Regulations, as amended, to the extent
applicable.

4. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial information of the following
entities:

Sr. No. Name of the entities

| A Parent entity
1 Mindspace Business Parks REIT

L B Subsidiaries

‘ 1 | Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
2 Horizonview Properties Private Limited
3 KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
4 Gigaplex Estate Private Limited -
5 Sundew Properties Limited
6 Intime Properties Limited
7 K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
8 Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
9 Sustain Properties Private Limited
10 Mack Soft Tech Private Limited (w.e f. 23 July 2025)

Conclusion

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement, has not been
prepared in accordance with the REIT Regulations which prevails over certain Ind AS requirements,
as explained in the Emphasis of Matter paragraphs 5 and 6 below, Listing Regulations, the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, or has not disclosed the information
required to be disclosed in terms of REIT Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.
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Emphasis of Matter

6. We draw attention to Note 20A(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. We draw attention to Note 40(6) to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements regarding
freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited (Special Purpose Vehicle) which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome
of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2025. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

@

Kedar Raie
Partner
Membership No. 102637
Mumbai, November 05, 2025 UDIN: 2610263 TRMKSRPLLLE

Page 3 of 3



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
[nvestinent property
Investment property under construction
Other intangible assets
Financial assets

- Investments

- Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-currenl tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
- Trade receivables
- Loans to employees
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other bank balances
- Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Asset held for sale
Total assels before regulatory deferral account
Regulatory deferral account - assets
Total assets

Note

RN NNV AN

10
11
12
13

16A

16B
17
18

50

As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
1,120.25 1,158.53 1,204 83
837.66 648 33 419 94
2,44,446.09 2,39,853.79 2,05,096 28
9,902.44 6,726 74 16,715 78
1.94 118 130
43.26 38 88 3888
6,832.47 6,504 86 3,284 00
642.65 722 65 22220
556.69 51999 840,27
1,098.75 1,506 55 1.53423
T 2,65,482.20 257,681 50 2,29357 71
55.96 5027 58.62
533.27 586 69 647 30
0.07 016 -
6,285.82 6,379 31 4.967 03
1,333.76 1,031.73 758 88
5,229.84 3,68279 501632
1,446.83 707 35 742 58
14,885.55 12,438.30 12,190.73
997.03 1,444 48 1.477 70
2,81,364.78 2.71.564 28 2.43.026.14
131.05 3900 2767
2,81,495.83 2,71,603.28 2,43,053 81




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Corpus

Unil capital

Distribution — Repayment of Capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT

Non-controlling interest
Total equity
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings

- Lease liabilities

- Other financial l1abilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current habilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Lease hiabilities
- Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current habilities
s (net)
Total current liabilities

Current tax liabi

Total liabilities
Regulatory deferral account - habilities
Total equity and liabilities

Material accounting policies

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number 117366W/W-100018

0

Kedar Raje
Partner

Membership number 102637

Place: Mumbai
Date : 05 November 2025

Note

19
20A
20B

21

46

23
24
25
26

29
30
31
32

1-55

As at
30 September 2025

31 March 2025

As at
30 September 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

0.01 001 001
1,68,964.03 1,68,964 03 1,62,838 82
(6,767.63) (3.142 99) (984 41)
(26,372.59) (25,276 62) (23,443 82)
1,35,823.82 1,40,544 43 1,38,410 60
7,499.82 7,561.06 7,641 73
1,43,323.64 1,48,105 49 1,46,052 33
81,723.51 86,105 26 62.065 10
122.56 116 08 121 94
5,515.50 4,097 19 3,67237
71.99 66 81 7577
5,614.95 5,360 58 4,501.64
894.80 585 90 58191
93,945.31 96,331.82 71,018.73
30,722.41 14,992 56 15.606 94
21.55 3909 12.52
102.7% 272.05 96.66
1,095.07 1,040 71 1.174 55
10,305.31 9,272 60 7,804.06
9.71 1222 709
1,685.81 1316 77 1,145 79
224.57 74 68 10699
44,167.22 27,020 68 25,954 60
1,38,112.53 1,23,352.50 96,973 33
59.66 145 29 28 15
2,81,495.83 2,71,603 28 2,43,053.81

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

A

i
Ramesh Nuair

Chief Executive Officer
and Managing Director

DIN: 09282712

Place Mumbai

Date : 05 November 2025 Date : 05 November 2025

M.UW

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Finance costs

Interest income

Bad debts written off

Provision tor doubttul debts (net)

Assets written ot/ demolished

Fair value gain on investment measured at fair value through profit and loss
Provision for unbilled revenue

Other non-cash expense

Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)

Liabilities no longer required written back

Loss on settlement of financial liability

Exceptional items (refer note 50)

Provision for Loss making project reversed

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Movement in working capital

(Increase) in inventories

Decrease n trade recervables

(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets and other assets
Increase in other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions
Increase in regulatory deferral account (assets / liabilities)

Tncrease / (decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid net of refund recerved

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B Cash flows (rom investing activities

Expenditure incurred on investment property, investment property

under construction, property, plants and equipment and capital work-in
progress cludimg capital advances, net of capital creditors and asser
acquisition (refer note 3)

Consideration paid on account of acquisition of Mack Soft (refer note 42A)
Proceeds trom sale of investment property & property plant and equipments
Investment tin government bond

Investment in mutual fund

Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund

Movement in fixed deposits/other bank balances**

Interest received

Net cash (used in) investing activities ( B )

For the halfl year ended
30 September 2025
(Unaudited)

For the half year ended
30 September 2024
(Unaudited)

4,920.69 476601
2,32823 195270
4,064.81 2,568 03
(250.76) (213 72)
: 027
1338 225
26.70 16424
(28.65) (2719)
44.90 -
2024 -
024 013
(24.62) (256)
10.28 -
447.56 -
(2.54) -
11,570.46 921016
(5.69) (1542)
97.03 44275
(318.36) 640 55
1,845.74 168 58
(177.68) 22833
(137.32) 18400
o 12,874.18 10,858 95
(1,418.09) (1,17207)
11,456.09 9,686 88
(5,496.95) (6,793 67)
(5,185.68) -
= 175
(438) (548)
(19,660.26) (16,079 04)
19,689.93 16,106 23
(751.75) 6844
125.13 37692
(11,283.96) (6,324 84)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

C  Cash llows from financing activities

Proceeds from external borrowings

Repayment of external borrowings including non-conveitible debentures and bonds

Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures and bonds
Proceeds from issue of commercial paper

Non-convertible debentures issue expenses

Redemption of commercial paper

Payment towards lease liabilities

Distribution to unitholders and dividend to non-controlling interest holder (includin,

tax)

Expenditure towards units issued for Acquisition of Sustain (note 42B)
Finance costs paid

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Adjustments for net gains on fair value of mutual funds measured at fair value through

profit and loss (FVTPL)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Add/Less : (Net cash)/Bank overdraft acquired on asset acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cash and cash equivalents comprises (refer note no. 16A & 27)
Cash on hand

Balance with banks

- tn current accounts

- In escrow accounts

- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than three months
- investment in overnight mutual funds

Less : Bank overdrafl

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Material accounting policies - refer note 3

For the half year ended For the half year ended
30 September 2025 30 September 2024
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
17,127.11 9,165 64
(30,316.00) (18,924 25)
17,500.00 11,500.00
24,313.64 5,708.00
(11.98) (15.76)
(17,694.80) (1,446 12)
(18.44) -
(7,716.06) (5,958 00)
(137 .
(3,850.96) (3,633.00)
(668.86) (3,603 49)
(496 73) (241 45)
(103) -
1,677.30 1,886 00
10.24 .
1,189 78 1,644 55
2.78 311
6,270.81 4,266 85
11.66 7.53
0.57 -
- 689 97
(5.096.04) 13,322 91}
1,189.78 1,644 55

** Includes Income tax refund amounting to Rs Nil million (30 September 2024 - Rs 69.04 mullion) recerved in CSR escrow account

Note | The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Tndirect Method' as set out 1n the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows"
Note 2 During the half year ended 30 September 2025, Rs. 1,198 45 million (30 September 2024 Rs. 343 85 miillion) has been transferred from Investment property under

construction to Finance lease receivable pursuant to lease commencement of fit outs

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

Y,

~

Kedar Raje
Partner

Membership number: 102637

Place: Mumbai
Date : 05 November 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(acting as the Manaser to Mindapace Business Parks REIT)

Rumed h Nair
Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director

DIN: 09282712

Place: Mumbai
Date : 05 November 2025

—

/M‘ GhegET—

Preeti N, Chheda

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date : 05 November 2025



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit holders’ Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2024 0.01
Chanpges during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2025 001
Balance as on 1 April 2025 0.01
Chunges during the period -.
Closing bals as on 30 September 2025 0.01
Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2024 0.01
Changes during the period - -
Closing balance as on 30 September 2024 0.01

B. Unit Capital - Amount
Balance as on | April 2024 1,62,838 82
Chanpes during the year 6,12521
Balance as on 31 March 2025 1,68,964 03
Balance as on 1 April 2025 1,68,964.03
Changes during the period -
Closing bal as on 30 Sep ber 2025 1,68,964.03
Unit Capital Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2024 1,62.838 82
Changes during the period -
Closing balance as on 30 September 2024 1,62,838.82

C. Distribution - Repayment of Capital Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2024 =
Less: Distribution to Unil holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024* (984.41)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 September 2024* (1.043.71)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 December 2024* (1.114.87)
Balance as on 31 March 2025 (3,142.99)
Less: Distriburion to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2025* (2.119.96)
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2025% - (1.504 68)
Closing balance as at 30 September 2025 - - (6,767.63)
* The distributions made by the Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) under the REIT Repulations and represents repayment of
debt by SPV to REIT
Distribution - Rega;’ment of Cagital Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2024 =
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024*% (984.41)
Balance as at 30 September 2024 (984.41)

In accordance with amendment in REIT Regulations vide SEBI Master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2025/99 dated 11 July 2025, the Entity has presented
the distribution by REIT to its unitholders, which is in the nature of repayment of capital, as a negative amount on the face of the Balance Sheet as a separate line item
‘Distribution — Repayment of Capital’ under the sub-heading ‘Equity’ under the heading ‘Equity and Liabilities’ for half year ended 30 September 2025. Accordingly,
distribution for the year ended 31 Maich 2025 and half year ended 30 September 2024 have been regrouped in line with the said requirements

D. Other Equity

Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2024 (21,549.70)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 4,759 64

Add: Other comprehensive expense attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT G149
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024* (2,828.70)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024* (2,004.40)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2024* (2,010.33)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2024* (2,039.98)
Add: Transfer from debenture redemption reserve** 400 00

Balance as on 31 March 2025 (25,276.62)
Balance as on 1 April 2025 (25,276.62)
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 2,732.07

Add: Other comprehensive expense attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT (2.36)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2025* (1,803.18)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2025* (2,022 49)

Balance as on 30 September 2025 (26,372.59)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond dC lidated Fi ial Statements

C lidated Sta t of Ch, in Unit holders’ Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Retained Farnings Amount
Balance as at [ April 2024 - (21.549.70)
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 2,53898

Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 Maich 2024* (2,828.70)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024* (2,004 40)
Add: Tiansfer from debenture redemption reserve** 400 00

Balance as on 30 September 2024 (23,443.82)

*The distributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unit holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT Regulations

and represents distributions other than repayment of debt by SPV to REIT

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2024 40000
Transfer to retained earnings (400.00)
Transfer from 1etained earnings -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 -
Balance as at 1 April 2025 %
Transfer to retained earnings = .
Balance as at 30 September 2025 -
Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2024 40000
Transfer to retained earnings

Transfer fiom retained eamings

(400 00)

Bal s at 30 Sef ber 2024

#*Refer Note 21
Material accounting policies - refer note 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
As pet our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s repistration number: 117366W/W-100018

/ .

<

{7 e
~
o
Kedar Raje Ruamitsh Nair
Partner Chief Executive Officer

and Managing Director

Membeiship number: 102637 DIN: 09282712

Place: Mumbat Place: Mumbai

Date : 05 November 2025

Date : 05 November 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

[ OO 1 clotosz—

Precti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 05 November 2025



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/103
Cond dC

lid: Finuncial

Disclosurc pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/ICIR/2{125/99

(Al zinounis in Ry, million unless atherwise stated)

Statement of Net Assets a1 Fair Value pursuant (o guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.4.7 1o SEB1 Mas(er Circular na, SEBITIO/DDHS-PuD-2/P/CIR/2025/Y dated 11 July 2025

Statoinent of Not Ascets af Fair Valoe

Sr. No. | Partivulars

As at 30 Septe
(Unaudi

Anat 31 Mureh 2035
(Auditud)

‘Ax a1 30 September 2024

ki Value®

Eair Yalue

Bowk Vilue! Fair Vatus

Lotal Asscls
Volal Liabihties**

Nun-l.nnlmlhng Interest

Net Assels attnbutable W umthalders (C-13)
No af Unis

NAY e umt A

* e vl leetel b tlve Crimibermeend Falmee $lied

*# Heser note £ gl

Mensuresent o fuir values
The Faur val
valuer”), having appropriately recog

2,81,495 83
138172 19
14332364 |
7,499 82
135823 82
60 91 83 634

22206 ]

and recent

capital balances wiich are not factored lhr: dusmunlcd cashflow method used n detenmining the furr value of investment property. investmenl property under construction property. plant and equipment. capilal work-in-progress

mlangibles

Valuatinn technique

The fawr valee for alt of the T

4,46,486 27
1.35556 03
3,10.930 24
16,291 13
294639 1
60 91 B3 634
_AR366

praperty. Property. plant and equipment. [nvestnient proper(y under

271,603 28

1.13.49779 1.21 119 66

14K, 105 49 276,779 08
7,561 06 13794 89
140544 43 262984 19
6091 83 634 G091 ¥3 634
23071 43170

397898 |

(Unauditel)
Bl Vilue? | Fatiy Vil

243,053 81 | 3,39.940 02
97001 48 | 94 883 02

1 46052 33 24503700 |
764173 12260 76
13441060 2312796 24

5230 18 182 :\’)JUINIKZI

23340

392 56

and Capital warkein-progs

]

s of Tnw eshinenl praperty Pmpcvlv pl.ml and cquxpmr:ul Tnvestment property under construction and Capital work-m-pragress are solely based on an wdependent valuation performed by an extemal property Valuer ("independent
m the lacation and category of (e propertics bemng valued Other assels melude cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and ather working

d

ss wcluding Pocharam which has been elassified as held for sale jexcludmg

Pacharam) has been eategonzed as a Tevel 3 fuir value based on the wputs (o the valuation techmque used The valuer has followed a Discounted Cash Flow methad exeept for valustion of Jand for future development where the valuer has
adopted Comnparable Sales Metlod (under Market Approach) The Discounted Cash Flow valuation madel considers the present value ol nel cash Dows (o be generaled (rom the respective prapertics. taking wie account the expeeted rental

growth rade vaaney penad occupancy rale and lease meentive costs The expeeled net cash thows are discounted usmg the s
cconduryy tenant eredit qualiy lease tams and investor retum expeclations (rom such praperiies
m Pacharam are wnaccupied Considering the absence ol leasing demand 1 the near tenm, and therefore ne expecled mcome stream and alse since the asset v held for sale, the Valuer has opled for the Cost Approach

st focation (prime vs
The existing building

Under this method  the bunlding and plant & machuery components have been valucd using Uie Depreeraled Replacement Cost Methad The same has been calegorised as a Tevel §

used
Natis:
| Project wise hrealiup of firvalue o noets us ot 30 Sepramber 1035,
Partivilar Falr walue of Investment | Oilier asacts uf baok Tutal avsets |
property, Praperty, plant value
and equipment, Investment
preperty under
construction und Capital
workein-progress
Intime 2931936 163588 30,955.24
KRIT 59,176 36 1,166 25 60,342.81
Sundew ®2,740 82 1,631 03 H4,37L47 |
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Al East 54,992 95
MBPPL - Mindspace Pucharam® « 1,008 31 545862 92,993.92
MBPPL - Commerzune Yerw: 2156778
MBPPL - The S 206 26
23,678 53 870 25 24,540.74
Gigaplex 60264 74 197769 62,242.43 |
Avacaidn |
Avacado - Mindspace Malad 13,285 38 4444 1848296
Avacadn - The Square, BKC S 14494
'KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Cemmnerzone, Kharadi 3H,61045 1,463 64 S0,635.47
KRC Infra - Camplus 10,561 74
Mack Suﬂ Tech Private Limited 3R7703 RIRG1 6,695.64
12,841 33 55302 13,394.35
F0.8%0 06 70,890.06
and other 169,467 66) (69,467.66)
4.29.040.42 17.445.85 4.46.486.27
Lesy: Non-controlling interest LRSI = [VEREO
Total attrihutable to uni 4,10,204.38
* It includes elimuation pnmdnl) perlaming to lending lo SPVs by Mindspace REIT and Idk

== Classiied as "Assel Held for Sule”

2 T'rjeit wike hreak-ap of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2025,

Partivulom Fair value of Investment | Other wssists at honl Tietul wnnets
property, Property, plant valuy
and equipment, Investnent
| pruperty under
construction and Capital
work-in-prog
Intime 25227 %2 1.664 63 2689245
KRIT 49.302 81 135878 50,661.59
Sundew 71,721 97 14183 73,140.50
MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airnli East 49.988 82
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam** 1,465 29 422040 85.446.76
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 20428 48
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 934377
Sustain 22,177 65 57589
Gigaplex 56.708 59 2,063 96
Avacado
Avacado - Mindspace Malad I%,G?U 76 43913 18,167.03
Avacade - The Square, BKC 3.038 14

adjusted discount rales Among ather factors. the discount rale estunation cansiders Ue quality of 4 building and

r value hased on the inputs from he vatuation technigue




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidaled Fi

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master civeular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CTR/2025/99

(All amounts in Ry, million unless atherwise stated)

Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value pursuant (o guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3,4.7 (o SEBI Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2025/9Y dated 11 July 2025

T Ieajeetviise hreakup of i vilue ol assets a5 an 31 Mareh 2025
Particubiry Fabr vahee bf Investmpnt | Other aasets at bk Tutil asmeis
property, Property, plant value
and ¢quipment, Investment
property under

workein-progress

KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzane, Kharadi 3651126 134529 11787
KRC Infra - Camplus 9,861 32
Harizonview 1211506 474 27
Mindspace REIT = 30,412 53
Leys: Elimination and other adj T (4865541
Total 3.82560.74 33600 3.97.898.74 |
Less: Non—conirolling interest 116 087 70 (305 20} (16520
Tl antribwrable v unitldurs i 36647295 4.1 pRAR] ]
T8 el el sy pe g o g 1o SEVs by RUTT s evmasnlibatead ol esterens
*# Classificd as "Asset Held for Sale™
] Project whie lrsab-up of Bile value ol awelh as ot S Sepdembor 024
[ Particulars Far viilue of Teduntment | Other ansets at hink Ttal anuste
’ property, Property, plant value
and equipment, Iny cstment

property under
[ construction and Capital
worlein-progress

Tntime T 20,354 43 1,637 41 20,991.84
KRIT 40585 84 1204 68 41,790.52
Sundes 65751 14 135951 67,1075
MBPPL |
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East K871 26 |
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharame* 1484 27 150425 #2,617.66
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada 19,389 16
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road 916272
Gigaplex 5354113 103260 5457373
Avacale
Avacado - Mindspuce Malad 1161902 10207 17.009.95
Avacado - The Square, BKC 1 988 86
KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone, Kharadi 32,27268 § el S
KRC Infra - Camplus 7788 00
Horizonview 11,698 55 28339 11,981.94
Mindspace REIT 3 5,753 42 52,753.42
Less: Elimis and other ailj; - f31.608 581 (51,60H.5K)
Total 32741316 12,526 H6 339.94002
Less: Nun—controlling interest (13936 07)] (184 60) (11422 67)
salile 1w ynitolders 31347709 | 12,041.26
i

chusbes dlimimmation piepanly et o teuling to 5 s by Muulsmace REIT

** Classified as "Asset Held for Sale”

1 Other assels at book value exciudes capitsl advances, unbilled revenue, finance lease recervable and regulatory assets (which (orm part of fair valuation of Investment property. Property plant and equipment. Inyesument property
under and Caputal work-in-prog

© Puower Deeimed Distribution Licence operations 1n Gigaplex, MBPPL and KRC Inira huve been valucd by the valuer seperately usig Discounted Cash Flow meliod

i Lbilties at book value for caleulation of NAV excludes lease hability, prosision tor revenue share, capital creditors (other than related to imual direct cosl), retention payables and regulatory liabikites (which [omm part ol fair

saluation of Investment property. Property, plant and equipment, Insestment property under and Capital work-in-progr

Material aceounting policies i

See e wing netes to the Condenced C lidated Financial 8 135

As per our report of cven date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of

for Delvitte Haskins & Sells LLP K Rahgja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

d Accountants
n number 117366W/W-100018 (acung

e Bdanaget 1o hindspace Hitaneas Parks REIT)

[ . .
/ L M ar ety
' -
Kedar Raje Hamidy Precti N. Chheda
Partrcy Chiel Executive Officar and  Chuefl Financial Officer
Managing Dircctor
Mamnbership number 102637 DIN 09282712
Munbar Place Mumibay Place Mumbai

5 November 2025 Date 03 November 2025 Dale 03 November 2023



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond | C lidated Financizl S

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PuD-2/P/CIR/2025/99
(All umounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value pursuant (o puidance under Chapter 3, Pavagraph 3.4.8 to SEBI Master Civoular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CTR/2025/99 dated 11 July 2025

Srutement of Total Returms at Fair Value
Sr. No. | Particulars

A |Total Comprehensive Income (As per the Statement of Profit and Loss)
B [Add/Less Other Change in Fair Value not recognised in Totat Comprehensive Income®
€ |Total Return (A+B)

= [For the half vear ended 30 For the IlulF,\‘cnr cnded 30
Scptember 2025 Septemher 2024
u lited) (Unaudited)
272971 253498
36373 64 10,404 31
39.103.35 12,943.29 |

* Refer note 2

Noles:
] Blcasurvment of Babr valiocs

The fair valucs of fmvestment property, Property, plant and cqulpman In\cslmcnl propcrl\ under construction and Capital work-in-progress arc solely bascd on an independent valuation performed by an external

in the localion and category of the propertics being valued

and rccent

property valuer (“independent valuer™). having appropriately ised p

Icase receivable. regulatory assets. Capital creditors {other than related (o initial direct cost). Retention pavables. Reg 33

Muterial accounting policics

d d C lidated Financial §

Sec the accompanving notes to the C

As per our report of even date atiached
lor Deloitte Haskins & Scils LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's, 7366W/W-100018

A by

Kedar Ruje R

Partner

vesh Nalr
Chicf Exceutive Officer and

2 In the aborc statement. changes in fair value not recognised for the half ycar ended 30 September 2025 and half year ended 30 September 2024 have been computed based on the changes in fair value for such
periods adjusted for changes in baok valuc of Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction, Capilal work-in-progress, Capital advances, Unbilled revenue, Finance

1 liabilites and Leasc liabilitics for the respective periods

1-55

for and on behalf of the Board of Dircclors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

{actng o the hataser to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

ﬁw'\ Jr s A hetiri

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Managing Director

Membership number: 102637

Place: Mumbai
Daie : 05 November 2025

Place Mumbai
Dalc : 05 November 2025

DIN: 09282712

Placc Mumbai
Date 05 November 2025
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless vtherwise stated)

1 Organisation Structure
The cond d consolidaled financial (*Cond dC lidated Financial Statements’) comprise financial of Mind: Busi Parks Real Estate Investment
Trust (‘Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust). us Subsidiaries/SPVs Mindsp B Parks Privale Limited ('MBPPL'), Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

('Gigaplex'). Sundew Properties Limited ('Sundew’). Intime Properties Limited {Tntime’), K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (KRIT). KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
('KRC Infra’), Horizonview Properties Private Limited (‘Horizonview'), Avacado Properties and Trading (Tndia) Private Limited (‘Avacado'), Sustain Properties Private Limited ('Sustain')
and Mack Soft Tech Private Limited (Mack Soft') (individually referred to as “Special Purpose Vehicle® or ‘SPV" or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as “Mindspace Business Parks
Group'/Mindspace Group') The SPVs are companies domiciled in India

Anbee Constructions LLP ('ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (*CTL"’) collectively known as (the *Sponsors’ o1 the ‘Co-Sponsors'} have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks REIT' as an
irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Tndian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and Exchange Board of Tndia ('SEBT') as
a Real Estate Invesiment Trust on 18 November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Invesiment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 having
registration number RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’} and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp
[nvestment Managers Private Limited (the ‘Investment Manager’)

hl

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate in trust, as per under the REIT Regulations, to raise funds through the
REIT, to make Tnvestments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Tnvestment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for operating the REIT, including
incidental and ancillary matters thereto

The units of the trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020
The brief activities and slmtchalding pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

Name of the SPV Activities Shareholding (in percentage) Shareholding (in percentage)
as at 30 September 2025 as at 31 March 2025
The SPV s ] in real Mindspace Busi Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|[REIT 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other|
commercial assets The SPV has its
projects in Airoli (Navi Mumbai), Pune|
and Pocharam (Hyderabad) The SPV
MBPPL is a deemed distribution i
pursuant to which 1t can distribute
power to the SEZ tenants within thel
Park Tt commenced distribution o
electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 9 April 2015

The SPV is engaged in real estatc|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other
commercial assets. The SPV has its
projects in Atroli (Navi Mumbai) The
SPV is a deemed distribution licensee

Gigaplex pursuant to which it can distribute
power to the SEZ tenants within the
Park Tt commenced distribution of]
electricity in ils project at Airoli, Navi
|Mumbai from 19 April 2016
The SPV is d in develop Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
and leasing/licensing of Information
Technology (IT) park, SEZ to different| Telangana State Industrial| Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited
Sundew customers in Hyderabad Infrastructure  Corporation  Limuted|(11%)
(11%)
The SPV is d in develop Mind: REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
and leasing/licensing of IT park to
. different customers in Hyderabad Telangana State Industrial{ Telangana State Tndustrial Tnfrastructure Corporation Limited
Intime Infrastructure  Corporation  Limited|(11%)
(11%)
The SPV is enpgaged in development|Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REFT 89295
and leasing/licensing of IT park 1a
different customers in Hyderabad Telangana State Tndustrial| Telangana Sute Indusioial Infrasructure Carporatian Limited
KRIT Infrastructure  Corporation  Limited|(11%}

(11%)
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The SPV 1s enpaged in real estatefMindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information!
Technology Parks The SPV has its
project in Kharadi Pune The SPV is a
|deemed distribution licensee pursuant
to which 1t can distribute power to the
KRC Infra SEZ tenants within the Park 1t
|commenced distribution of electricity
in its project at Kharadi, Pune from |
June 2019

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services

The SPV is engaged in development|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
and leasing/hcensing of TT park to|REIT 100% REIT : 100%

Horizonview different customers in Chennai

The SPV has developed an Industrial|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
park for the purpose of letting out tofREIT | 100% REIT 100%

different customers 1n Paradigm
building at Malad-Mumbai and is being
maintained and opcrated by the SPV
The SPV also has a commercial project
in Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai

Avacado

The SPV 1s engaged in development|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
and leasing/licensimg of 1T park to|REIT 100% REIT : 100%

Sustain (w e f. 6 March 2025) different customers in Hyderabad

The SPV s engaged n development|Horizonview Properties Privatel NA
Mack Soft (w e f. 23 July 2025) and leasing/licensing of IT park tojLimited : 100%
different customers in Hyderabad

2 Basis of preparation
The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial S (‘Cond d Consolidated Financial S '} of Mindspace B Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2025, the Cond d Consolidated S af Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income for the quarter and half year ended 30 September
2025, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the half year ended 30 September 2025, the Cond d Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the
half year ended 30 September 2025, the S of Net Assets at Fair value as at 30 September 2025, the Statement of Total returns at Fair value for the half year ended 30 September
2025, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter and half yeai ended 30 September 2025, the Statement of Net
Borrowings Ratio as at 30 September 2025 and a summary of the material accounting policies and select expl. y information and other additional financial disclosures

The Cond d C lidated Financial S have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Real Estate Tnvestment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBT Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2025/99
dated 11 July 2025, issued under the REIT Regulations (“the REIT regulations");, Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulauons 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounung Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT regulations (refer note 20A on presentation of
“Unit Capital™ as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under [nd AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation)

The Cond d C lidated Fi ial § were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Direclors of the Manager on 05 November 2025

Statement of compliance to Ind AS:

These Cond d Consolidated financial for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2025 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companles (Indian Accoun[mg Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT
regulations as more fully described above and Note 20A to the d lidated fi l ts The accounting policies adopted and hods of putation followed are
consistent with those of the previous financial year.

The financial statements of all the SPVs and the Trust used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it controls The Cond d C lidated Fi ial S comprise the fi ial of Mindspace Busi parks
REIT and its subsidiary/SPVs as disclosed in note 1 Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is expesed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which
significantly affect the entity’s returns Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases

The procedure for preparing Cond d Ci lidaled Fi ial S of Mindspace Busil Parks Group are stated below:
a) The financial of Mindspace Busi Parks Group are consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eli

1

d in full upon fon

b) Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in the
Subsidiary/SPVs (Intime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindsp Busi Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs The interest of non-controlling shareholders
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets The choice of measurement basis
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

c) The figures in the notes to and disclosures have been C: lidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are eliminated in full
on consolidation
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3.1

3.2

(a

(b

Material accounting policies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Cond d C fidated Fi | Statements are presented 1n Indian rupecs, which 1s Mindspace Business Parks Group’s functional currency and the currency of the primary
economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates All financial information presented 1n Indian rupees has been rounded off to nearest million except otherwise
stated

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) measured at fair values, refer note 3 15,
- Net hiability for defined benefit plans that are measuied at fair value

- Asset held for sale at fair value

(c) Use of judgements and estimafes

The preparation of the Cond d Cc lidated Fi ial S in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses Actual results could differ from those estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions to accounting estimales are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting poli
included in the following notes:

es that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the Cond; 1 C tidated Financial S is

Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument - note 20

Esumation of lease term for revenue recognition - note 3.7 and 3 14

Estimauon of useful hfe of property, plant and equipment and investment property - note 3 2 and 3 3

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes - note 3 10

[mpairment of T Property. In property under construction and Property, plant and equipment - note 3 4

Interest capitalised to investment propetty under construction - note 3.5 and note 36 in notes to accounts

Signiftcant judsements is involved in the allocation cost of acquisition to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition in case of asset
acquistion - note 42

d) Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on cuirent/ non-current classification
An assel is treated as current when it is

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- Tt 1s expected to be seuled in normal operating cycle,

- It1s held primarily tor the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no right at the end of the reporting period to deter the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Deferred tax assets and habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabihties

The operating cycle 1s the tme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents Mind B Parks Group has identified twelve
months as its aperating cycle

(e) Measurement of {air values

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT takes into account the
characteristics of the asset o1 liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities Mindspace
Business Parks Gioup has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Mindspace Group regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments If third party information is used to measure fair values then the Management assesses the
evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS. including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are calegonsed into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from prices)

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measuremnent

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of'a debt instrument

Financial puarantee contract are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis Mindspace REIT elects to account for financial
guarantee as [nsurance Contracts Subsequently. the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 1f any Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset if the recognition criteria are met The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties,
taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assels Acquisition or construction cost is defined as any consideration paid or fair value of
any other consideration given to acquire the asset. The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress

Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use al each balance sheet date are disclosed
under other non-current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively.

Subsequen( expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future ic benefits iated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks Group. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Condensed Consohdated Statement of Profit
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred
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{c) Depreciation
Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life The estimated useful lives of
the assets. which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of
property, plant and equipment made during the period 1s provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addiion / deletion

The assets and estimated useful life are as under

Asset group Estimated Useful Life (in years)
- Power distribution Others
Right to use - Leasehold land Bazlance Lease term =
Buildings* 75/90 =
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation*® 15 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure® - I
Office equipment* 4 4
Furniture and fixtures* - 7
Vehicles* - 5 L
* For Lhese class of assets, based on technical the m believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed under Part C of

Schedule IT of the Compames Act, 2013

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those respeclive assets at
SPV

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation accounted for on a
prospective basis

(4) Carrying value of Building contains certain components with different useful life of 10 to 30 Years

{d) De-recognition
An item of property. plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment is determimed as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognized in the Cond d C lidated S of Profitand Loss
33 Investment property
(a) Tnitial recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied substantially by
Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property

Investment properties are initially r ised at cosl, including related tra ion costs Subseq to initial recognition, in properties are measured in accordance with the
requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i e Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any The cost of Tnvestment properties includes acquisition costs or direct
development costs, import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes, borrowing costs directly attributable o the development and any directly altributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for 1ts intended use The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as Investment Properties under construction Advance paid for acquisition
or development of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non-current assets as capital advance

Plant and machmery, furniture and fixwres, office equipment and elcctrical equipment's which are physically attached to the commercial buildmgs are considered as part of investment

property

{b) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditurc is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it 1s probable that futurc e benefits d with the expenditurc will flow to Mindspace Business
Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and mai costs are exp d when incurred

(c) Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life The estimated useful lives of
the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of
investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion

Assel group Estimated Useful Life
fin years)

Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term
Buildings* 75/90
Infrastructure and development* 15
Roadwork* 15
Broadwalk, vantage café etc * 50
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment* 4
Furniture and fixtures* 7
Electrical installation*® 15

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those piescribed under Pait C of
Schedule 0 of the Companies Act, 2013

{1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those respective assets at

SPV.
(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the period/year of acquisition
(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any ch in the estimati d forona

prospective basis

(4) Useful life of building is restricted to the lease terin of leasehold land on which the building is constructed

(d) Fair Value
Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued The fair value of in property is disclosed in the S of Net assets at Fair Value

(¢

De-recognition
An investment property Is derecognized upan disposal or when the investment property 1s permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised

In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of Investment properties, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing
) ideration, and ideration payable to the buyer (if any)

camponeni,
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3.4

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

(a)

(b)

(c)

<

(a

(b)

{c

(d)

(e

<

Inpairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired 1f any such indication exists, Mindspace Business
Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs) is
estimated as the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use Value in use 1s the present value of estimated future cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset) expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from 1ts disposal at the end
of its useful life In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows ftom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets o CGU
An impairment loss is iecogmised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment loss 1s recognised
in the Cond dC lidated S of Profit and Loss

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in piior
years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised i diately in the Cond | C lidated S of Profit and Loss

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are altributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such assets Boriowing
cosls consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. A qualifying asset is an assct that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised 1s the weighted average interest tate applicable to the general borrowings

Interest expense 1s recognised using the effective interest method The 'effective interest rate’ is the rate that exaclly discounts eslimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability Tn calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate 1s applied to the amortised cost of the liability

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted Capitalisation of borrowing cosls 1s ceased when substantially all the
aclivities necessary to prépare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost

Tnventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and components Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work 1n progress Mindspace Business Parks
Group measures its inventaries at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventories
The cost of inventories of building material and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition Cost 1s determined on moving weighted average basis

Net realisable value
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of pletion and esti d costs ry to make the sale

Revenue recognition

Facility rentals

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recogiused on a straight line basis over non-cancellable petiod , except where there is an uncerlainty of ulumate collection,
ogether with any further 1erm for which the tenant has the option 1o conunue the iease, where, at the incepuon of the jease, lhe Company 1s reasonably certain that tiie tenant wili exercise
that option

Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the peried in which they are earned

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue fiom contracts with customers is recognised as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers™ when a performance obligation is salisfied by transfer of promised goods
or services 1o a customer in accordance with the agreement with the customer For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets salisfied over time. and therefore, the
revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement wilh the customer. The progress is
measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation The revenue is recognised to the extent of transaction
price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Mail income is recognised over a period of tinie for services reudered W the custoniers

Revenue from power distribution

Revenue from power distribution is accounted for on the basis of billings 1o and includes unbilled ¢ accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace Business
Parks Group determines surplus/deficit 1 e excess/ shortfall of aggrepate gain over return on equity entitiement for the period in respect of 1ts operations based on the principles laid down
under the respective Tarff Regulations as noufied by Maharashtra Electrictty Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order issued by it In respect of such
surplus/deficit, appropriate ad) as stipulated under the regul are made during the period Further, any adjustments that may anse on annual performance review by the MERC
under the tariff regulations 1s made after the completion of such review

Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received are accounted for as
repayment of principal and finance income Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the reduction of the outstanding
receivable The finance income allocated to each petiod during the lease tenm so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining net investment in the finance lease
Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap
Revenue from sale of surplus construction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of the expected removal cost

Rental Support

Rental supports that are an integral part of an acquisition transaction is treated as a in the cost of such in properties. Where, the right to receive the rental
support is spread over a period of time, the right to receive the rental support is reduced from the acquisition cost and is recognised as a fi ial asset at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost based on effective interest rate method

ded

Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(i) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established

(i1) Interest income is recognised on Lime proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

(iii} Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection
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3.10

311

3.12

313

{a

(b

(c)

Tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit It is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated § of Profit and Loss except (o the extent that it relates
to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised 1 equity and other comprehensive income
respectively

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period/year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
periods/years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recerved afler considering the uncertainty, 1f any, related to income taxes Itis
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis o1 simultaneously

Deferred tax

Defeired tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Cond d C lidated Fi ial Statements and the
corresponding tax bases used 1n the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax assets and habiliues are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws thal have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would fallow from the manner 1n which Mindspace Business Parks Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of 11s assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assels and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction; and

- Temporary differences related to m subsidiaries. , and joint arr to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax labilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it 1s probable that 1axable profits will be available agamst which those deducuble temporary differences can be utilized Such deferred tax assets and habihities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities m a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounling profit

The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Mindspace Business Parks Group

recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realised

The carrying amount of deferred Lax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assel to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but Lthey intend to settle curient tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or thei tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (801A benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or labilities, if any, have been blished for the tax c q of
those temporary differences between the carrying values of asscts and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends
In the situalions whete one o1 more units of the Group aie eulitled (o ¢ Lx hohday unde the tax faw, oo defened tax (asset o liability) is 1ecognized wiespecl of ienpuiary differences

which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned urit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period Deferred tax in respect of
temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred
tax assets to the extent 1t is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recogmition of deferred taxes, the
temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income lax will be paid during the specified period In the year in
which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an assel, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Cond d C: lidated S of Profit and Loss and shown as
MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not
reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period

Earnings per unit (EPU):

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units outstandiny during the
reporting period The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and
also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when Mind e Busi Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace Business Parks
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best eslimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability The inding of the di is T ised as finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources When there is a possible
obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it, are recognised when 1t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based
on a relrable estimate of such obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate at the date of the transactions first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are translated at the functional currency spot rate at the reporting date Non-monetary foreign currency items that are
measured in terms of historical cost

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are r ised in Cond d C lidated S of Profit or Loss
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Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agieements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties

Leases for which Mindspace Busimess Paiks Gioup 1s a lesso is classified as finance or operating leases Whenever the teims of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewaids of
ownership to the lessee, the contract 1s classified as a finance lease All other leases are classified as operating leases

When Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the hcad leasc and the sublease as rwo separate contracts The sublease is classified as a finance or
operaling lease by reference to the right-of-use asset ansing from the head lease

Rental income fiom operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue in other financial assets

The lease term 1s the non-cancellable period Logether with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where. at the inception of the lease, the Mindspace
Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option

Tnitral direct costs such as brokerage expenses mcurred specifically to earn revenues from an operaung lease are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as recervables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases Finance lease income is
allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases

As a Lessee

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses whether a contract 1s or contains a lease, at inception of a contract A contract 1s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the nght to control
the use of an 1denufied assel for a period of me 1 exchange for consideration Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, excepl for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, For these
leases, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the date. di d by using the rate implicit in the lease If this rate
cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses 1ts incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

« fixed lease payments (including m-substance fixed payments), less any lcase incentives;

» variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, imitially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date,

= the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value puarantees;

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the leasc term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability 1s presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet The lease liability is subsequently measuied by mcreasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount 1o reflect the lease payments made

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

« the lease lerm has changed or theie is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, 111 which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 1evised lease payments
using a revised discount rate

« the lease payments change due 1o changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability s measured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease paymenls change is due to a change 1n a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate 15
used)

- a lease contract 1s modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease hability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
revised descount rate

The nght-of-use assets comprise the miual measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and 1emove a leased asset, restore the sie on whici it is located o1 testore the underiying asset 1o
the condition 1equired by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ The
costs are icluded in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are mcurred to produce 1nventories

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter period of lease term and usefut life of the underlying asset

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any dentified impairment loss as
described in Note 3.5

Variabte rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset The related payments are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line * other exp " in the Cond dC lidated S of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Tnitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recogmised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments All financial
assets/ financial liabilities are imtially measured at fair value, plus i case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added to or deducted, as the case may be, from the fair value of such assets or liabilities
Transaction costs directly attributable to the isition of fi ial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised i diately in the Cond d
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price

Financial assets:

Classification of linancial assets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement calegories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Cond d Ci lidated S of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured al amortised cost

The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Busi Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held

Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes

Subsequent Measurement

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Busi Parks Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characterstics of the asset There are
three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Fi ial assets are ly measured at amortised cost if these financial assels are held within a business whose obyective 1s to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash

flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractval cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selting financial assets

Financial assets at fair value (hrough the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Cond d C lidated S of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
i diately r ised in the Cond d C lidated Statement of Profit and Loss
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Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value There are lwo measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies
Its equity instruments.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FYTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition ta present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income for equity instiuments which are not held for trading

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, Mindspace Business Parks Gioup can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income This election is not permitied if the equity investment is held for trading These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recogmised in other comprehensive icome and accumulated 1n the reserve for 'equity
instruments through other comprehensive income' The cumulative gain or loss 15 not reclassified to Cond d Consolidated § of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments,
but is transferred to retained earnings

Impairment of financial assets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cosl, lease receivables, trade receivables,
other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetme expected
credit losses Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mmdspace Business Parks Group has used a practical expedient as
permitted under Ind AS 109 This expected credit loss allowance 1s computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for
forward-looking information

Derecognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(i) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and

Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than mvestments in equity instruments at FVOCT), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the date of
derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Cond d C lidated S of Piofit and Loss Any interest in transferred financial assets that is cieated or retained
by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 1ssued by Mindspace Business Paiks Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabiliues Equity instruments are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equily instrument. A conversion option that will be settied by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments 1s an equity instrument

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component 1s esumated using the prevailing maiket imntetest 1ate for sumilar non-conveiible instiuments: This amound 15 1ecoided as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest methed until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date

The conversion opuion classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the labultty component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole This 15 recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that relate to the 1ssue of the convertible mstruments are allocated to the liability and equity components 1 proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds Transaction
cosls relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity Transaction costs relating to the hability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method

Financial Liabilities
Recognition, measurement and classification
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Cond d C lidated S of Profit and Loss. or b) at amortised cost Management determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the ime of reclassification

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments Subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Cond d Consolidated S of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost All changes in fair value of financial liabilities
classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Cond d Consolidated S of Profit and Loss Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and borrowinygs, trade and other payables
After initial recognition the financial liabifities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are r ized in the Cond d Consolidated S
of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable lega!l right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivalives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated, Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits. other short-term, highly liquid investments with original matunities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value
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Statement of Cash Mow

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method. whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the etfects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defeirals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments The cash flows from operating, investing and fi ing activities of Mind: e B Parks Group are segregated

Tninal direct cosls such as brokerage expenses mcurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease which are capitalised to the carrymng amount of leased assets are considered as
cashflows used in 1nvesting activity

For the purpose of the Condensed Consofidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
averdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group's cash management

As pei para 8 of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdiafis are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdiaft, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as *borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant (0 Ind AS — 19 *‘Employee beuefits’

Short texm employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employue benefits such as salaries, wages, etc and are recognised in the
period in which the employee rendered the related services The undiscounted amount of short-teim employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognised as an expense during the period

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are
rendered by the employees Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund conlribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an
expense The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contiibutions

Defined benefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on internal calculation
based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The hability or assel recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, if any The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries SPVs using the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominaled in TNR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost 1s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit oblization and the fair value of plan assets This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Cond d C lidated S of Profitand Loss

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benefits Mindspace Business Parks Group has determuned the liability for compensated absences based
on internal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary Mindspace Business Parks Group's net obligation in respect of
compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have earned m return for their service in the current and previous years The benefit is discounted to
determine its present value The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation by SPVs using the piojected unit credit method, R ement is recognised in the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 1n which they arise Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a non-current liability

regulatory

nos befere finance costs, depreciztion and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected 1o present earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional ilems and (ax as a separate line
item on the face of the Cond d C lidated S of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation,
regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations

Subsequent events
If the Mindspace Business Parks Group receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of approved for issue, about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting

period. it will assess whether the information affects the that it r in its Cond d Ci lidated financial The Group will adjust the amounts recognised in 1ts
financial statements Lo reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of the new information For non-adjusting
events after the reporting period, the Group will not change the amounts recogmised n its d d lidated financial but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting

event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an estmate cannot be made, 1f apphcable

Errors and estimates
Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to
the users of the Cond d C lidated financial Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to protit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change

Segment Information

Primary segment information

The primary reportable segment is business segmenls

Operating segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'commercial real estate' and ‘power distiibution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns The Board of directors of the manager has been
identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of
the Group as disclosed below

Commercial Real Estate Development
Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets The Group has its
project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and cial assets including incidental activities

Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Tnfra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The approved SPVs being
Decmed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ

Secondary segment information
Mindspace Business Parks Group's operations are based in India and therefore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - India
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Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the share of reserves and capital attributable to the shareholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs for units of
Mindspace REIT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whom non-controlling interest has been recognised Non-
controlling terests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately 1n the Cond d C lidated S of Profit and Loss. Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheel

SPV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
{As um vepurting date)
KRIT Telangana State Industrial 11 00%

Infrastructure Corporation Limited
Tntime Telangana State Tndustrial 11 00%
Infrastructure Corporation Limited

Sundew Telangana State Industrial 11.00%
Infrastructure Corporation Limited

Tnd AS 110 requires entities to atiribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-contralling mterests This
requirement needs Lo be followed even If this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Distribution to unit holders
The Group recognises a liability to make distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created As per the REIT Regulations, a distribution
1s authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the M A corr ding amount is r d directly 1n other equity/Unit Capitat

Distribution Policy

The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated fiom Mindspace REIT s assets and investments In terms of the Distiibution Policy of
Mindspace REIT and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs/HoldCo are required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT, in proportion of
Mindspace REIT's shaicholding in the Asset SPV/HoldCo, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 NDCF to be received by Mindspace REIT from the Asset
SPVs/HoldCo may be in the form of dividends. interest income, repayment of debt by SPVs to REIT, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs or as specifically
permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the REIT Regulations Such SPV Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a
Financial Year in terms of the Distribution Policy

Non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations:

Discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or classified as held for sale and represents a major line of business or geographies. Non-current assets
are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than thiough continuing use This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition

Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

Joint Development Accounting:

Development rights received under joint development arrangements is measured at the fair value of the estimated construction service rendered to the landowner and accounted as an asset
with corresponding obligation for construction service The cost as and when incurred along with the corresponding revenue are recognised 1n the statement of Profit and Loss as per Ind
AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers'

The Developmental Rights will be grouped as Land under Investment Property post execution of Conveyance Deed in the name of the Company. Transaction cost such as stamp duty, taxes
etc are considered as part of land cost as and when incurred

Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time

New and amended standards:

The accounting policies adopted

and methods of putation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for items disclosed below:

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Excliange Rates

On 07 May 2025, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendment to Tnd AS 21 to address situations where currency lacks exchangeability The amendement specifies how an entity
should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking The amendments also require disclosure of
information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows

When applying the amendment, an entity is not required to restate comparative information The amendment is not relevant or do not have an impact on the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group

On 13 August 2025, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued amendments to the following standards:

Tnd AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

MCA issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of Ind AS | to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify

= What is meant by a right to defer settlement

» That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

« That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

« That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability 1s itself an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

In addition, a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement is
cantingent on pli with future c within twelve months

The amendment does not have an impact on the Cond d C lidated Fi ial Statements of the Group

Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require additional di e of such arr The di
intended to assist users of financial in under ding the effects of supplier finance arr on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk

The amendment does not have an impact on the Cond: dC lidated Fi ial S of the Group

€ requirements in the amendinents are

Ind AS 12 - Tncome Taxes

The amendment introduces a mandatory exception from recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes. When applying
the amendment, an entity is required to restate comparative information. The amendment is not relevant or do not have an impact on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Gioup

The above amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025
Standards issued not yet effective

In addition Lo the above amendment to Ind AS 1, the amendment also require that if a covenant breach is rectified after the reporting date, it will be treated as a non-adjusting event
This amendment will be applicable from annual reporting periods beginning on or after the | April 2026
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed C lidated Fi ial St

Notes (o Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

B Investments B
“Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 Seplember 2024

Financial assets

[nvestments in equity instruments
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI
2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Privale Limited, face valuc of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up (31 March 2025 : 2,000, 30 0.02 0.02 002
September 2024 : 2,000)
Financial assets
Unquoted investinent in Govermment Securities at amortised cost
7 61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2025: 25,000, 30 September 2024 : 25,000) 2.64 264 264
8 24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2025 25,000, 30 September 2024 : 25,000) 2.66 266 266
7 17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2025: 25,000, 30 September 2024 25,000) 243 243 243
7 26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2025: 22,000, 30 September 2024 : 22,000) 2.32 232 232
7 06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2025 22,000, 30 September 2024 : 22,000) 2.32 232 232
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2025: 8,000, 30 September 2024 : 8,000) 0.81 0381 081
7 72% GOT 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2025: 10,000, 30 September 2024 : 10,000) 0.96 096 096
6 99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units, (31 March 2025 11,300, 30 September 2024 : 11,300) 1.06 1 06 106
7 26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2025: 18,000, 30 September 2024 : 18,000) 1.90 190 190
7 40% GOI 2035 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2025: 28,700, 30 September 2024 : 28,700) 3.07 307 307
7 40% GOI 2062 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 41,100 units (31 March 2025: Nil, 30 September 2024 : Nil) 4.38 - -
8 33% GO! 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units (31 March 2025: 21,210, 30 September 2024 : 21,210) 2.50 2.50 250
7 06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12,000 units (31 March 2025 12,000, 30 September 2024 12,000} 1.27 127 127
8 33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 1,790 units (31 March 2025: 1,790, 30 September 2024 : 1,790) 0.21 021 021
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 March 2025: 28,000, 30 September 2024 : 28,000) 2.62 262 262
6 99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2025 17,700, 30 September 2024 17,700) 1.66 166 1 66
7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,200 units (31 March 2025: 1,200, 30 September 2024 : 1,200) 0.12 012 012
6 99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,037 units (31 March 2025: 1,037, 30 September 2024  1,037) 0.11 01l 011
6 99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2025: 10,400, 30 September 2024 10,400) 1.03 103 103
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 24,700 units (31 March 2025: 24,700, 30 September 2024 : 24,700) 2.45 245 245
7 18% GOT 2033, Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 51,170 units (31 March 2025 51,170, 30 September 2024 . 51,170) 5.24 524 524
6 99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 14,900 units (31 March 2025 14,900, 30 September 2024 ; 14,900) 1.48 148 148 |
43.26 38 88 38 88

Tnvestments measured at cost (gross) -] = -
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss = N =
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 0.02 002 002
Investments measured at amortised cost 43.24 38.86 3886
Aggregate amount of impairment recognised = = =
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 43.26 3888 3888




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

10 Other financial assets (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at Asat

30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Unsecured, considered good -At amortised cost
Fixed deposits with banks* 2,516.17 3,009 03 22353
Unbilled revenue 1,374.87 1,117.56 920.50
[nterest receivable * 2.10 0.88 1.68
Finance lease 1eceivable 2,294.23 1,780.08 [,620.29
Security deposits 637.05 58995 518.00
Other reccivables 8.05 7.36 -

6,832.47 6,504.86 3,284.00

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 42,50 million held for Corporate Social Responsibility (31 March 2025 — Rs. 68.00 million, 30 September 2024 - Rs. 176.50
million) and amount of Rs. 140.19 million held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs (31 March 2025 — Rs. 100.72 million, 30 September 2024 - Rs. 47.03)
Interest receivable includes interest on corporate social responsibility of Rs. 0.83 million (31 March 2025 - Rs. 0.88 million, 30 September 2024 - Rs. 0.92 million)

Deferred tax assets
Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Deferred tax assets 642.65 72265 22220
G42.65 722.65 222.20
12 Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at As at
30 Scptember 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Advance Tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax Rs. 10,669.10 million) 556.69 51999 84027
(31 March 2025 : Rs 9,268 61 million, 30 September 2024 : Rs 9,336 21 million )
556.69 519.99 84027
13 Othici non-current asseis
Particulars As at As at As at

30 September 2025

31 March 2025

30 September 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 892.78 1,336.62 1,394 62
Balances with government authorities 13434 107.45 107.45
Prepaid expenses 71.63 6248 3216
1.098.75 1.506.55 1.534.23
14 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at Asat
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Building materials and components 46.09 46.72 58.62
Inventory of Equipment 9.87 3.55 -
. - 55.96 5027 5862
15 Trade receivables o -
Particulars As at As at As at

30 September 2025

31 March 2025

30 September 2024

(a) Considered good -Secured

(b) Considered good -Unsecured 533.27 586.69 64730
(c )Trade 1eceivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - E
(d) Trade receivables - Credit impaired 82.00 58.83 43.14
Less: Loss allowance (82.00) (58.83) (43.14)
533.27 586.69 647.30




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Scatements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

16A Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Cash on hand B 2.78 292 3
Investment in overnight mutual fund - 15477 68997
Balances with banks
- in curent accounts 6,270.81 6,01523 4,266.42
- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 0.57 = -
three months
- In escrow accounts 11.66 20639 753
6,285.82 6,379.31 496703
16B Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than twelve months* 1,225.28 1,024.72 746,37
Balance with banks** 107.66 576 12.08
Unpaid Distributions 0.82 125 043
1,333.76 1,031.73 758 88

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 556.98 million (31 March 2025 - Rs, 723.01 million, 30 September 2024 - Rs. 705.37 million) are held as lien in respect of loan
availed by the SPVs and amount of Rs. Nil million held for Corporate Social Responsibility (31 March 2025 - Rs. Nil million, 30 September 2024 - Rs. 41.00

mullion)

** Earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects

17 Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 Septemnber 2024
Unsecuied, considei ed good -Ata
Interest receivable
- on fixed deposits* 173.05 62.24 28.27
- from others 14.02 20.34 640
Interest accrued but not due
- on fixed deposits 26.63 = 9.91
- from others 0.59 - 642
Security deposits 23.87 2223 1072
Fixed deposits with banks* 2,869.54 1,409 50 3,348 74
Unbilled revenue 1,403.41 1,382.63 1,062 80
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue (172.11) (127.23) (57.23)
Finance lease receivable 778.09 657.57 58351
Finance receivables*** 49.02 147.07 -
Other receivables**
- Considered good 63.73 108.44 1678
- Credit impaired 0.73 073 073
Less: loss allowance (0.73) (0.73) (0.73)
5,229.84 3,682.79 5,016.32

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 543.66 million held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs (31 March 2025 - Rs. 410.57 million, 30 September 2024 - Rs
398.54 million) and fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 44.00 million held for Corporate Social Responsibility (31 March 2025 - Rs. 49.50 million, 30 September 2024 -
Rs. Nil million). Interest receivable includes interest on comporate social responsibility of Rs. 6.21 million (31 March 2025 - Rs. 3.83 million, 30 September 2024 -

Rs. Nil million ).
** Refer Note 47 for related party disclosure

*** Finance receivables represents income support receivable in respect of leased property of the Company from the erstwhile shareholders pursuant to Support

Agreement dated 29 January 2025 to meet the shortfall in the rent

18 Other current assets

Particulars As at Asat As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 664.19 367.71 446.52
Balances with government authorities 255.41 194.49 130.42
Prepaid expenses 520.87 139.03 165.64
Other receivables 6.36 6.12 =
1,446.83 707.35 742.58




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/403

Cond d Cansolidated Financial

Notes to A
(All amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

unts

[E] Carpin -
Curpus Ariniind
Asal [ Apri 2024 . — on)
Changes dwimg (he s et =
Closing hatance as at 31 March 2023 00l
Asal [ April 2025 tm
L during five pervi
Clusing lalant:e & ut 31 Seprember 1S 0.01
Corpis B Amntt
Asal | Ak 2030 nar
Changes during the penod N
Clusing balance as at 30 September 2034 B .0

20A  Unit capital

A. Unit Capital Nus. Awnnni
As at 1 April 2024 59,30,18,1K2 LRhE KL =l
Clanges duting the yeu

Add Units issued duning the year i exchiange for equiy nterestin SPV (seter note 16163452 6128 00
)y

Less lssuc expenses (refer note (e ) 1279
Clusing halance as at 31 March 2023 61,91,83,634 1,68,964.03
As at | April 2025 60,91,83,634 1,68,964.03

Chunges dunng e penod - -

[IXTEEREN] 181

A. Unit Capital No, Amount
As at 1 April 2024 39,30,18,142 162835 82
Changes duing the paied - -
Lot Lesin wwperaicy refen nile fe | - -
Elu![n! Daliunce an at 30 Seprember 2024 4,300,018, 152 FALNINNT

(a) Terms/rights attached (o Units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units Each Unit represents an undivided benefictal interest in the Trust Tach holder of Units is entitled to one vote per unit The Umitholders have the ight to recetve at least 90% ol the Net
Distnbutable Cash Flows ol the Trust on quarterly basis i aceordance watl the hisibution Poliey The Bowd of dircetons of Manager appioves disinbutions The distiibution w il be an praportion to the number ol Units hield by the
Unuthelders The Trust declares and pays distnbutions in Indian Rupees

Under the 1 s of the REIT Regul 5. Mind: Busmess Parks REIT 1s required 1o distribute 1o Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distnbutable cuslt flows (o he met for a grven financsal year on a cumulative periodic
busis Accordingly a porbion of the Umt Captal conlains a cantractual obhgation of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT (o pay o 1ts Unitholders cash distnbutions Tlence the Umit Capilal 1s @ compound (inancial instrument which
contains equity and lrablity components 1n accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments Presentation Flowever, in accordance with SEBT vide master circular no SERIAIOMDIIS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2025/99 dated 11 July 2025
(Master Cireular), as amended from tme 1o tme 1ssued undu the REIT Repulations, the Unnholders funds have been presented as “TEquity i order lo comply with the requirements of Sechion A of Chapter 4 10 the Master Cireular
(a5 amended (fom bme to ome) Consequently cansistent with Um( Capital being classified as equity, the disiibutions 1o Unitholders in the form af dividend, inlcrest and other income 15 presented as 4 separale line ftem on lace of
balanee sheet and all other distnbunions o Unitholders are presented in Other Equity when the distinbutions are approved by the Boaid ol Directors of Managa

i Unithedsders Juehling 1

than 5 purient Units in the Trust

Name of th Ider As 4 30 Sepleniiicl I As at 31 March 2025 As 20 3 September 2024
Nor of undts = ol hubding | Nl units nz Nu of units 4y o hlding

Casa Maria Properties LLP 46820719 7 69% 46820719 7 6% 4.6870,719 790%
Raghukool Lstate Developement L1 4.20.04 340 6 Y0% 4.20.04 340 6 Y0% 4.20.04 546 7U8%
Capslan Tradmpe 1.1.7 41093719 6 75% 41093719 675% 41095719 693%
Palm Shelter Estate Developawent 1L 41093719 675% 4,1095719 675% 41093719 693%|
K Raheja Corp Privale Timited 36596 296 601%! 363 96 296 601% 36596296 6 17%
Chandru Laclmandas Raheja* 326,34 433 536% 3,26,34.433 336% 3.26,34,433 | 350%
Cape Truding LLP 33438895 582% 315438895 5382% 35438895 598%
Platnum MMunination A 2018 Trust - . - . 5,43,75,000 917%
Anbee Constructiuns LT l 35404800 58I% 3,54.04.890 | saiw|  35i0180 | 507%

AR lusbes hulding n Cor wod o bl ! aof heselieunaen of o Propern Teanl

(c) The Trust has not alloited any fully pard-up umts by way of honus units nor has 1 haught hack any cluss of wits from the dale of registration Gl the balance shieet date: Further, the "Trust had 1ssued an appregate of 36,363,600 Unnis
for cash al Rs 275 per untt and 336,654,582 Unils at a price of Rs 275 per wit for consideration other thun cash during the penod of | ars immediately preceding the balance sheet date Further, duning the previous year,
Mindspace REIT acquired Sustun Propertics Private Linnted by acquiring ail the equity mterest lield by the Sponsors in the 5PV on 06 Maich 2025 [n exchange for these equity interests, the above sliu chotder's have been allotied
1,61,63,452 units of Mimclspi ZIT on 06 March 2025 which weare issued at Rs 379 08 cach

c

(d)  Duning the year ended March 2023, Mindspace REIT acquied contiolhing n Sustiin Properties Pavate Limited by acquinnyg 100% equity interest fiom enstwiule sliaceholders which includes certan memburs of Sponsor Group
oi 06 March 2035 The puchase considwation for acquring 10635 stake n Sustan Propurtics Private Limited was discharped by allotting 1.61.65.452 Unts al Rs 379 08 per Unil. aggrcgating 1o Rs: 6.128 00 mullion (refin aote

428)

Mame of the il Number ofunits ullutted for sequiring all fhe equity intereat hetd in the SV

Sumati Ravi Raheja 64,66,181

Jaya Neel Rahieja 64.66 181

Jveti Chundru Ruheja 1211 (4R
s fnsueil - 1,60 45451

(e) Note [ssue expenses pertaining to the Right ol Firut OfFer und Tty of the units on MSE unud HEE was redsicod from the Unitholdors Capal in accordance with Ind AS 32_F|n;mcml Trstrumments Vresgmitniin

208  Distribustion = Repayment of Cuplral*

Particulars As at As at Aval
3 Septembier 2025 31 March 2025 30 Seprember 2024
Distrabulron i Uit holders VT D) (SRR 1 AT
6,767,631 (3,142.44) (Y44 41)

*Heter Coidensse Cunslidheied Statemun o0 Chariges s Unnil Joddir's equity Tor detatled movement m Disibutlo - Beplavanent of Caputal halancis
In accurdance wilh amendment in REIT Regulations vide SEBI Master eireular no- SEB/HO/MDDI [S-Pol-2/P/CIR/2025/99 dated 11 July 2023, the Entity has presented the distribution to its unitholders related to repayment of debt
by HoldCu/SPVs 1o REIT. as a negative amount on the face of the Balance Sheet as a separate line item Thisuibution — Repayment of Capital under the sub-heading ‘Equity” undes the heading Equity and Liabilioes” for half yea

ended 30 Septanber 2023 Aceordingly, distiibution for the year ended 31 Mach 2023 and balt ended 30 Seplember 2024 have been reprouped in bine wilh the sud 1equirements




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Ci d C li I Financial

Notes 1o Accounts

(All amounts in Rx. million unless ntherwise stated)

21 Other equity*
Particulars Asat Asat As at
30 Septemhber 2023 31 March 2025 30 September 2024

Reserves and Surplus
Retained camings (2637259 125276 62) (23443 82)
Debenture redemplion resene

(26,372.59) 23276 62) (23443 82)

*Refer Candensed Consolidated Statement ol Changes in Unit lialder s equity for detmled movement m other cquity balances

Retained carnings :
The cumulative gan o loss ansing from the operations wieh is 1etained and 15 tecognized and accumulated under the heading of retuned eamings: At the ead of the period. the profitloss after tax s tansfored flom the statement of
profit und loss to the retaned eamings aceount

Dehenture redemplion reserve

As per the Companie: “apital and Debentwes) Rules 2014 amended). SPV 15 yegined (o vieale Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, whiclis avarlable for p:
of debentures issued Aces 2. the SPV has created DRR out of then prolits in tems of the Companes (Shate Capital and Debentw ey Rules: 2014 (ns amended) which would b
is maturity Duiing the year ended 31 Maceh 2025 such debentures were redeemned and henee balance in the teserve wis transfened W retined carmings

ment ol dividend. equal 1o 10% o the amount
zed for redemplion ol debentures ot the Umie of

ihare

22 Haormwings (Non-currenl )
Particulars As uf Asat As ut
3 her 2025 31 March 2025 30 2024

Secured- Al amortised cost
Terms loans

- from banks (Reler note 22A) 1703535 R59761 233519
- fiom ather parties (Refer note 22A¢u) Note 1, 22A(v) Note 2 and 22A¢vin) Nole 6,689 96 6,768 3 3,048 53
b
Flex term loan (Reler note 22A(u) Note | and 22A(v) Nale 2) 68245 44503 37000
Dehentures
Senor, histed, rated, seewed, non-cumulative, xable, anslaable, redeemable, non- 4,986 K7 494223 4,978 ¥2
comvenible debentutes (NCD Senes 47) (net of issue expenses) (31 Maich 2025 Rs
4,982 23 nmlion, 30 September 2024 Rs 4974 82 nulbon {Reler note 22B01))
Sccured. lisied, rated, secured, I . laxable, Iransferabl i ble non- - 548567 547918
convertible debenturcs (“Mindspace RETT Green Bond 17 (nel of 1ssue expenses) (31
March 2025 Rs 3,443 67 nuihon, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 3,479 18 mullion (Refer
note 22B(Y)
Secured. Disted  rated i taxable. bl d hle non- - 498729 4982 36
eonvertible debentures (NCD Series 6) (net of 1ssuc expenses) (31 March 2025 Rs
4,987 29 mubon, 30 September 2024 Rs 4 982 36 million (Refer note 22Bun))
Sceured. hsted  rated  non-cumulabive  taxable.  lransterable. redecmable  non- 4994 98 499123 4 988 6L
comverlible debentures (NCD Series 7 (net of 1asue expenses) (31 March 2025 Rs
4,991 23 mulion, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 4988 61 million (Refer note 22B(1v)
Scewed, hsted, rtated, non-cumulative, (axable, lransterable, redeeomable non- 339716 3394 34 339372
comertible debentwes {NCD Senes 8) (nel of 1ssue expenses) (31 March 2025 Rs
3394 34 miilon. 30 September 2024 Rs 3 393 72 millivn (Refer note 22Biv))
Seeued. histed. rated. Jati Lanable. ceable I ble non- 4 YBR 66 4986 11 498325
convertible debentwes (NCD Series 9) tnet of issue expenses) (31 Maich 2025 Rs
4.986 11 wnhon 30 Seplamber 2024 Rs 4.983 23 mulhon (Refer note 22B(v1))
Secured. hsted  rated t Laxable hl d ble non- 6,498 42 649681 6,488 73
comverhible debentures (NCD Sertes 10) (net of tssue expenses) (31 March 2025 Rs
6,496 81 innlion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 6488 73 mullian (Refer nole 32B(vin))
Secured. hsted raled  non-cumulatve  taxable  transferable. redeanable non- 4.976 13 497042 -
converuible debentures (NCD Senes 11) (nel of 1ssue expenses) (31 March 2025 Rs
4.970 42 mikbion. 30 Seplanber 2024 Rs Nil milhon (Refer note 22B(vin)}
Secwed, listed, rated, non-cunulative, laxable, {ranstemable, redesmable non- 3989 16 = =]
convertible debentures (NCD Senes 12) (net of issue expenses) (31 March 2023 Rs
Nil nuilion. 30 September 2024 Rs Nil mullion (Refer note 22B0x))
Secured, histed, rated, labve, taxable, bl d ble non- 549294 - -
convertible debentures (NCD Senes 13) (net of issue expenses) (31 March 20235 Rs
Nil miilion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs Nil million (Refer nole 22B(x))
hsted, rated, | . laxable, transferable, d ble non- 399325 - -

ible debentures (NCD Senes 14} (net of issue expenses) (31 Marcl 2023 Rs
on, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs Nil nillion (Refer note 22B(x1)

81,2551 86,105 36 62,065 10




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Cond d Consoliduted Financial

Nutes lo Accounts
(Al amounts in Rs. million unless ntherwise stated)

22A  Repayment terms, rate of interest and security details
22A()  Gigaplex
Note 15 Lender Axis Bank Lumuted  Term loans - Rs 1,581 70 million ( 31 March 2025 Rs 1608 17 million, 30 Seplemba 2024 Rs 1,628 35 nullion) Term loan current mutunties of long-term debt - Rs 46 635 nullion (31 March
2025 Rs 40 42 nullion, 30 Septembet 2024 Rs 39 51 naltion), Bank Overdvall of Rs 381 08 aullion (31 Mareh 2023 Rs 266 43 nullion, 30 Seplemba 2024 Rs 254 82 milhon)

(1) Nature of secu
Exclusive ENFZ RM charge of Bulding Nu 1 along with Pai-Passu charge on all that prece or pareel of and known as Plut Nu 7= 5 i the Trans Thane Creck (1 T C ) Industial Area MIDU tArol Knowledge Park) Navi Mumba
admeasurements 2,02 300 Square Meters

Exclusive charge on entire current assets (ncluding reeervables. mos cable fixed assets and cash flows) and moveable fixed assets: both present and future, of Building No |

Exclusie charge ¢ of hypothecation over,

(a) All the nglis, titles, mterest, benehits, claims and demands whatsoever, ol the Borrowar., in (he contrac covers, ele, petlaining to Building No 1

(1) all the ri i , chinms and demands whatsoever. of the Borrower in any letter ol credit, guar antee, performance bond provided by any counterparty to the Bomower, pertaining Lo Buitding No 1

(e} all the rights titles, mterest b«:nLrIs clams and demands whatsoever. of the Borrowa m the inswanee contracls policies msuance proceeds. procwed by the Bormower o procured by any of its contiacturs (avowng the

Bowrowet. pertmning Lo Bulding No |

Exclusive charpe ove the Escron Aceount ul Building Nu |

(2) Terms for repayment:

"The term loan from Lender carries interest rate of 7 25% palo 7 7)% p it t31 March 2025 8 25% p a, 30 Seplember 2024 8 25% pa) payable monthly The Rupce Tenn loan and overdrafl are vanable interest rate facilities
The surd loan shall be repaid in s d 150 monthly ) Trom the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of vupec term loan and ending on 31 January 2039

Fancial Covenants FACR - Not below | 30 tmes and Cash Flow Cova - Nat below 1 10 umes ull FY2026 and not below 1 15 times thereafieras further specilied in Transaction Documients

Note 2: Lenda Bank of Bwoda Term loans - Rs 5484 68 millon (31 March 2025 Rs 5528 53 million. 30 September 2024 Rs 1,929 46 million) Current maluritics of long-tenn debt - Rs 78 70 million (31 March 2025 Rs
63 69 mulhon 30 September 2024 Rs 30 72 nullion) and Bank Overdiall ol Rs 473 34 mulbon (31 Maich 2025 Rs 6 37 nulhion. 30 September 2024 Rs Nil million)

(1) Nature of securitics:

1) Exclusive charge on Building No 9 comprising of ground floor hasement Ist 1o 3rd loor of car parking 4th floor (food court) and 5th to 19t [oors of office space with the Lolal leasable area of 1095094 5q N leased o vanous
lessees localed at Chigaplex IT Park. MIDC Platno 1T-3

1) First ranking pan passu echarge by way of registered morlgage on all the piece and parcel of land known as plot na IT 3 aggregating to 2,02,300 square meler or thereabouts lying, bemg and sitwated at Trans Thane Creek (T T C)
Industrial Arca (Awrolt West), MIDC (Airali Knowledge Park) wathi the willage imis off Airoli Taluka. and within the limits of Navi Mumbai Municipal Corporation, Registration Sub Distiet Thane

1in) Exelusive change on lease rentals and Escrow Account opened (exel tenants ol 4th floor)

(2) Terms for repayment:

The tenm loan from Lender camies interest rale of 795 % pato 835 % pa (31 March 2025: 8 30% to 8 35% pa. 30 Septembir 2024 8 33% pa ) payable monthly The Rupee Term Joan: and overdiall ure variable interest rale
lacilues

The said loan shall be repaid in 1 174 monthly | from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee tean loan and ending on 31 Decanber 2038

Fmancial Covenants  Secunty Cover of | 25 tmes and DSCR of 1 10 as further specified m Transaction Documents

Note 3: Lender HDFC Bunk Limited Tenn loans - Rs 1,143 94 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs 1,196 43 milion. 30 September 2024 Rs 1,228 04 mulhon): Cunent maluriies of long=tenn debl - Rs 84 10 million (31 Maich 2025
Rs 49 64 million. 30 Scptember 2024 Rs 35 48 nullivn): Bunk Overdiaft of Rs 248 27 millien (31 March 2025 Rs Nil mullion: 30 Scpiember 2024 Rs 87 74 million)

(1) Nature of kecuritics:

13 TTy poiheedtion of ios alide fised asset pad Lamng Lo Properly - present amd fuiwe

u) Hypotheciabion of current assel and recevables pertaimng to Property , present and future

m) Escrow account and Debl service reserve account (DSRA),

18) Charge by way of Registered Martgage of Unit No 401,501,601,801,802,901,1201 of IT building namcd Building 4,

v) Mortgage/First Pan-Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on alf that pieee of paree! of fand known as Plot No IT- 3 1 the Trans Thane Creck (TT C) Industiiad Area, MIDC Aucl Knowledge Park) Nauve Muenbm
admicaswrauents, 2,02,345 Square Melas

No immovable asset of the property shall be encumibered/ disposed ofl without prios consent of the Bank tsave an exeept Jeasing heensimg, renung. m of Property by the Company m normal cowse of business with no impaet of the
SANE ON Mugape

(2) Terms for repayment:

The said loan shall be repaid in 156 structured moathly installment, beginning from Lhe end of the wonth of the date of firsl disburscmeant of rupee term loan ending on 31 August 2034 The Lenm loan from Lender carmies interest rate of
745% pa 107 95% pa (31 March 2025 R 45% to 9 00% p a, 30 Seplanber 2024 B45% pa to 9 45% p a) payable monthly The Rupee Term toan and overdrafl are vaniable interest rate facilitics

Finuncial Covenants LTV of Jess than equal 1o 60% as further specilied in Transacuion Documents

22A(ii) Horizonvlew
Nolte I: Lender Baja) Housing Finance Lid Term Loun of Rs 1 435 06 mullion ¢31 Maich 2025 Rs 1.448 17 mullion 30 Scptember 2024 Rs 1 460 17 mullion). Current matunties of long-tenm debt of Rs 25 11 mullion (31 March
2025 Rs 21 78 mullion. 30 Sepiember 2024 Rs 18 44 million) Flext term loan of Rs 333 25 mithion (31 March 2025 Rs 445 05 mullon. 30 September 2024 Rs 370 million)

(1) Naturc of securities:
(1) Charge over leusuble arca of 0 342 Mn 8q Fu situated on the 3rd to the 9th floor in Tower A, Commerzone comprising of two towers being Tower A and Tower B consisting of a combined triple busement, ground floor plus mne
office iloor, constructed on the land admeasuring approximately 3 acres 31 cents {equivalent to 22,425 13 square melers) as per revenue records bearing Survey No 25/3A, Survey No 25/4H5, Survey No 25/4H6B and Survey
No 25/41 situate at 111/168, Porw village. Amibattur Taluk, Thiruvallu District, D No 111 Mounl Poonamallee High Road, Porwy, Chennar 600 116

) Hypotheeation of receivables pertaining (o Horizonview's share of Units m Tower A thiough Eserow aceount

(2) Terms uf repayment:
Repayment (o be done Uirough staggered 168 monthly mstallment of varymg amounts it November 2036 The loan cammies mierest rate 7 73% for the entire facility (3] March 2025 8 40% p a. 30 Seplember 2024 8 45% p a).

Note 2: Lender Axis Bank, Overdrait fucihity of Rs Nit million (31 March 2025 Rs 10 27 mullion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs Nil mullion)

(1) Nature of securities:
Overdiatt facilities 1s sccured against fixed deposit ol Rs 20 00 million

(2)Terms uf repayment:
Bank overdinll 1s variable mlerest rate Lacility and is repavable on danand
Interest rate for the period was ranging between 7 25% palo825% pa(3l March 2025 8 25% p a. 30 September 2024 Nil}.
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d Consolidated Financial

Notes to Accounts
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwixe stated)

22A(iH)

22A¢1)

22A(v)

Avacado
Note [: Lender ICICT Term Loan Rs 3 10R 22 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs 3,203 R0 mullion, 30 September 2024 Rs 3,256 39 million} 1s variable and Current matunuies of long term borniowings Rs 17817 milbon (31 March
2025 : Rs 161 63 mullion, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 133 85 million ) and Bank Overdraft of Rs 167 43 mitlhon (31 March 2025 : Rs 167 81 million, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 17127 multion)

(1) Nature of sceuri
- Chnge on comim building known as "Paradigm” or Bulding No 12

usive chauge by way ol hyy on the Scheduled and all insurance proceeds. bolh present and future petaiung to the Propeny. and
vclusive charge by way ol hypothecation vn Lhe Escrow Account perlaming Lo the Property

- Fxclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the DSR Account

The Rupee term loan canies interest rute of 8 10% (0 8 15% per annum (31 March 2025 8 65% 30 Seplember 2024 8 65%) and the Overdiafl facility cormies an inteiest rate of 9 00% pa annuin (31 March 2025 ¥ 90% 109 00%
pa annum, 30 September 2024 8 9% per annum )

(2) Terms of repayment:

Loun 1s repayable in 120 monthly

Note 2: Lender Axis Bank, Overdrail facility of Rs Nil mullion (31 March 2025 Rs Nil million, 30 Scplember 2024: Rs Nil millon)

(1) Nature of securite:
Overdialt [rom Axis Bank 15 secwed against Fixed Deposit with Axis Bank

(2) Terms of repayment:
Bank Overdrafl is repay able on demand

Intime Propertics
Note 1: ICICI Bark Lender Bank Overdrall of Rs K0 55 million (31 March 2025 Rs 224 26 mullion, 30 September 2024 Rs 147 05 million)

(1) Nature of securiles:
Overdraft imut Irom Lender 15 seewred against Fixed Deposit

(2) Terms of repaymeni:
Runk overdrafl s variable mierest ratc faciity repayable an demand

(3) Rate of Interest:
Tnterestrate 158 15 % pa (31 March 2025- 8 15% pa, 30 Seplember 2024 8 15% pa)

Sundew Properties Limited
Nute 1: Lender TCICT Bank [ ymied Tam T oan Rs 540 03 mithion (31 Mareli 2025 Rs 577 55 miithon, 30 September 2024 Rs 613 55 million). Current matunties of long-term debt Rs 73 52 mithon (31 March 2025 Rs 69 30
millivn, 30 Sepembea 2024: Rs 63 92 million); Bank Overdraft Rs 172 56 milhon (31 March 2025 Rs 313 91 nallon, 30 September 2024 Rs 306 41 nullian).

(1) Nature of securites:

Term loan and Bank Overdralt from Lenda 15 secured by way uf churge on All e pieee & pareed of Building 14 together wth sub-plot ol land located at Survey ne 64, sitwited st Madhapur Village. Sculngampally Mundal. Ranga
Reddy Distniet TTyderabad admeasuring apy Iv 14 436 45 sq mies - having lotal leasable area of around 529030 sq N including all the struetures thereon both present & future. along with all the development potenbal ansing
thereon ncluding addiional development potential in e form of TDR. premium FSI ete | both present and future { Property”) and Exclusive charge by way of hypoth on the bles and all proceeds
bath present and future pertaming Lo the Property and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Acconnl along with all monies credited/deposited therem (sn whatever form the same may be), and alf investments

(2) Terms of repaymient:

Repay able in 120 monthly instalments of varying amounts from 31 July 2021

The Rupee Term loan and overdraft ave vanable inferest rate favilities Tnteest rate for the peariod 1s 8 10% 1o 8 63% per annum (31 March 2025 R 63% per annum 30 Septembe 2024 8 65% per annum) and the Overdralt
factlity cames on interest wate for the year of 8 40% Lo 8 90% per annum (31 March 2025 8 90% per unnun, 30 Scplember 20249 20% per annwn)

Financial Corenants Secw ity Cuver of Minimum 2x as funba specified i T1ansacuon Documents

Note 2: Lender Baga) Housing Finunce Lumuted Non current borrowings of Rs 1 485 10 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs 1 538 06 million 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 1,588 36 mullion) Current malurilics of long-term debt of Rs 103 01
mellion (31 Murch 2025 Rs 97 62 mallion, 3U September 2024 Rs 93 90 mublion)

Flewr term loan of Rs 329 21 million (31 March 2025 Rs Nil million, 30 September 2024 Rs Nil million), Current matarties of Flexi term loan of Rs 22 28 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs Nil million, 30 September 2024 Rs Nil
million)

(1) Nature of securi :

| First and Exclusive charge by way of Equitable mortgage on the demareated portion of the fand admeasuring about 12.008 46 sq mtrs (2 96 acres) (de-nolificd SEZ Pontion) being a portion of the farger property together with the
Building No 11 consisting ol 3 basement 1 stilt. 1 (Parking + office) and 13 office floors adnieaswing about 6,02.456 sq N1 at the Buirower's SEZ/NON SEZ project comptising of 40 25 ueres land (g Property) beanmg Suey
No. 64 (part) being nnd situnted at Madhopw Village. Suilingmpally Mandul, Ranpa Reddy District. Hydeabad 500081

2 First and exclusive charge over the lease renlals (receivables) from tenunts of building no |1 siutated at Mindspace Cyberabad. Madhapur Hyderabad through an Escrow account

(2) Terms of repayment:

Repuyable in 136 staggered monthly instalments from 22 February 2023 The antire facility 1s vanable and cwrently carrics an ntaest rate for the year of 7 75% lo R 00% per annum (31 March 2025 8 00% per annum, 30
September 2024: 8 00% per annum)

Financtal Covenanls LTV of 67% to be maintained as fuwrthe specified in Transaction Docunents

Note 3: Lender HSBC Bank Bank Overdraft of Rs Nil mullion (31 March 2025 Rs Nil million, 30 Seplember 2034 Rs Nilunlhon)

(1) Nature of securitics:
Overdrafi linnt from Leader 1s seeured against Fixed Deposit

(2) Terms of repayment:
Bank overdiafl is variable interest 1ate faelity repayable on demand Rate of Interestis 9 60 % pan- for the vear (31 Much 2025 9 60% p u., 30 Septanber 2024 Nil).
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22A(vi) KRIT
Note I: Lender  UBI Rank Limtted Term Loun of Rs 2 239 26 nullion (31 March 2023 Rs 2 310 6 mullion. 30 Septembier 2024 Rs 2374 44 mullion) Current maturities of long-term debt of Rs 1353 18 million (3] March 20235
Rs 11115 million, 30 Scplembar 2024 Rs 94 14 mullion)

(1) Nature of securities:
Terms Loans from Lender is secured by way of Mortgage on Ihe project Land and Building of 3A and 3R

clustve chal ge by way ol hy pothecation vl the recervables from Bldg 3A and 3B having tolal leasable area of 0 44 mn sy fU
clusive chayge by way of morigage ova Bldg 3A and 3B along with proportionate undivided seght. title and interest on the fand
¢ DSRA equivalent to 3 months interest and principal

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repay ment m 144 monthly mstalnents upto 10 November 2035 Term Loan ts variable mterest rate facilits and carmies nterest rate ol 8 00% pa (31 March 2025- 8 40% pa . 30 Seplember 2024 8 30% pa)
‘Fimanciul Covenants - Secunity Cover of Minimum | 33x as further specified m Transaction Documents

Note 2: Lender - Axis Bunk Limuted Overdraft facility of Rs 1,280 48 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs 1,220 20 million, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 233 22 nulhen)

(1) Nature of securitics:

Overdiaft hout from Lender 15 secured with following

a) Exclusive chiu ge on Lhe entite assets. hoth movables (exchuding curent assets) and immoveable of the Borrowa i the Property, present and future
b) Exclusive seewr harge on the enbire current assets of' the Bonower 1n Gie Propaty. present and fuluee

) Property is delined as Bulding no 4A & B

(2) Terms of repayment:

Bunk overdrafl 1s variable wlerest rate facility and the overdrafl Timit will be reduced by 10% at end of Years 1.2 & 3 each. 20% at end of Year 4 and 50% at end of Year 5
Infcrest rale was rangng hetween 7 73% - 8 50% p a (31 March 2025 8 75% p 4 . 30 September 2024 8 75% pa)

Fmancial Covenants - Secunty Cover of Mimmum | 735 a3 furthet specified in Transaction Documents

22A(vii) KRC Infra
Note I: Lender TISBC Bank Limited Term Loan of Rs 2,996 31 nullion (31 March 2025 Rs 3 338 90 million 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 3,642 13 nulhion). Current matunties of long-tenn debt of Rs 643 84 million (31 March 2025
Rs 594 52 million, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 557 03 mullion) and Bank Overdraft of Rs 496 98 mullion {31 March 2025 Rs 331 93 nullion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 592 07 million)
Terms 1.oans from Lender 1s secured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R4

ure of securities:

clusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building fon R4

b Exclusive cha ge over recervables of Building R4

¢ Fived deposit pledaed (DSRA) equivalent o 3 months mierest and principal

n

(2) Terms of repayment:

Monihly repayments in 110 instaliments upta 10 February 2030 Tenn Toan carmies vanable mterest rate of 7 55% pa 108 23% pa (31 March 2023 & 25% pa, 30 Sepiemmber 2024 8 25% pa)
The overdvaft facility 1 payable an demand and carrics varsable mierest rate of 790% pa to 8 60% pa (31 March 2025 ¥ 60% p a, 30 Scptanher 2024 R 60% pa )

Fnancial Covenants : LTV of 60% as (wiha speeified in Transaction Documents

Note 2: Lender State Bank of India Term Loan of Rs 3841 %4 mullon (31 March 2025 Rs 3,904 63 mullion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 3,959 79 nublion), Cwrent matwities of long-term debt of Rs 113 70 million (31 March 20235
Rs 97.33 mullion, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 75 85 mullion) and Bank Ovardrait of Rs 220 61 mullion (31 March 2025 Rs Nl mulhion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 318 35 million)

(1) Nature of securil
a Exclusive Mortgage ovet Floor 1 2.34.5 12 and |3 of building R3 alongwith land apputenant thercto
b Exclusive charge over recervables Irom Floor 1234 5 12 and (3 of building R3

c Exclusive Mortgage over Floor 6 1o 11 of building R3 alongwath land appurtenant therelo
d Exelusive charpe over receivables from Floor 6 to L1 ol building R3

xed deposi pledged - DSRA equivalent to 3 months micrest and principal

(2) Terms of repaymienl:

Term loan of Rs 2,040 nulhon - Monthily tepayments in 181 instalments upto 31 March 2038 T'erm Loan carmes vanable interest 1ate of 8 33% pa (0 8 55% p a (31 March 2025:% 55% p a., 30 Seplember 2024 % 40% pa)
Term loan of Rs 2,100 nultion - Montlly repayments in 175 inslalments uplo 30 June 2038 Term Loan cames vanable interest rate of 6 92% pa 107 75% pa (31 March 2025:7 75% p a , 30 Seplember 2024 7 94% pa )

The overdialt facility 1s ropayable over 33 monthly mstalmunts starting fiom 31 May 2035 Ovadiaft [acility canes vanable interest rate of 8 35% pa 1o 8 53% pa (31 Mach 2025 835% pa 30 Septanbe 2024 840% pa)
Fianeial Covenants LTV of 70% and DSCR of | 13 as furthe specified in Transacuon Documents
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I Consolidated Fi il

C

Noles to Accounts
(All amounts in Rs, million unless atherwise stated)

22A(viity MBPPL

Note I: Lenda Bagay Housing Finance Lid Tenn Loan ol Rs 3769 80 nmulhon ¢31 Miuch 2025 Rs 3 78206 mullion 30 September 2024 Rs Nil million), Curvent matanbies af long-teom debtof Rs 18 20 mullion (31 Mareh 2023
Rs 14 38 million. 30 September 2024 Rs Nilnulhon)y

(1) Nalure of securities:

Term loan from Bayay [ lousing Finance 1id secured by

ed morlgage on the entne Building Nos: 3 and 11 situated at Kabwa TTC Industial Area, Mindspace Anoli-Tast, Navi Mumba

e by way of lypothe wables. hank accounls, casli-(lows geneiated/ansing from lessees present and fiture fiom bufding no 3 & 11

3Warst rankime pary passu charge by un the proportivnate ben tight, tile andinterest of the Bornower over all that prece and pareel of leaschald land bemg Plot no 3 aggregating 198,997 s its o ereabout
Iying beng and situated at village T ituated at MIDC TTC Industual Arca: Kalwa Navi Mumbin in the episteaton distnet Thane and registration sub-distiel Thane sub-urban

fion over all re:

v of mortgag
and Awaval Talul

(2) Terms of repayment:
Lenn loan of Rs 4230 million (31 March 2025 Rs 4.250 million: 30 September 2024 Rs Nil aithon) s obtaimed at varable mierest rate of 7 73% pa to 8 35% pa (31 March 2023 8 33% pa . 30 Seplember 2024 Nily and 15
repayable in 180 monthly mstallments

Note 2: Lender - Axis Bank Lunuted Working Capital Tenn Toan of Rs 709 4R million (31 March 2025 Rs Nil mullion. 30 September 2024 Rs Nil mullion) Bank Overdraft of Rs 380 91 millon {31 March 2025 Rs 94213
million, 30 September 2024 Rs Nilmullion)

() Nalure of sceuri
Overdraft bont / Working capital term loan (rom Lender 1s seeured with Tollowing
a) Exclusive charge on the entine assets: both movables tescluding cunent assels) and wnmoveable ol the Bonower in the Property. present and Tutwe and first pan passu ehange over the Tangar easehold land acea m Mindspace Aol

unty charge on the entue e ent o

S s of the Bonower in the Proparty. present and futwe
Property 15 defined 35 Btdg no [4 i Mindspace Airoh

Zust talongwith appurtenant land thereto) - wath leasable area of ~ 3 5 lakhs sq (G

(2) Terms of repayment:
Bank averdraft / Workmg Caputal term loan 1s repay abile on demand The rate of wterest dunng the pertod 157 75% poa to 8 50% pa (31 March 2025 8 25% p a ta 940% p a. 30 Septemher 2024 Nity
Funancial Covenants Scewnty Cover of Mimmum | 308 as (urther specified 1n Transaclion Documents

Lender Bank of Baroda Term Loan of Rs 2,580 27 million (31 Murch 2025 Rs 3,155 30 million, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs 3,225 84 milliony. Cuntent muaturitics of long-lerm debt of Rs 146 33 milhon (31 March 2025
57 milhon 30 September 2024 Rs 132 66 million) and Bank Ovadiattof Rs 914 89 miion (31 Muich 2025 Rs 206 73 nollon. 30 Seplemba 24024 Rs Nl mallion),

([} Nature ol securitics:

u) Ixelusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the entice Butlding Nos 5 & 6 consisting of sult. 2 parkiag floors and 8 office floors having a chargeable area of about 0 86 Mo sq 1 which 1s constructed on the larper piece of
hotd land known as Plot No 3 m the Kabwa Tudustrial Area within the village mits of 1than and Asravaly Taluka and registration sub-district Thane district and reg district Thane d by ad, 1,98 997
square meters o thereabouts along witl first par-passu charge on the Tand

leus

h) First and exelusive charge over the lease renfals (recevables) from lenants of bullding no 3&6 at Mind Space, Airali, Navt Mumbat, Distict Thane, Maharashtra throngh an Escrow account

(2) Termis of repayment:

Term doan of Rs 45010 million 1s obtuned at varmble wterest rate of 7 60% pato & 33% pa (31 March 2025 B 10% pato 8 35% pu. 30 September 2024 8 33% pa) wath monthly MCLR veset and 15 1epa
mstallments

e overdiatt facduty 15 repavable over 14 monthly wstallments staring flom 13 Junuary 2037 The Overdiatt faeahity canies va
2024 Niby

Fuancial Covenants DSCR of Minimum 1 10x as (urther speaiticd in Transacion Documents

l¢ in 168 monihly

able interest tate ol 760% pa o 8 35% pa (31 Macch 2023 8 10% pa - 8 35% pa 30 September

Note 4: Lender  Bandhan Bank Limited Workimng Capital Tean Loan of Rs 150 imillion (31 March 2025 Rs Nl imltion. 30 Seplember 2024 Rs Nl mullion). Ternm Loan of Rs 3319 31 mullion (31 March 2023 Rs 337567
mitlion, 30 Seplenber 2024 Rs Nit million). Current maturities of fong-term debl of Rs 128 84 mutlion (31 March 2025 Rs 127 21 miflion, 30 Septemnher 2024 Rs Nil mllion) and Bank Overdraft of Rs 43 29 milhon (31 March
2025 Rs N nullion, 30 Seplember 2024 Rs. Nil million),

(1) Nature ol securities:

Term loan ftem Bandhan Bank Ltd secured by

Ty Exelusive charge by way of registered mortgage over floors 1st1o 8t Bldg 1 and Muors Ground . 1st o 8ilv7th Bldg 12 situated at Mindspace Arelis I'TC Tndustoal Area MIDC Navi Mumbian

way of Hypotheeation over all ieeeivables. bunk accounts. cash-tlows gena ated/ansing from lessees present and futare from floors 1stt 8th, Bldg 1 and Noors Ground. Lst to 7. Bldg 12

irst rankig part paasu charge on the proportonate beneficiat mght. utle and mterest of the Borrower over afl that piece and parcel of leaschold land hemg Plot o 3 agpregating 198 997 sq mts or thereahout Iymg. beng and
stiuated atviltage Hihan and Arravale Taluka siuuted at MIDC TTC Industoat Area: Kalwa Navi Mumba i the registration distnet Thane and registration sub-district Thane sub-urban

£
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(2) Terms of repayment:

Term luan of Rs 3,750 nultion (31 March 2025 Rs 3,750 milhon, 30 Scplember 2024 Rs Nil million) 15 ablained at vaimable mlerestiale of 7 40% pa (o 840% pa (31 March 2025 8 404 pa. 30 Septemba 2024 Nily with
quinterly teset and s repavable in 144 monthly installments

F al Covenants Mimimum Cash flow vover of | 1 as fwther specilied in Transaction Documents

Note 5: Lender @ Lenda s Axis Bank Limited Tam Loan of Rs Nil imullion (31 March 2025 Rs Nil mulhion: 3 Seplemba 2024 Rs 1,463 90 million): Cunnent mastunties of long-lenn debl ol Rs Nil mullwn (31 Mawch 2025 Rs
Nil muliion. 30 Scplember 2024 Rs 263 27 mullion ). Bauk Overdraft of Rs Nul million (31 March 2025 Rs 942 15 imillion: 30 Sepiember 2024 Rs 1.191 79 million)

(1) Nature of securities:

Term loun and overdrafl from Axis Bank Luuted are secured by exclusne churge by way of morlpape of the building No 2, 7. 8 & 9 {only floer no 6,7,8) alongvith undivided witere
Airolt East Exclusie charge on tie prece and parcel of land at Arrol cast has heen modified (o pari-passu charge an entire land parcel and amended modification deed 1s 1n the process of executian
Iixelusn e charge on the fulwe cash lows of lease rentals (o be received fram and out of the Burlding 2,78, 9tonly oot no 6,7,8)

L the appurtenant land thereon at Mindspace

verdeafl it from Lender ts secured with tollowing
clusive charge on (he entire assets. both movables (excluding current assets) and immoseable of the Bortower in the Propaty. present and (utwe: and first pin passu charge over the larger leasehold land q e

in Mundspace Anoli

se from MIDC
v charge on the entire cwnent assels of the Bonowet in the Property. present and futwe
Property 15 defined as Bldg no 14 10 Mimdspace An ol Fast al h appurtenant land therete) - wath leasable arca of = 3 5 lakhs sq (1

(2) Terms of repayment:

Term loan ol Rs 3.000 million repayable 1o 168 monthly installments starting [rom 30 September 2018 The loan carmies interest rate of Nil (31 March 2025 940% pa, 30 Seplember 2024 9 40% pa)

Overdiafi ol Rs 500 willion repay able alongwilly the termi louns and caumies mterest vate of Nil (31 Match 2025 9 40% paa, 30 Seplember 2024 9 40% pa )

[erm Joan ol Rs 2.530 million repayable m 136 monthly installments starting fiom 27 March 2020 The loan eavies interest rate of Nil (31 March 2025 8 25% pa- 30 September 2024 8 25% pa ) payable monthly
Overdiall ol Rs 1,500 milhon repayable alungwith the tem loans and canics mterest rate of Nil (31 Maweh 2025 8 25% p a- 30 Seplember 2024 825% pa )

Overdiall [acility of 1450 million

Bunk overdrail repayuble on demand Financral Covenanls - Security Cover of Munmum 1 30x as further specified m Transaction Documents

The ahove Tenm Loan and overdrafl Lacility has been fully repaid dunng the previous year
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Noles to Accounts
(All amounts in Ry, million unless otherwise stated)

22A(iX) Sustain

22A(x)

228
22B(i)

22RB(ii)

Note I: Lendr Puyah National Bank Term Laan facilities of Rs Nil wilhon (31 March 2023 Rs 6 000 060 moilwon. 3 September 2024 Rs. Nil mulliun) meludig sublimt 01 of Rs Nl willion (31 Macch 2025 Rs 300 (0
million. 30 September 2024 Rs Nil million)

(1) Nature of securities:
= Exclusive charge by way of mortgage on Ieased Premi
Knn\\[udkg Cuty Randur p \|||.|y. 5-.n|mumpuli\ Mandal T

s ncluding prnporlmmlc undivided interest in Jand admeasuring 2 ¥4 Acres at Plot No 16/A/1 and 6 23 acres at plol No 16/A72 m Survey No 831 Tacated i 1Ty derabad

eivables Jnd cash lows) and movable lived assets both present und futwre, of the 1eased Prenuses
ange by way of by pothecation of entie current and movable (ixed assets, both presentand futwee, of M Lesed Pren

e on the eserow aceount

et rve Accaunt (DSRAY equivatent 1o 2 months peak princpal and interest 1o he created upfront and ehi ged i favous of the Lender

-Leased Prenuses Floors 1-8 and 19220 haying leasable area ol 8 83.797 sq (U Tower K of Comunerzone Madhapw situated al Ridw g Vidfage Madhapur. Fiteeh Cis Hyderabad consistwg of 2 Basements: 2 Sult and Ground

vice Re

(2) Terms of repayment:
180 unequal monthly mstallments starting from 31 January 2034 at an iterest rate of & 33% per annum (31 March 2035 R 53% per annum. 30 Seplember 2024 Nil)
Uhe tenm loan including overdraft is fully repaid during the half year ended Septanber 2025

Note 2: Lender Punjab Natonal Bank, Term Loan Fwilities of Rs Nil nudhon (31 Mach 2025 Rs 6,000 00 nulhion, 30 September 2024 Rs. Nit million) including sublinnt OD of Rs N nuihon (31 March 2025 Rs 500 b0
million, 30 September 2024 Rs Na nulhon)

(1) Nalure of securi
clusive change by way of morgage on 1
Knawledge City Rwdu g viltage: Sculingampally Manda
Ixclusive charge by way uf hy pothecation of enlire cutrent as

plat No 16/A72 10 Survey No 8371 located in Ty derabad

and movable fixed assets: ot present and future, of the Teased Prenises

arge on the escrow account
- Debt Servce Reserve Aceaunt (DSR A equivalent o 2 months peak principal and micrest ta be created upfront and charged in favour of the Lender
- T eased Premuses Floors 9-18 (loons having leasable area of 9,31,838 5q ftin Tower K of Commer zone Madhapur situated al Randurg Village, Madhapur 1hiech City, Tyderabad consisting of 2 Basanents 2 Sult and Ground

(2) Terms of repayment:
173 unequal monthly installments starmg fiom 31 October 2024 al an interest 1ate of 8 60% per annum (31 March 2025 8 3584 per annung, 30 Seplember 2024 Nl
The term loan wcludug vverdiald is Tally yepard dwing tie ball year ended September 2025

Mack Soft
Note f: Lender TIDIFC Baok Bank Overdiaft of Rs 33 46 nulbion 31 March 2025 Rs Nil nulhon. 34 Seplaniba 2024 Rs: Niluulbon)

(1) Nature of securiti
Overdralt limut from | ender 15 sceured agamst Freed Deposit

(2) Terms of repayment:
[is a vanable nterest ate Gacilaty , repayable on demand
The rate of interest dunng the peniod 15 7 00% 1o 8 23% pa (31 Manch 2025 Nil, 30 Seplember 2024 Nil)

Non- Convertible Dehentures and Bonds

In July 2022 Mundspace Business Parks RET issued 3,000 seniar, listed, rated, sceured, non-cumulative. taxable, translerrable, redeemable, nan-convertible debentures of face value of s 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten 1akhs Onlv)
per Debentwe for aggregate prineipal amount af up (o Rs 3 000 00 million (ndian Rupees Frve Thausand Million Only with a coupan rrie of 7 95% pa Coupon on the autstanding Nominal value al cach debentwe shall be
applicable and computed fiom day 1o day be protated on an actual/ actual basts for the actual numbes of days 1n the Coupon Penod and be payable in arrcars on the yelevant Coupon Payment date 1o the Debenture 1older whose name
al Owners as on the Record Date: The fiast Coupan payment Dale s 30 September 2022, wath last coupon payment on 1he scheduled redemption dade re 27 July 2027 The wnwe ol the said

15 appearmg on the Repister ol e
NCL denies 4 1s 00 months

Tins NCD Senes 4 was histed on BSE Limted on 29 July 2022

Sccurity terms

NCD Serzes 4 ae seewed by cach of the (ollowing seeurity i favour of the Debentwe Trustee (bolding for the benedit of the NCD 1olders):

a) Ficit ranking sole and exclusie seeunty nterest n way of an equitable morigage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq Ml binldimg 12D (identficd wnts u building) along with the common areas usage and acees nghts
appurtenant ta the wls mortgaged i Buldding 121 as mentioned 1n the trust deet. situated on & nottonally demarcated land adincasuring approximately 17414 77 square metres {equivalent Lo 4 30 acres) forming part of a portion of
land admessuring 1402 hectares equivalant 10 34 64 acres or thereabout declared as Special Teononue Zone  land from and out of the larger piece of land bearng Survey no Gd(part), lying, beng and sitwated at Madhapur Village
Serthingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy Thsinel. [ fyderabad

1) A charge on the eserow account has been ereated. n sl recevables of the Mortgaged Properties shull be everved. save and excepl any conumon ates mantenance chatges payable 1o Sundew with respeet o the maintenance of
the mortgaged properbies

c) Corporate guarantce executed hy Sundew Propertes I nmited

Redemiption ferms:

a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullel repay nient al the end of 60 manths {rom the dale of allotnent, 12 27 July, 2027

) Intexest is payable on the last day of cach financial guarter ina year (slarting tiom 30 Septeruber. 2022) until the scheduled jedemytion date

) The Coupon shall be mereased by 25 bps for every noleh downgrade in the rating by the Credil Ratmg Agency In casc raling 15 upgraded after any rating downgrade. the Coupan shall be decreased by 25 bps for cach upgrade

d) Upon occunence of a niundatory redempuion event, (e Debenture Trustee niay, by issuing not less than 30 (urty ) husiness days™ notice to the Tssuer require Qie [ssua 1o redeem in full, all the debentwies then outstanding by paying
an amount equal Lo the tolal manditory yedemption amount 1o respect of each debenture

On 13 Maich 2023. Mindspace Business Parks REIT assued 35,000 Green Debl Seeunities 1 the form of listed rated, seew ed none g
Bond 1) having nooinal value of Rs 1,00 00 lakh (Rupees One lakh only) cach, amounting to Rs- 3,500 00 millon {Rupees Five thousand Jm. humlrud nullions only) with a coupon
from the end of litst guarter fiom the dae of allotment 1e 15 Maich 2023, with Jast coupon payment on the schieduled 1edemption date re 13 Apnl 2026 The teauie of the said Mindsp:
tiom 135 March 2023, buing date of aliotment The date of payment of st coupon 15 31 March 2023

J bl rtible dt (“Mindspice REIT Green
e of 8U2% pa payuble quarterly begmming
REIT Gieen Bond 115 3 year und 30 day s

Mindspace REIT Green Bond | was bsted on BSIZ Lumited von 16 Manch 2023

Sceurily terms

Mindspace REIT Green Bond | are secured by each of the loflowing secunty in favow of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit ol the NCD Holders) as more particulmly desenbed in (he transaction documents. sanmaized
as lollows:

et of approximately 1 067 mullion squate feet or thereabouts i bwildings no 3B and 9 ol
L Lutle and mnteceshm () the oobonally demarcated land admeasuing approxmtately
mately 16.871 82 square mettes tequivalent to 4 17 acres) on which Building 915

) First and exelusne change registered by way of equitable morgape (ineluding recervables arsing theretiom) on the agpregate leasable
Madhapur Hyderabad (approx 245977 sq [ an buildiog no 313 und appiox 821,717 bulding no 9) togetser wath the propartionate undivided 1
7169 90 syuwe meles (equivalent 1 7717 acres) on which Building 5B 15 situated. and (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuting approy
sitwaled

DY A charge on Uie excron account m which ieeeivables ol the Mottgaged Praperties shall be payable to Tnimie Properties Linuted

c) Corporale puarantee execuled by Intime Properties Lumted

Ralemption terms:

) Mindspace REIT Green Rond | are redcemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 v ears and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of allotment bemmg 135 March 2023 and date of redemption bemng 13 April 2026)

b) [nteest is pay able on the last day of cach financial quiuter in a vear (staiting fiom 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled sedemption date and on the scheduled 1edemplion date
©) The Coupun shall be incicased by 23 bps for eveny noteh downgrade in the rating by the Credit Ratng Agency In case tabing 15 upgiaded afla any 1aling downgade: the Coupon shall be decisased by 25 bps [ cach upgrade

d) Upon veeurtence of i mandatory redemphion eyvent. the Debentwre Trustee may - by than 30 (Unrty) business day s’ notiee w Lhe Lssua require the Issua to tedeemon full bl te debentures then omstunding by pay mg

an amount equel to the total imaedatory redemption amount i respeet of ach debenture
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Cond

I Consolidated Financial §

Notes to Accounts
(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

22Btiv)

22B(v)

Tn June 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1ssued 30,000 hsted, rated, scewred, non-cumulative, taxable transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of Rs 100000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh anly | per
Debeniwe for aggregate principal amount of up o Rs 5,000 60 million (Rupees Five Thousand Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7 75% pa payable quaiterly Coupon on the eutstanding Nominal vatue of each debeniwe shall be
appheable and conmputed liom day Lo day - be provated on an actual/ actual basis for the aetuad number of days i the Coupon Penod and be payahle m anwars on the 1elevant Coupen Paynient date Lo the Debenture [older whose name
al Owners as on the Reeord Date The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023, with last coupon paymient on 1he scheduled redemplion date ve 30 Tune 2026 The tenure of the suid NC1

1s appearing on the Register ol Beneli

Series 615 3 vewr and 29 days

This NCD Senes 6 was listed on BSE Limited on 06 June 2023
Seeurity terms

ch ol the following seeunty 1n favuur of the Dehentwe Trustee tholdmg for the benefit of the NCT Toldus)

unity interest, by way of a repistered sunple mortgage on identified units in buldmgs 6, 7 and B of Commerzone Yerwada adding ta a cumulative carpel arca of approxunately 0 7msl across these
erzone Yeowada, Pune along wilh the commion areas, wsage and aceess 11ghts appurtenant (o the wals mortgaped n Buildings 6.7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, sutuated on a nolionally demarcated land
adimeasuing approximately 26,162 square melres , forming part of a poruon of land larger land admeasaring 1,03 919 square meties (alter deducting 21 square metres For 1oad from total extent of 103,940 square metres) at Village
Yerwada, Taluka 1lavel, Distiet Pune and witlin (e hinuts of Pune Mumicipal Comoration

L 1o the mauntenance of

pavable to Sundew with res

bY A chaige on the wserom accounl has been aieated, in which recervables of the Mortgaged Propaties shall be 1eceived, save and exeept any common arca niunlenance chs
the mongaged properiies

) Corporate guaraniee excculed by Mindspace Rusiness Parks Private Timited

4) NUD Series G are redeemable by way of bullel repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 day s from the date o allotment ¢ 30 June 2026
b) Interestis payable on the last day of each financial quante m a year (slarting fiom 30 Junc 2023) until the scheduled redenption date

s upgraded afier any rawng downgrade: the Coupon shall he decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade

) The Coupon shall be increased by 23 bps (or every noich downgrade i the rating by the Credit Rating Agency Tn case ralo

by 1sswng not [ess than 30 (tirty ) business days nobice Lo the Tssue requice the Issuer o redeem n full all the debentures then oulstanding by

d) Upon occunence of @ mandatory redemplion event the Debentwe Trustes ma
paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount i respeet of each debenture

cttible ol face value of Rs 1,00,000 lakh (Indian Rupees One Lakh
ible quarter by Coupon on the onstanding Nominal value of e

ce Business Parks RELT issued 30000 Disted, rated. seew ed, non-cumulatne, taxable, tamslenable,
egate principad amount of wp to Rs 3000 00 milhon (Rupees e Thousand Million Only) with a coupon rate of § 03% papay
tual basts For the actual number of days in te Coupun Puriod and be payable m amears on the relevant Coupan Payment date 1o the Debentuwre Hotda
ord Date The first Coupon Payaient Date 1s 30 September 2023 with Lust coupan payment on the seheduled cedanplion date e 10 Decamber 2026 The

In September 2023, Mindsps
only) per Debenture for gy
shall be applicable und compuled fiom day 10 day. be provated on an actual/
whose name 1s appearing on the Register of Beneticial Ownas as un the R
tenure of the said NCI Series 7 1s 3 vears and 3 months

h dehentne

This NCD Senies 7 was hsted on BSE Limued on 13 Scplember 2023
Security terms
NCD Seri

7 are sccured by cuch of the following security i favour af the Debenture Trustee (holdug for the henefit of the NCI 1Holders)
a) first ranking sole and exclusive seeunty interest. by way of an equitable mortgage on wentificd units n buildings 2A. 213 and 10 of Mindspace Madliapur adding to carpet arca of appt v 0 73 msf auioss these 3

buildings w bwldings 2A° 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed situated on o nobonally demareated 1and admeaunng approximalely 36 238 squue meties: bemg and situated af Mindspace Madhapin: Madhapur Village
Senlingampally Mand:) Rangi Reddy Distnet Hydeabad

) first rankmg sole and exclusive secunty interest by way of a hypathecation over Colleetion Account and Eserow Account and all amownts standing 10 the credit of o1 acerued ot acerumg on, recenables, movable assels pertuning lo

Mortgaged fmunovable Propartes as fwthe spealied i tansachon documents

©) Componate puarantee exeeuted by KRIT

Redemption (erms:

a) NCD Series 7 ane redeamable by way of bullel repayment at the v of 3 year and 3 months fiom the date of allotment 1 10 Deeember 2026

b Interest s pavable on the last day of each financral quarter m u year (starting from 30 Seplember 2023) unul the scheduled redemption date wuh fast payment falling on the scheduled redemplion date

rating 1s upgaded aller any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreised by 25 bps lor cuch upgrade

©) The Coupon shall be increased by 23 bps for cven nolch downgiade in the rating by the Credit Rating Ageney [n e

) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may, by 1ssumg nat less than 30 (Uurty ) business days notice o Lhe Issuer require the Iasuer o redeem m 1wl all the debentures then vutstanding by paying
n amount cqual (o the total mandatory redemption amount i respect of each dehenture

In Mageh 2024 Mindspace Business Park RN 1ssed 34 000 hsted yated seenred non-cumilative taxable ansferable redeenable: non-convertible debeniures of face value of Rs 100 000 lakh tIndian Rupees One Lakh only)
pur Debentwe for agy cgate principal amount of up Lo Rs 3 400 00 million (Rupees Thiee Thousand Fuw Hundied Million Only ) with  coupon rate of 7 93% pa payable quartarly Coupon on the outstanding Nomunat value of each
Jel 1 be apphieable and ! from day (o day be provated on an actual/ actual basis for the aciual number of days 1 the Coupon Penod and b pay able in anvears on the elevant Coupon Payment date to the Debentwe
Toldes whose mame 15 appeanng on the Regista of Bonetiont Owners as on the Record Date The First Coupnn Pay ment Date was 341 Maich 2024, with Jast coupan payment on the scheduled redemption date s 20 March 2027 The
tenure of the ssid NCD Senes 8 18 3 vears

sl

Mus NCD Senes 8 was hsted on BSE Lunuted on 22 Murch 2024

Sceurity (erms

NCD Series B are secured by cach of the following secunty m favour af the Debenture Trustee (holdg for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) lirst ranking sole and exclusive seewity interest. by way of an cquitable mortgage on identafied units 1n building no. | 4 and 5 and Amenity building of Commerzone Yerwada adding 10 2 cumulatie leasable arca of approxmately
1155 msl and carpet arca ol ¢ 043 msl situated on & notonally demarcated lund admeasuwing approsunately 27 826 syuate mclies: being and sitwated at Village Yerawada. Taluka Tavel Distoet Pane and within the hmits of Pune
Mumerpal Corporation

les. movabl

sels pertaimng

Y fust ranking sole and exclusi urity interest by way of a simple mortgage over Collection Account and Escrow Accaunt and all amounts standing Lo the credit of o1 acerued ot aceruing on. re

Lo Martgaged [mmoyable Properties as further specilied in transaction documents

c) Corporale puarantee exceuled by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limued

Redemption terms:

4) NCD Senes 8 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment ut the end of 3 year from the date of allounent1e 20 Murch 2027

) Inteaest s payable on the last day of cach financial quarter i a year (stuting Grom 31 March 2024) untl the selieduled redemption date swith last payment falling on the selieduted redemption date

€) The Coupan shall he mereased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade i the rating by the Credit Ratig Agency I ease ratng 1s upgraded afler any rating downgrade. the Coupan shall be decreased by 23 bps fr cach upgrade

d) Upon vceun ence of @ mandatory redempuion event. the Debenuwe Trustee may, by isswing not less than 30 (thirty ) business day s” notice (o the Issua requue te Issua to redeem i (ull all the debentuwees then outstanding by pay ing
an amount cqual (o the total mandatory redamption amount i respeel of each debenture




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
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Cond.

| Consolidated Financial

Notes (o Accounts

(A1l amounts in Rs. million unless othe

22B(+i)

22B(vii)

22B(viii)

slated)

cured non-cumulative, taxable, iransferrable, redeemable, non-conyertible debeniures of face value of Rs 1,00,000 00 (Indian Rupe

In May 2024, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 50,000 histed rated, s One 1 akh only) per
Debenture for aggregate principal ameunt of up to Rs 5,000 00 nullon (Rupees five thousand million Only ) with a coupon rale of 7 96% pa payuble quattaly Coupon on the autstanding Nommal value of cach debenture shall be
appheable and computed from day 1o day  be protated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of day s in e Coupon Perod and he pay able in anears on the relevant Coupon Pay ment date (o lhe Debentwre Tolder whose name
peanng on the Repister of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon Payiment Date was 30 June 2024, with last coupon payment on the sehieduled redeniption date ¢ F1 May 2029 The tenure of the sad NCIY
11es 915 4 vers and 364 davs

This NCD Series 9 was hsted on BSE Limited on 14 May 2024

Security lerms

NCD Series 9 are secured by each of the following secunty m favour of the Dehenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Tolders)

a) fnst 1ankmg sole and exclusive seew ity nteiest. by way ol a simple mortgage on 30,700 squine metres of kind (etemed 1o as Plol B Land and Plot C Land) ogether with e commeretal and [ buitding as furtha desenbed in the
trust deed situated at 7. Ahnednagar Road. Village Vadpaon Shere Taluka Tlavel Distiel Pune

hy A charge over Collection Aceount and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the crednt of o acermed o acerumg one recervables: movable assets pertammg o Mortgaged Imnovable Properties as [uher speeilied in
Lransaction docwnents

) Corpurate guarantee exeeuled by Mindspace Rusiness Parks Private Timited

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Senes 9 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 4 years and 362 day s from Lhe dale of alloument te 11 May 2029

1) Intarest 1s pay able on the Jast day of each financial quarter ina year (starting lrom 13 May 2024) unul the scheduled redemption date with ast payment [alling on the scheduted redemipion date

¢) The Coupon shall be mercased by 23 bps for every notch downgrade i the ratmg by the Credit Rating Agency Tn case ratmg 1s upgraded after any raling downgrade the Coupon shall he decreased by 23 bps for cach upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemplion event, the Debenture Trustee may, by tssuing nol less than 30 (Uurny) business days” notice Lo the Tssuer require the Tssuer 1o redeem i (ull. al! the debentures then outsianding by paying
an amount cqual 1o the total mandatory tedeinption amount w respect of vach debenture

s Park REIT wssued 63000 hisled, rated, secured non-cumulative taxable, transferrable, iedecmable. non-comv e tible debentines of 1 alue of Rs 100000 (Indian Rupees One 1 akh only) per
11y Coupon on the oulstanding Nonunal value of cach debemure
wns on the relevant Coupon Payment date (o the Debentwe Tolde

Tn June 2024, Mindspace Busi
Dehentue for aggregate pineipal amount of up to Rs 6 500 00 million (Rupees six thousand five hundred mitlion Only) witl a coupon sale of 7 94% pa payable qu
shill be appheatle and computed fiom day (o day, be prorated on an aetual/ aciual basis for the actual nuntber of days m the Coupon Period and e pay able m an
o the Recund Dite Tl it Coupeon Payment Date was 30 June 2024, it st soupon payment on (e scheduled redemption dae te 24 June 2031 The tenue of
sustanallity hoked debenture with provisions (i step down ol caupun bisis of Lugels The et ilso hits Iy Redemption Date as Jurther deseribed

whowe name is appearing on the Register of Benelicul Owner
the smd NCD Seies 1013 7 years The debentw ¢ issued wi
i Lhe 1especthive binsachon documents

This NCI Sertes 10 was bsted on R

E L inited on 26 June 2024

Security lerms
NCD Series 10 are secured by cach of the following secutily in [avou of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the henefit of the NCD | lolders)

a) first rankmg sole and exclusive secunty mtetest, by way of an cquitable morigage on Wentficd umts im buddings 128 and 12C of Mindspiace Madhapur adding o a cumulatise carpet area of approximately 0 86 sl camet area ton
leasable area — |13 msty acioss these 2 buildings as mentioned w the trust deed. situated on 1 natonally demarcated land sdmeaswing approxmately 29157 16 syumne meties: besng and situated at Mindspace Madbhapiu. Madhapu
Village Senhngampally Mandal. Ranga Reddy Drstuel Iydaabad

1) first ranking sole and exclusne ol a hypothecation i Colleclion Account and Eserow Account and all amounts standing o the credit of o aeaued v acerung on, receivables. movable
Muortgiged Immovible Properte
) Corporate guarantee execuled by &

Is pertmiung lo

further specified w tamsaction documents
ndew Propertes T imned

Redemption term:
a) NCD Seres 104

sedeemable by way of billetrepay ment at Uie end of 7 yeis from the date of allotmentr e 24 Junc 2031
by Interest 1s payable on the last day of cach financial quarter m a year (startmg (rom 25 June 2024) unul the scheduled redemplion date with Fast pay ment fallmg on the seheduled redemption date

) The Coupon shall he increased by 23 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credut Ratng Ageney' In case raung 1s upgraded after any raing downgrade the Coupon shull be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upen nceurrence af a mandatory redempiion event. the Debenture Truslee smay, by 1ssumg not less than 30 (thirty ) husiness days notice (o the Tasuer require due Tssuet (o redeemn falt all the debentures then oulstanding by paying
wunennl eausl (o1 datan redemplinn amonnt m respeet af each debenting

) The debenture issued was
desaribed in tie respeetive bansaction docunienis

1t o
sustainability inked debenture with provisions for step dowm of coupon busis achicvement of 1denufied ESG targets The debenture also has an Early Redemphion Date on 31 December 202K as Tunher

In November 2024, Mmdspace Business Parks RIETT ssued 50 000 histed raled secured. non-cumulative: Laxable. ransfenable: redeanable. non-comvertble debentures of face value of Rs 100,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only)
per Debenture For aggrepate principal amount of up to Rs 3 000 00 million (Rupees ive tousand mllwon Only ) with a coupon rate of 7 70% pa payable quurterly. Caupon on the outitanding Nomenal value of each debenture shall he
applicable and computed from day to day. be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Penod and be payable m arrears on the relevant Coupon Paymunt date ta the Debenture Tolder whose nane
15 appearing on the Register of Benelicial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon Payment Dale was 30 Decamber 2024, with last coupon payment on ihe scheduled redemption date (¢ 18 February 2028 The tenure of the
sitd NCD Smes 1115 3 years 2 months and 24 diy s

Tlis NCD Series | was lisied on 3¢

imited on 26 November 2024

Security terms

NCD Senes 1 aie secured by cacli ol the fotlowing seeuaty in favow ol the Debentwe Trustee (holding (o the benefis of tie NCI Tolders)

a) [irst ranking sole and exclusive secunty mterest. by way of an equitable mortgage on identified umts i buildings 6 and 9 of Mind: Madl adding 1o a c carpet arca of approxmalely 503 032 s{ carpel srea (or
leasable arca — ¢ 0 67 msf) across hese 2 buildmgs as mentioned 10 the trust deed. siated on 2 netwnally danarcated land adincaswring approxumately 16 871 82 square metres. hemg and sitaaled at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur
Village, Senlingampally Mandal. Ranga Reddy Distriet, 1Ty derabad

b) first rankmyg sole and exclusive sccurity nlerest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or acerued or acerumg on, recenvables. movable assets pertaining Lo Mortgaged
Tmmovable Propeties as lurther specified 1n hiansaction documents

) Corporale guarintee exceuled by Inime Propertees Linnted

Redemption terms:

) NCD Senies 11 arc redeemable by way of hullel repayment at the end of 3 years 2 months and 24 days from the date of allotment 1 ¢ 26 Nevember 2024

b) lnterest 1s payable on the last day of cach linancial quarter n 2 Larlmg trom 26 November 2024) until the scheduled redempuon date with Jst payment falling on the scheduled redemption date

c) The Coupon shall he increased by 23 bps for every nolch downgrade 1n the rating by the Credil Rating Agency Tn case ralmg 1s upgraded after any rating downgrade the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for cach upgrade

d) Upon of a mandatory redermy event, the Debenture Trustee may, by 1ssuing not less than 30 (thirty ) business days™ nolice Lo the Issuer require the [ssuer to redeemim full. all the debentures then outstanding by payng
an amount equal to the tolal mandatory' redemphion amount n respect of each debenture




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond

1 C lidated Financial

Noles to Accounls
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

22B(ix)

22B(x)

22B(xi)

In May 2025 Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1ssued 60,000 histed, raled, seeured, non-cumulative. taxable, transterrable. redeemable, non-comertible debentures of face value of Rs 1.00,000 (Indun Rupees One T akh only) per
Debenture o aggregate principal amount of upta Rs 6,000 00 mullion (Rupees six thousand mithon Only) with « coupon rate of 7 20% pa payable quartaily. Coupon on the outstanding Nommal value of each debenture s
apphicable and camiputed fiom day 10 day, be prorated on an actualictual basis for the wetal number af days i the Coupon Period and be pay abte in aneas on e relevant Coupon Pay ment date (o the Debenture Flolder whose nanie
15 appeaning on the Regster of Benelical Owners as on the Record Date The tirst Coupon Payment Date 15 30 fune 2023 wath last coupon payawent on the scheduled redeniption date 1e 10 May 2030 The tenure of 1he said NCT
Scites 1215 4 years 362 davs

s NCD Series 12 was hsted on BSE Linited on 13 May 2025

Sceurity terms
NCD Seties 12 cured by cach of the ollowing sceunity i favou of the Dehentwe Trustee (holding for the benelit of e NCT Lokl
a) first ranking solc and exclustve secwity merest, by way of an cquitable mortgage on dentified units in buldings no 3 (R1) of Asset SPV | - KRC Infiasuuctw e and Projects Provate Linuted housing asset = Commerzone Khaads
and in building 3. 4. 6 & 7 of Assel SPV 2 — Mindspace Business Parks Prvate Lunited = housing: Commerzone Yerwada adding to a cumulative carpel avea of approsimately 383 413 sl eampet aea ton leasable aea = ¢ 0 773 msty
acioss these 3 buildings as mentwoned in the trust deed

by st ranking sole and usive sceunty inlerest exclusive secwty inlerest by way of i ey
©) Camporate gmarantee executed by KRC Infrastructure and Projects Prvate hinited as Assel SPV -1 and by Mindspace Busin

v ed simple mortgage n fivow uf the Debentine Trustee for the benedit of the Debentwe Tolders
s Parks Private Timited as Aswet SPV -2

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Seres 12 are redeemable by way of bullel repay ment at the end of 4 years 362 duys from the date of alloument 1 e 13 May 2025

1 Interest vs payable on the last day of cach finaneral quarter in a year (starling fram 13 May 2025) uniil the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling on the scheduled redemption date

) The Coupan shall be incr ¢ 25 bps for every motch downprade in the ratng by the Credit Raung Agency In ease 1ating is upgraded afier any ratng downgrade: the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for cach upgrade

&) Upon accurtence of @ mandatory redemption event, the Debentute Trustee may, by 1ssuing not less than 30 (Ui Y business days” notice to the Issuer require the Issuar 1o redeemn full, all the debentures then outstanding by pay ing
an amount equal to the 1o1al wandatary redamphion aniount m yespeet of cach debenture

In August 2025, Mindspace Business Park RETT ssued 35,000 bisted 1ated secwed. non-cumulative taxable. wansfenable redeemable: non-com eitible debentures ol face value of Rs 100000 (Jndian Rupees One Lakh anly i peu
Debenture for ageregate prinepal amount of uplo Rs 3 500 00 multion (Rupees five thousand Jive hundied millson Only) with a coupon 1ate of 7 #1% pa pavable semi-annually Coupon on the owstanding Nominal value of ¢ach
debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day . be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number ol days m the Coupon Pened and be pavahle m arrcars on the relevant Coupon Payment date o the Debenture
FHolder whose name 1s appearmg on the Register of Benefical Owners as on the Record Date: The first Coupon Payment Date 15 31 December 2025 wath Last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date 1 ¢ 19 August 2033
‘The tenure of the said NCD Series 1313 8 years The issued was v limked debenture with provisions for step down of caupon has

chievement of targels

This NCD
Seeurily (erms

NCD Senes 13 are seeured by cacl of the following seeunity in tasow of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benetit ol e NCD Flolders)
) First ianking exelusive mortgage over the nglts btle. benelit. and interest of the Asset SPV -Sustain Propecties Private Limited housing
627 112 sl capet anea (o leasable area — ¢ 0 836 msf) m the burlding as mentioned i the trust deed an respect of the Mongaged Immo cable Propertics by
benehit ol the Debentwe Flolders). over the Mortgaged Immoveable Praperties m accordance with the leoms of the relevant Moigage Documents. to seeute the Deht and

b a firstranking exclusive hypathecation over te over the nghts tte henefit and mierest of the Asset SPV with respect to the §lypothecated Properties in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the henefit of the Deheiture Tlolders) m
accordunce wuh the terms of the Deed ol Ty pathecation 1o secure the Dehl

nies 13 was listed on BSE Lumited on 21 August 2023

sset Commerzone Rudurg in K Towa adding to a v carmel area al apy I\
y of an equitable mangape in favowr of the Debentwe Trustee (o the

Notw ithstanding any thing to the contrary stated hereunder. the Issuer undertakes that the Asset SPV - Sustain Properiies Private Limuted shall continue ( be the sale legal and beneficial owner ol the Secured Assets held by 1t fiee of
any Fncumbiance and shall not save and exeept amy Permtted Drisposal, sell, iransfer, 1edeem o otherwise dispose off any assets of any membher of the Group (RELT) without the pror approval of Debenture Trustee

) Corparate guarantee exceuted by Sustam Propeities Private Limited

Redemption terms:
@) NCIY Senes 13 wre redeemable by way of bullet repay ment at the end of B years [rom the date of alloiment 1 ¢ 20 August 20235
by Intrest s pay able on the Tast day of June and December each yea (stading Jiom 20 August 20235 until the sehoduled edemption date with Tast pay meat falling on the schedaled redemption date

an amount equal 1o the total mandatory redemplion amaunt w respeet of each dehenture
©) The dehenture issued was sustainabihity Tinked dehenture with provisions for step down of coupon basis aclyey ewnent of identified 195G targets

[0 Seplember 2023 Memdspace Business Pack RIETT issued 60 K3 bisted. sated seeured non-cumulatve. asable transtenahle: reds bl com ertable del ol face valie of Rs 106000 (Tndian Rupees One Lakh onlv)
pa Debentwe for ageregate poneipal amount of upto Rs & (400 09 mulhoas (Rupees six thousand mullion Only) with a coupon rate of 7 00% p o payable quarterly Coupon on the outstanding Nomal value of each debenture shall be
applicable and computed (rom day 1o day - be prorated on an actval/ actual basts for the actual vumber of day s m the Coupon Penod and be payuble w arrears un the televant Coupon Payment date to te Debentue [older whose name
15 appearig on the Regster of Renclicial Owners as on the Recard Date The first Coupon Paymeant Dale 15 30 Seplember 2023 with last coupon paymenl on the scheduled redemption date 1e 14 September 2027 The (enure of the
sutd NCD Sertes 1415 2 years This NCD Senes 14 was histed on BSE Lunuted on 16 Scplember 2023

This NCD Sences 14 was hsted on BSE Limited on 16 Scplember 20.

Security terms

NCD Senes 14 are secured by cach of the (ollowing secunty in fuvow of the Debentwe Trustee (holdis
a) A sole and exclusive (st ranking mortgage and charge over all lhe nghts, ttle, benetit and inte;
cumulative carret area of approsimately 727531 st carpet avea (or leasable area — ¢ 0 935 msl) ac buildings as mentioned 1n the irust dead in respect of the Mortgaged Tmmo eable Propert
b) A first ranking pari passu mortgage and charge over the Mortgaged Land: and « sole and exclusive (st rankmg mortgage and eli ge over all the tights. utle 1nterest and benefit of the Asset SPY - Gi
mrespect of the Mortgaged Mos eable Propaties by way of a registered simple mortgage in favow of the Debenture Trusted for the benefit ol the Debenture Hotdas

©) Corporate guarantee exeeuted by Gigaplex Estate Private Limuted

o1 the benelit of the NCD Holders)
ol lhe Assel SPV — Gigaplex Estate Prvate Limled housing asset Mindspace Anolt West and in butlding 2 & 10 adding to a

plex Estate Private Limited

Redemption terms:

) NCD Senes 14 arc redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 2 years from the date of allotment 1 ¢ 15 September 2025

1) Interesl 1s pay able on the Tast day of cach financial quarter in a Year (starting fiom |3 Seplember 2023) untl the scheduled redemption date with last payment Fulling on the scheduled redemption date

) The Coupon shall be increased by 23 bps for every nolch downprade in the rating by the Credit Raing Agency In vasc 1aling is upgraded after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be deercased by 25 bps Jor cach upgrade

) Upan occurience of 3 mandatory redemplion exent, the Debenture Trustee may, by 1ssumg not less than 30 (thirty ) business duy s* notice (o the Tssuer require e Issua to redeen i full, all thie debentures then outstanding by paying
an anount ¢yual v the total mandatory redemphion aniount m respect of each debenture

Refer Nute 284 for ratln diselisure




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
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Cond I Ci i | Financial 8
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

3 Qiher firanclal labilities (Noo-curiont)

Parllculars As at Adat Axat
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Seeunty deposits 333376 394723 3353832
Retention money pay able
= due o micio and small enterprises 340 24359 4294
- others 17834 104 24 A8 R4
Capial credinons
- Due Lo micra and small cnterprises - - .
= Othurs - 2113 4227
409719 NATE AT
2] Fron bjuns (Non-currenty — —
erlary Asal As at As at

30 Soprember W15

31 March 2025

30 Septembier 2024

Pravision for employce henefits
- gratuity 068 2703 3231
- leave eneashment 1467 1314 1662
Other Provision (reier nole 40(8)c)} 20664 2664 2664
7199 66 81 7577
25 Deferred las ki
Particulars As al Asal As al
Jirs et 2025 31 March 2025 30 Sepiember 202
Deferred tas tabiliies S61195 7360 3 4300
S5 4301 1w
26 Other non-current fuhitities _
Particulury Asal A at Asal
Jil Beptembner 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Unearned rent RO4 11 38514 381 %9
Other advance U6y 076 - 002
#9480 5500 38191
27 Botrawlog (Curreni)
Particulars Asat As al Axal

3k Seplember 2025

31 March 2025

it Sepitembmr 2024

Seeureil:
Loans repayahle on demand

= Overdiaft fiom banks (Refia note 22A) 309604 470203 332291
- Warking capilal term loun [rom Axis Bank and Bandhan Bank Limited (Refer note 859 4%
22A(vui} Note 2 and Nole 4)

At amartised cost
Seewed Disted, semon. taxable non - I ritted. 1 bl 1ible 4.995 3%
debentures (NCD Series 3) {net of 1ssue expenses) (Relen note 27A0))
Secwed Disted, rated, secwed lative: laxable, tansferable. jedeeniabl 349378
non-comertible debentwes (*Mimdspace REIT Green Bond 17) tnet ol 1ssue
expenses) (Refer note 2213(n))
Secured histed raled non-cumulative taxable trunsicrable redeem thle non- 499331
convertible debentures (NCT Series 6 (net of 1ssue expenses) (Refer note 22R(m))

Unsecured:
~Commercial Paper (Senes-3) (31 March 2025 Nil nullion, 328713
30 Seplember 2024 Rs 3,287 13 million) (Reler note 27B(i))
-Commercial Paper (Series<) (31 March 2025 Nil mulhion, - 1,473 05
30 Seplemba 2024 Rs 1,473.05 nullion) (Refer note 273(in))
~Commercial Paper (Senes -5) (31 March 2025 Rs 947 70 nulhon, - 94770 947 70
30 Neplember 2024 Rs 947 70 mulhion) (Refer note 27B(un))
-Commercal Paper (Senes 6y {31 March 2025 Rs 4,913 61 muthion, - 4,913 61
30 Seplember 2024 NimullionT) (Refer note 27B(1v))
-Commereial Paper (Senies=7) (31 March 2025 Rs Nil nullion. £ -
30 Scplember 2024 Nil mullion) (Refer note 27B(x))
-Commereial Paper (Senes-8) (31 March 2025 Rs Nil milhon, 1,946 50 + -
30 Seplember 2024 Nil mullion) (Refer note 27B(w))
~Comnmercial Paper (Senies-9) (31 March 2025 Rs Nilmillion, 3,123 90 - E
30 September 2024 Nil mulhon) (Refer note 27B(vu))
-Commeretal Paper (Senes-10) (31 March 2025 Rs Nil miltion, - -
0 September 2024 Nil million) (Refer nate 27B(viu))
~Commercial Paper (Series-11) (31 March 2025 Rs Nil imihon. 340976 -
A0 September 2024 Nl mullion) (Refer nole 27B(x))

“Term bivan from hanks and financial institution
~{rom hanks (Reler nole 22A) 1,631 04 1,614 61 1,468 43
~{rom olher parlies (Refer note 22A) 146 32 13397 11234
~ftex1 term loan fromi othar parties (Refian note 22A) 2228 =
~{rom other related party (Refer note 27Bix)) - 20918 -
=lrom body (Refet note 27B(x)) - 247146 -

30,722.41 14.992 36 13.6U6 94
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Cond.

l C idated Financial

Notes o Aceounts
{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

27A
27AG)

27B
27B(i)

27B4i)

27B(iii)

27Biiv)

27R(v)

27BGi)

27B(viil)

27B(iv)

27B(x)

28

Non-Convertible Debentures

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REET 1ssued 5 001 semiorn, listed. 1ated secwed. nonsumulative. taxable. wiansiens i bl vertible det 17NCD Series 37) having Juce value of Rs 10,00 000
{Rupees ten lakhs only) each. amountng to Rs 5,000 00 miltion (tndian Rupees five thousand mudlion Only) with a coupon rate of 6 33% pa Coupon on the outstanding Nomwal value of each debenture shall be appheable and
computed from day to day be prorated on an aciwal/ actual busis for the actual number of days 1n the Coupon Penod and he payable 1n arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date Lo the Debenture Tolder whose name 1s appeanng un
the Regrster of Benelicial Owners as on the Record Dale The Tssuer herehy aknowledges and agrees thal there shall be no moratorium penad for the payment of Coupon The first Coupon payment Date s 31 March 2022 wath last
coupon payment on (he scheduled redemption dater ¢ 31 December 2024 The tenure of the sad NCD Scries 315 35 months fram 01 February 2022, being date of allotment

[Tis NCD Senes 3 was histed on BST Limited on 04 Februuy 2022

Sceurity lerms

securcd by cach ol the followig secunty i favour of the Dehenture Trustee (holdng for the benetit of the NCD Tolders)

ered by way of simple mortgage on the earpet arca of approxmately 552,974 Sq Ft ( save and execpt entire 2nd Moor admeasuning 11,883 8q FI carpet arca m bulding no 2) (the huilding
, m Buldimg 2 wgether with all the beneficial rights title and mterest of the Assets SPV n appurtenant (o Budding 2 and all
The Building 2 1s situaled on a portien of the Mortgage [and admeasuring 8 04 Tectares, which partion 1s nonficd pecral Ticonomic Zone & fiist and vxelusive chape beng tegistered by way ol simple morlgage on the identified
units with aggrepating o capet atea ol approximately 4,61,527 Sq Ft (identified umis of building no 3 ) suuated on e Mort and along with proportionate coveted and open parking spaces, 10 Building 3 togelhar with alt the
benefieial rights, ttle and intarest of the Assets SPV n appurtenant 1 Building 3 and all erections (- Mortgaged Proparties™) of NCD Serics 3 as (urther detailed in ransaction documents

« charge hemg e
no 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking sp:

cclions

a) first ranking pari passu charge by way of a sunple moigage ever the Morlgaged Land as furtler detaled i transaciion documents

b) A charge on the escraw account as been created. i which recervables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be recerved save and excepl any common arca mamleninice charges payable to Gigaplex with respeel (o the mainlenance of
the mortgaged propertics

) Corporale guarantee excented by Gigaplex

Redemption terms

1) NCD Senes 3 ane redeemable by way of hullet sepayiment at the end ol 33 months from the date of allotment 1e 31 Deeenber 2024 and accardingly the sanie has been classificd as canent matunities of long lenmn bunowings as on
0 Septembier 2024

b) Interest1s
¢) The Coupur
d) Upon oceurrence of 4 mandatory redemption exint, the Debenture Trustee may, by
an amount cqual ta the total inandatory: redemption amaount m respect of cach debenture

stday ol cach financial quarler a year (stacung (rom 31 March 2022) untl the scheduled redemption date
sed by 23 bps for eveny nuteh downgrade i the ratmg by the Credit Rating Agency In case ratmg 15 upgraded after any ratng downgrade. the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for cach upgrade
ung not less than 30 (Uxrty) business days nalice Lo the [ssuer require the Tssver lo redeen  full all the debentures then outslanding by pay ing

Commercial Papers

On 26 April 2024 Mindspace Busiess Parks REIT 1ssucd 7.000 Comumercral Papers wath a face value of Rs 5.00.000 (Rupees (ive Takhs only) cach. al a discount of 7 75% per anmum o the face value The discounled amount rarsed
by the REIT through MREIT CP Scries 3 was Rs 3,287 13 mallion (Rupees (hree thousand two hundred eighty-seven milban ane hundred twenty six thousand five hundred only} and the vatue payable on matuniy was Rs 3,500 00
milfion (Rupees three thowsand five hundred miblion enly) Discount on Commercial papers was amortized over the tenor of the underly ing nstrument The conumereral papers were bisted on BSE and were repaid on 25 February 2023

On 22 August 2024, Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1ssued 3,000 Commereral Papers with a face value of Rs 3,00,000 (Rupees five Jakhs only} cach, at a discount of 7 42% per annum (o the face value The discounted amount
ransed by the T through MREIT CP Senes 4 was Rs 1,473 05 imllion (Rupees one thuusand (our hundred seventy three nulhon forty mne thowsand {ive hundred only) und the value payable onaturay was Rs 1,500 00 million
(Rupecs One thousand five hundied million only) Discount on Cammereal papers was amortized over the tenor of the under lying instrument The commereial papers wee listed on BSIE and were matured on 20 November 2024 and
accordinghy the same were redeemed

On 25 Septemher 2024 Mindspace Rusiness Parks REIT tssued 2,000 Cominereral Papers with # fuce value of Ry 5,00,000 (Rupees (ive lakhs only } cach, at a discount of 7 93% per annum Lo the face value The discounted amount
ratsed by the REIT (hough MREIT CP Series 5 was Rs 947 70 mallions (Rupees nine hundied forty seven million seven bundied wa thousund only) and the value payable on matunly was Rs 1,000 00 miliions (Rupees one thousand
million only) Discount on commercial papers was amortized over the tenar of the underlymg instrument. The commeretal papets were listed on BSE and were repaid on 6 June 2025

value  The discounted amount
100 00 muthons (Rupees (e

On 20 February 2025, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 10,000 Commerenal Papers with a face value of Rs 500,000 (Rupues five lakhs only) cach, at a discount of 7 55% per anaum to the §
rinsed by e RET through MRETT CP Seties 6 was Rs 4913 61 millions (Rupees four thousand nine hundred thirteen milbon six hundied ten thousand only bind the vadue payable on matuirty was Rs 3
thousand mllion only) Discoual on Commercial papers was amortized over lhe tener of the underly ing instrument. The commereral papers were listed on BSE and were repaid on 16 Mav 2025

On 2R April 2025 Mindspace Rusmess Packs REIT 1ssued 12 000 Comimercial Papers with a face value of Rs 500 000 {Runces [ive lakhs onlv) each al a discount ol 6 73% per anoum Lo the face value The discounted amount
raised by the REIT through MREIT CP Scries 7 was Rs 3,873 99 million (Rupees Five thousand cighi hundred seventy three million nine thousund mune hundred only) and the value payable on matunty was Rs 6,000 00 millon
(Rupees Six housand nulhion only) Discount on Commercial papers was amoruzed over the tenor af the underlying instrument The conunareral papers were histed on BSE and were repad on 22 August 2025

On 23 June 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 4,000 Commercial Papas with a face value of Rs 3,00,000 (Rupues five lakhs only ) cach, at a discount of 6 35% per annum o the face value  The discounted amount 1aised
by the REIT tuough MREIT CP Scries 8 was Rs 1,946 50 nullion (Rupees oac thousand mine lundied oty six nuthon fifty thousand only) and the value payable on matwnty 15 Rs 2,000 001 nullon (Rupecs two thousand nullion
only) Discount on Commercial papers 1s amurtized ovar the tenor of the undetlymng istrument. The commercial papers were hsted on BSE and wll mature on 28 November 2023

On 21 July 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1ssued 10,800 Comunereial Papers with a face value of Rs 500,000 (Rupces five lakhs only) each, at a discount af 6 41% per annum (o the face value The discaunted amount rased
by the REIT through MREIT CP Senies 9 1s Rs 3, 90 nullion (Rupees five thousznd one hundred twenty-three nullion minety thousand only) and the value payable on maturity 15 Rs 3,400 00 milhon (Rupees five thousand four
hundred million only) Discount on Commuctal papers 1s amortized over the lenor of the underlying instrument The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will mature on |3 May 2026

On 03 August 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 12,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs 5.00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) cach, at a yield of 5 89% per annum (o the luce value The discounted amount 1used
by the REIT through MREIT CP Senes 10 was Rs 5,939 50 miillion (Rupees five thousand nine hundred fifty-mine nallon fifty thousand only) and the value pavable on maturity s Rs 6,000 00 nulhon (Rupees six thousand nullion
only) Discount on Commercial Paprs is amortized over the tenon of the underlying instrunient. The Commarcial Papua s wee listed on BSE and wore repaid on 13 Seplanber 2025

On 22 August 2025 Midspace Business Parks REIT issued 11,200 Coinmercial Papers with a face value of Rs 5.00.000 (Rupees five lakhs only) cach at 4 yield ol 6 43% per annum (o the fuce value The discounted amount raised
by the REIT through MREIT CT Series |1 was Rs 5 409 76 mullion (Rupees (ive thousand four hundred nine inllion seven thausand sex hundred only) and the value payable on matunty 1s Rs 5600 00 mullion (Rupees five thousand
six hundred mulion only) Discount on Commercial Papers 15 amortized over the tenor of the underly ing mstrument The Commercial Papers were histed on BSE and wall mature on 09 March 2026

The contractual repayment lenns for Ue loans from other related parties Rs Nililhon (31 March 2025 Rs 209 18 mullion: 30 Seplember 2024 Rs Nil mulhon) and loans from other body corporates Rs- Nil mullion (31 March 2025
Rs 2471 46 mullion, 30 Scpiember 2024 Rs Nil muliion) carrying interest rate of 9 23% per annwn was 15 years {rom Lhe date of execulion of the Aprecment te UL April 2023 and as such the T.oan was non-current i nature
however, duting the previous year Mindspace Business Parks REIT acquired contvolling stake in Sustam Propertees Private Limuled by acquirig 100% equity interest from erstwhile sharcholders shich included certuin members of
Sponsor Group on 06 March 2025 and as per the Sale Purchase Agrerment entered between Mindspace Business Parks REIT, Sharcholders and the Company, the Company was obligaled Lo repay these body corporate loans within 30
days fiom the closing date te 03 March 2025 as per’ the agrecment and henee the same was considered as current borrowmg as al 31 March 2025

Trade payables

Parileulars As al Asat Asat
kil ber 2025 I March 2023 30 September 2024

Trade Payables
- total vutstandtng dues of iniero enterpnses and small enterprises 10279 27205 96 66
- tolal outstanding dues of credilors otlwr than micio enterprises 1,095 07 1,040 71 1,174 35
and small enterpnses *

1,197.86 1,312 76 1,271 21

* Refer nalc 47 for related party disclosure
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Cond d C idated Financial

Notes 10 Accounts

(Al amounts in R, millinn untess atherwise stated)

29 Oeler Mmanetal Habiillthes (Curpenty

Particulurs As al At A at
Jil Seprember 2023 31 March 20125 i Seprember 20124
Al amortised cost
Seeurity deposits 763366 7,208 54 5,801 17
Tttt cicerted Bt oot dut on loars lom
= hanks / financial institwions 9672 6292 4345
= debentttrefemasicommuence| papers 1B4 G 86 BR 13200
Tnterseat acenpnd e e o odlurs 1200 1802 29
Retenlion dues payable
- due ta micro and small enterprises 13651 12712 836D
- ollers 21289 294 50 10246
Employees ducs payable 4013 1295 3407
Unpaid Distributions 082 125 042
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises 45179 351 81 307 39
- Othars 149687 1.027 06 1128 87
Amounls pay able Lo customers 194 1628 -
Other liabuliues* 3738 6483 4363
LWans31 L epdy) T MM L

* Reler note 47 for related party disclosure

30 Provisions (Current)

Particulars As at As al Asal
31 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Provision for employee benefits
- graluity 616 G613 423
- leave encashment 55 155 2
Ainiin D Lass nisking e - - 23
_ 7 12 700
31 Dilier eurrent lial
Particulars Asal As il Awat
311 Sepiembier 2025 31 March 2025 30 Sepirmber 2024
Tinenirmd rent 49778 43700 37114
Advances receved fiom customers 71354 3940 3102
Statutory ducs 41247 38332 23935
Other payable* 704 02 457 05 4R3 28
N 1,685.91 131677 1.14579
*Tns includes Unspent Corpotate Soctal Responsibity amount ol Rs 242 30 million (31 March 2025 Rs 241 18 million, 30 September 2024 Rs 277 64)
32 Current tox liuhilities {nut)
Varticulars o Axat Avat Asat
Al seplemin A 31 March 2023 30 Seprember 2624
Provision tar icome-1ax (net of advance lax of Rs 4 668 32 million) 22437 74 68 10699

(31 March 2025 Rs 4.686 24 nullion, 30 September 2024 Rs 958 10 milion )

224.57 74 6% Vi3
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed C lidated Financial St
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

40 Cantingent liabilitied and Capital commitments
Particulars As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024

Contingent liabilities
Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note | below) 83.80 963 05 963 05
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 589.25 25432 254 32
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34.16 3416 3409
- Stamp duty 65.48 G5 48 65 48
- Stamp duty and registration fees (Refer note 11 below) - 279.95 22128
-GST on recovery of ulility charges and mismatch w r t input tax credit (Refer note 4 below) 193.44 100 22 -

Capital commitiments
Estimated amount of contiacts remaining to be executed on capital account (nel of advances) and 9,756.74 10,957.85 9,824 30
not provided for (Refer Note 5 below)

Notes:

I Avacadu : Contingent liability of Rs. 30 55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17, the Company had filed appeals against order under section
143(3) read with [53A of the Income Tax Act,1961 ('the Act') on account of disallowances u/s 14A and u/s 80LA which were disposed-off in favour of the Company during FY 2021-22
The department has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court against the same.

Mack Soft Tech : Contingent liability of Rs 53 25 million relates 1o AY 2020-21, AY 2021-22 and AY 2022-23. The SPV has filed appeal against order under section 143(3) of the Act
on account of:

(a) transfer pricing adjustment for AY 2020-2F and AY 2021-22,

(b} disallowance of business promotion expenses for all 3 assessment years mentioned above and

(c) addition to building wreated as unexplained investment under section 69 of the Act in case of AY 22-23

KRIT : Contingent liability of Rs 932 50 million 1elate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before Hon'ble CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3) / 143(3)
read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80TA of the Income Tax Act 1961 The disallowance of deduction under section 801A for AYs
2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the order for earlier AY 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made KRIT had challenged the said order of AY
2011-12 befare the ITAT. The Hon’ble ITAT vide its order dated 06 May 2021 allowed the appeal in favou of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax autharity The
Income Tax department has further filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of the Hon’ble ITTAT The Hon'ble CIT(A) vide order dt 24 July 2024 has
allowed the appeals for the aforesaid assessment years in favour of KRIT by allowing deduction under section 80IA of the Act KRIT has filed the letter with the department for order
giving effect to the said orders of CIT(A) The Income tax department has further appealed against the otder of the CIT(A) for AY 2012-13 to 2018-19 before the Hon’ble Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal The Hon’ble TTAT vide order dt 31 December 2024 has dismissed the appeals of the [ncome tax department by allowing deduction under section 801A of the Act The
department has passed the order giving effect to the CIT(A) orders for all the years except AY 2012-13 and the resulting refund to the tune of Rs. 453 91 million was reccived in previous

year
2 SPVs h Asat Asa Asal
- 30 Seprember 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024

MEPPIL. 426.96 9203 9203
Sundew 235 235 235
Intime 36.00 36 00 3600
KRIT 115.87 11587 11587
Avacado 8.07 807 807

589.25 254.32 254.32

MBPPL : (a) The SPV received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of electricity and allied charges and demand service
tax there on of Rs 9203 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices SPV has filed a writ petition on 29
August 2025 before Hon'ble High Court against the show cause notice received on account of inordinate delay in adjudication

(b) The SPV has received demand of Rs 334 93 million for service tax on difference in tumover reported in service tax retum of one registration and Income tax retum filed for company
as a whole for the period April 2015 to March 2017 The SPV had filed the writ petition on 16 July 2025 before Hon’ble High Court against the order and the matter has been remanded
back to the Commissioner for fresh adjudication Tlhie Commissioner vide order dated 06 Octaber 2025 has confirmed the entire demand without considering the submissions, the SPV is
exploring the option to file a writ petition against the said order

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs. 1 49 million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong availment of credit of
service tax paid on input services Rs 0 38 million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs 0 48 million. The
SPV has filed an appeal with CESTAT and matter is pending

Intime : (a) Intime has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs 20.70 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2010 to
March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs. 15 30 million for Non Payment of service tax on
renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication

(b) Intime has received a favourable order w r t demand of Rs. 21 00 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and Rs 89.55 million for irregular availment of credit of
service tax paid on input services The Department has preferred an Appeal before the Hon’ble High Court against the CESTAT Order w.r.t ini egular availment of credit of service tax paid
on input services. The Appeal is pending ‘Admission’. The SPV has already reversed the input lax credit availed and no refund has been filed with the department.

KRIT : The SPV has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs 96 10 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2010 to
March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs. 19 77 million for Non Payment of service tax on
renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication
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Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs 7 14 million (excluding
applicable interest and penalty thereon) on reating of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011 It has filed an Appeal before the
Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal The matter is pending adjudication

(b) For the period Apiil 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received an order dated |1 April 2025, confirming the service tax demand of Rs 0 93 million (excluding applicable interest
and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants Avacado has filed an appeal against the order on 14 July 2025 before the Commissioner (Appeals)

(c) Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010, some of the
lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and withheld payment of service tax to
Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time Further in this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an
interim order dated 14 October 2011 in Civil appeal nos 8390, 8391-8393 of 201} and in compliance of which, such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments,
50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also
been deposited by them with the authorities Further as per Hon'ble Supreme Court’s Order dated 5 April 2018 in Civil Appeal No (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred until disposal of
the issues pending before the nine judges Bench in Mineral Area Development Authority and others In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon'ble
Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which amount
would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado

Intime and KRIT : Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets fiom the Software Technology Parks of India scheme ( STPI) for Intime Rs. 16.00 million and KRIT Rs
9.08 million

Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable oniy on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities KRIT - Bank guarantees to Deputy
Commissioner of Customs, Export Promotion Division for Rs. 9 08 million

Tntime : The SPV has received the Order dated 29 January 2025 confirming the demand of GST on recovery of ulility charges towards electricity, water and DG back up power from the
tenants for the period July 2017 to Maich 2020 amounting to Rs 100 22 million plus interest and penalty The SPV has filed an Appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals)

MBPPL : The SPV has received a demand of Rs 2 62 million for GST on mismatch of input tax credit and difference in RCM liability reported in returns for the period from April 2020
to March 2021 The SPV has filed an appeal before Commissioner (Appeals)

Horizonview : (a) The SPV has received a demand of Rs, 4.65 million for GST w r.t input tax credit availed in retums and reconciliation of the same for the period from April 2020 to
March 2021, The SPV has filed an appeal before Commissioner (Appeals)

(b) The SPV had received a favourable order dated 30 April 2024 against notice demanding Rs 54 06 million for FY 2018-19 w r t reversal of ITC on account of exempt supplies
Department has filed an appeal before Commissioner (Appeals) against the said order.
Mack Soft Tech : (a) The SPV has received a GST demand of Rs 190 million for FY 2017-18, Rs 3 68 million for FY 2018-19 and Rs 1733 million for FY 2019-20 wr t input tax

credit availed on works contract services in relation to repairs and maintenance activity The SPV is in process of filing an appeal before Goods and Services Tax Appellate Tribunal

(b) The SPV has reccived 2 GST demand order of Rs 8 97 million for the peried April 2020 to March 2021 for availing input tax credit an warks contract services in refation tn repairs
and maintenance activity The SPV has filed an appeal before Commissioner (Appeals) which is pending

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:
SPVs - As at Az at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024

MBPPL 815.80 864 20 549 84
Gigaplex 561.01 994 18 691 18
Sundew 455.65 514 89 370 44
KRC Infra 704.32 1,079 18 1,599 54
Horizonview 70.85 66.20 57.30
KRIT 6,966.58 7,189.04 6,344 55
Avacado 71.15 67.45 5590
Tntime 110,66 155 46 155.56
Sustain 0.71 2725 =

9.756.73 10.957 85 9.824.30
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a)

b)

¢)

q)

Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintiff) against Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (fvory) & Others which includes Avacado as one of the
Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the ‘Paradigm’ Industrial Park building of Avacado The Plaintiff has prayed against Avacado and the said Tvory restraining them from
carrying out further construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal of the structures on the said land, appointment
of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered into by Avacado with Tvory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been
avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from alienating, encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing
with, creating fiesh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respect of the said Paradigm building and from receiving ar recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect
of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the Court, etc The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the
allegations and praying that no interim relief be granted to the Plaintiff The notice of motion for interim 1elief and the Suit are pending (or the final hearing before the High Court

Based on an advice oblained from an independent legal counse!, the management is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, if any, on the Ind AS financial
statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a going concem basis Further, the
Plaintiff, through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager, the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr. Ravi C
Raheja, Mr Neel C Raheja, Mr. Chandru L. Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd, expressing his objection to the proposed Offer and any actions concemning the building
Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project The allegations and averments made by the Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates &
solicitors. No further correspondence has been received

KRC Infra

In respect of KRC Infra's project at Village Kharadi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhandari against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in 1espect of inter
alia an undivided share admeasuring 44 15 Acres out of the land bearing S No 65 Hissa No 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other reliefs Neither Gera
Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Privale Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have been joined as parties to the civil suit or
Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention application There are no orders passed in the matter affecting the suit
lands or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land in any manner whatsoever The matter is currently pending

Saraswati Malhari Gaikwad (“the Appellant™) since deceased through her legal representative Sangita Shivaji Kate through her constiluted attormey Amit Jeevan Pathare filed Appeal from
Order No. 753 of 2023 bearing Loding No 23330 of 2023 along with TA No 5246/2023 being aggrieved by the impugned Order dated 19 July 2023 passed by Civil Judge Senior
Division, Pune below Exh 5 i e Application for injunction in Special Civil Suit No 2040 of 2021 as Application Exh. 5 was partly allowed to the extent of suit properties I1(a), 1(b) and
1(f) as described in the order (para-2) and rest of the prayers/reliefs were not granted On 31 October 2023 Notice summons to appear was served on KRC Infrai e Respondent No 66 in
respect of Appeal from order filed by the Appellant. The matter was on heard on 02 January 2024, where the Advocate for Respondent Nos 1 and 2 and Mr Kamdar apprised the Hon'ble
Court that (i) no one was present on behalf of the Appellant and (ii) Respondent Nos | and 2 were not served with the papers in the captioned matter, tili date The Respondent Nos 1 and
2 further stated that they had filed an appeal from order being Appeal from Order (L) No 28880 of 2023 i ¢ Appeal from Order 32 of 2024 (“Other AFO") before the Hon’ble Court and
requested the Hon’ble Court, if the same could be tagged along with the captioned matter Accordingly, the Hon’ble Court was plcased to (i) tag the Other Appeal from Order along with
the captioned matter and (ii) place the captioned matter on 17 January 2024 On 17 January 2024 the matter was adjourned 1ill 24 January 2024 On 24 January 2024 the Respondent No
66 submitted that Respondent No 66 has been served with the copy of the notice of the aforesaid Appeal from Order (L) No 28880 of 2023 (i e Appeal from Order 32 of 2024) but
without the copy of Appeal Both the Appeals came up for hearing on 28 February 2025 The Appellant served the copy of the Appeal from Order No 753 of 2023 along with the copy of
Interim Application No 15246 of 2023 on the Respondent No 66 and the matter was adjourned to 05 May 2025 with ad interim reliefs granted earlier, to continue till the next date On 05

Viay 2023 the mauers have been adjourned 1ill 08 August 2025 On 08 August 2025 the mauers have been further adjourned Gili 25 November 2625 The indliei is cuiieitdy pending

Saraswati Malhan Gailowad (deceased) through her heir Sangita Shivap Kate (“Appellant”) filed an RTS Appeal No 1554 of 2022 on 6 June 2022 before the Additional Coliector, Pune
(*Additional Collector”) against Gera Resorts Private Limited through Mr Ashish Jangda (“Respondents™) seeking to quash and set aside the order passed on 5 December 2022 by the Sub
Division Officer, Haveli (“Impugned Order”) in respect of the Mutation Entry No 27115 recording the name of the Respondents on the revenue records in pursuance of the duly registered
Deed of Confimmation dated 10 March 2021 executed between Gera Developments Pvt Ltd and Gera Resorts Pvt Ltd in respect of Survey No. 65 Hissa No 3, Village Kharadi, Taluka
Haveli, District Pune The Appellant filed an application seeking a stay on the Tmpugned Order On 13 January 2023 the Additional Collector, Pune granted status quo till the final
decision of the Appeal On 27 March 2023, the Appellant filed an Application seeking an amendment to the Appeal to implead KRC Infra as a respondent therein and thereafter KRC Infra
came to be impleaded as Respondent No. 3 by Additional Collector, Pune. On 26 April 2023, KRC Tnfra was served a notice of the aforesaid appeal to appear in the matter On 08 May
2023 KRC TInfra appeared in the matter and filed an Application seeking copies of the Appeal Memo and supporting documents thereof. On 16 October 2023, the Appellant filed an
Amendment Application for impleading 13 new respondents (*Amendment Application™). However, the copies of the aforesaid were not served on KRC Infra and the matter was posted
on 05 December 2023 for receipt of records and proceedings of i) Complaint Case No 6 of 2020 before the Ld Circle Tnspector, Kalas; i) RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 before the Ld
Sub-Divisional Officer On 05 December 2023 KRC Infra filed its say to the Amendment Application and written arguments on the aforesaid Amendment Application were filed on 05
February 2024 The Amendment Applicalion came to be rejected vide order passed on 06 February 2024 by Sub Division Officer, Haveli On 05 February 2024 Respondent No | and 2
filed an Application for vacating status quo order passed on 13 January 2023 by Additional Collector, Pune Subsequently the matter was adjourned on multiple dates and the matter was
posted to 10 September 2024 On 10 September 2024 Respondent No 3 filed Reply cum written submissions on the Appeal and the matter has been closed for Judgment The Appeal was
dismissed by the Additional Collector by its order dated on 04 October 2024 Being aggrieved by the said order dated 04 October 2024 the Appellant has filed a Revision bearing No
683 of 2024 before the Additional Divisional Commissioner, Pune

Saraswali Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) through her heir Sangita Shivaji Kate (“Appellant™) filed an Revision Application No 683 of 2024 before the Additional Divisional Commissioner,
Pune (“Additional Divisional Commissioner”) against Gera Resorts Private Limited through Mr Nilesh Dave, Gera Developments Pvt Ltd through Mr Ashish Jangda and KRC
Infrastructure and Developments Pyt Ltd through Mr Tushar Yeole (“Respondents”) seeking to quash and set aside the order passed on 04 October 2024 by the Additional Collector, Pune
(“Tmpugned Order”) in RTS Appeal No 1554 of 2022

On 06 December 2024 Respondent No 3 i e KRC Infra filed application seeking copies of the documents filed along with the Revision Application On 01 January 2025 Respondent No
3 filed its reply to the Revision Application and Application for stay filed by Appellant On 08 January 2025 the Additional Divisional Commissioner passed an order granting status quo
till the next date of hearing i ¢ 03 March 2025 On 03 March 2025 the Appellant filed an Application seeking extension of the order of status quo granted on 08 January 2025 which was
allowed and the matter was adjourned to 28 April 2025 On 28 April 2025 the Appellant filed an application for extension of the status-quo and the same was granted till the next date On
28 April 2025 the Applicant filed an application for extension of the status-quo and the same was granted by the Hon’ble Court till the next date On 07 July 2025 the Applicant filed an
application for extension of stalus quo and the same was rejected and also filed an application for amendment of the revision and the matter was posted to 01 August 2025 On 01 August
2025 the Respondent filed its reply to the aforesaid application for amendment and the matter was adjourned On 06 August 2025 the Applicant filed an application for taking the matter
on board and withdrawal pursis stating that the Applicant does nat wish to proceed with the same Vide Order dated !5 September 2025 the matter has been disposed of as withdrawn
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MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88 16 % undivided right title
and interest in the land bearing S No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking “Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje Bhosale (“the Plaintiff") has filed a
Special Civil Suit bearing No 133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development
rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land The Hon'ble Court was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the
Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14 November 2016 The Plaintiff has filed two writ petitions bearing Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in lhe Bombay High Court
challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14 November 2016 The malter was transferred to another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance
of the order by the Plaintiff. On 05 March 2018 the Advocate for the Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff,
the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and the matter was posted on 20 March 2018 On 20 March 2018 the Hon’ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22 June 2018 since
the Advocate for the Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalathama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate Writ Petition Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14 November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shi Mukund Bhavan Trust and others came up for hearing on
28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No 2 i e, State of Maharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was
pleased to adjourn the same ill 16 January 2018, 26 February 2018, 22 June 2018 On 22 June 2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No 1 filed a purshis stating that the Defendant No 1
(a) expired matter was further adjoumned till 24 October 2018, 26 November 2018, 21 December 2018, 01 February 2019, 25 March 2019 and 15 April 2019, 18 June 2019, 27 August
2019, 19 September 2019 On 19 September 2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11 November 2019 for compliance of the order dated 14
November 2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure Next date 16 September 2023 for steps Both the Writ Petitions were posted on 21
September 2018, |1 Octaber 2018, 22 October 2018 and further posted on 10 June 2019 for Admission The matters came on board on 20 June 2019, 14 November 2019, 15 January 2019
and 21 February 2019 As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4415/2017 was last posted on 27 March 2020 and is yet not listed As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27 March 2020 and thereafter on 23 July 2020 for Admission and is yet nol listed In the management’s view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the facts, no
provision for any loss / liability is presently required to be made MBT had filed Civil Appeal No 14807 of 2024 in the aforesaid SLP No 18977 of 2016 which has been allowed by order
dated 20 December 2024 and the Application filed by MBT for rejection of plaint in Special Civil Suit No 133 of 2009 has been allowed thereby rejecting the plaint filed by Respondent
No | On 05 February 2025, the Civil Court passed an order disposing off the matter in view of the order passed by the Supreme Court of India in SLP 18977 of 2016 The matter is
closed

MBPPL is subject (o other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. MBPPL’s Management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions,
when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL's results of operations or financial condition

MBPPL received a cc ication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs. 157 millian allegedly due from MBPPL based on abjections
by intenal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been served with any document referred to the
said PMC letter Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to submit their reply upon receipt of the details of amount
demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL agrees to make the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the
interest amount By letter dated 20 July 2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit report to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of
objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable amount By letter dated 17 August 2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC slated that it has not
received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by assessing interest thereon and required submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of Rs. 183 60
million recoverable against all objectionable issues By its reply letter dated 06 September 2021 1o PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04 February 2019
and the PMC letter dated |7 August 2021 are addressed to the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by
MBPPL earlier. By letter dated 11 October 2021 to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans, demands and notice are illegal. nul! and void and ultra vires; and likewise the
act of issuing the letter dated 17 August 2021 is ultra vires and without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith By the said letter
MBPPL further siated that if the ciialians and feter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in thal event the ietter dated ii Oclober 2021 may be uecaled as a natice under
section 487 of The Maharashtra Municipal Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 159 of The Maharashtra Regionat and Town Planning Act, 1966 Further, without prejudice to the
contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order to resolve the controversy, MBPPL
is willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said chaltans, a lumpsum one-time amount of Rs 26 64 million without any liability for
interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and furnishing clarifications, if required by PMC. Subsequently, by letter dated
10 March 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by MBPPL vide its letier dated 25 January 2022 and requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the
amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the earliest

On 07 April 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand drafl as desired by the PMC, for an amount of Rs 26 64 million towards the payment as set out in
MBPPL's earlier communications Vide letter dated 11 July 2022 PMC returned MBPPL's demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment MBPPL vide its letter dated 22 July
2022 read with MBPPL letter dated 21 July 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs. 101 36 million under protest MBPPL on 28 July 2022 also paid an amount of Rs 609
million being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated 08 August 2022, MBPPL (“Petitioner”) has filed writ petition on 14 November 2022 in the Bombay
High Court (“Count”) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents”) inter alia, seeking to impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated 05 January 2022 enclosing
challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner (“Impugned Demand Notice”) and for refund of the amount of Rs. 107 45 million paid by the Petitioner under
protest to the Respondents towards the Impugned Demand Notice The matter is currently pending

The Office of Chief Controlling Revenue Authority, Pune issued two notices both dated 11 December 2024 and 13 December 2024 (“Notices™) to Serene Properties Private Limited
(instead of MBPPL) for deficit stamp duty of Rs 0 026 million to be payable on a lease deed bearing Adjudication No 850/2011 MBPPL has sent its Reply dated 04 April 2025, stating
that responsibility to pay the stamp duty is on licensee/lessee and accordingly requested to withdraw the notice and approach the concerned lessee

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon'ble Andhira Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park IT and TII undertakings of K Raheja IT
Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been demerged and vested in the Company with effect from
the appointed date i e 01 September 2006

Intime and Sundew had acquired the [and at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lieu of the employment opportunities to be generated by
KRIT and others

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained by KRIT as at 30
September 2025

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and also confirmed to
the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation Hence, na liability is recognised lowards the price of the
plot of land

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Coiporation Limited ("APIIC") in 1espect of APJIC's claims of losses due to any difference in
values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt
Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeinyg and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC

Also the company and the JV company has given undertaking to Government / TSIC that the shareholding pattern of the Govemnment/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not
change as a result of conversion of company from Private to Public, the Government / TSTIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and
further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake
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Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon Civil Judge (J D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintiff') who is claiming rights in existing school
structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him Gigaplex has filed its reply opposing the
Plaintiff's prayers After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s [njunction Application by Order dated 20 August 2018 (Order) Thereafter
the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court The Plaintiff's Appeal filed in Thane District Court has been transferred (o Belapur Court is still pending for Arguments in
Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur Suit is pending and Appeal is dismissed on 06 July 2024 Tn management view, Lhe estimate of
liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken

Gigaplex, one of the SPV’s of Mindspace REIT, has received notice daled |1 December 2023 (“Demand Notice”) issued by MIDC demanding differential premium of Rs. 527 75 million
on account of change in shareholding paltern i e participation of the Gigaplex into the Mindspace REIT. In the meantime, in view of the pennission for subleasing required by the
Gigaplex from MIDC in respect of proposed transactions by the Gigaplex, and pending the determination as to whether the said demand is payable at afl to MIDC and whether payable by
the Gigaplex, the Gigaplex has obtained a bank guarantee in favour of MIDC for the said demand in order that the said permission for subleasing is obtained by the Gigaplex fiom MIDC
Group is of the view that the said demand is not payable by the Gigaplex The Gigaplex had sent intimation to MIDC of the participation by the Gigaplex into Mindspace REIT
(“Transaction”) on 15 July 2020 (i ¢ pre-Transaction) and also on 05 October 2020 (i e. post-Transaction) and also explained in detail the rationale why the Tiansaction ought to be
treated as a ‘Formal Transfer’ under the circulars issued by MIDC and only a standard transfer fee is payable which will be a nominal amount only and not such a large amount as per the
Demand Notice. The Gigaplex has sent its response to the Demand Notice on 02 January 2024 and once again reiterated its aforesaid position and thus the demand for differential
premium is erroneous and unwarranted and has requested MIDC, inter alia, to withdraw/revoke the Demand Notice A Counter Guarantee dated 07 June 2024 has been issued by Ivory
Properties Trust and K Raheja Corp Private Limited (Counter Guarantors) to Gigaplex for an amount of Rs 527 75 million in order to cover, in case any payments, may be required to be
made to MIDC. In this regard, the Gigaplex has been legally advised that under the MIDC Circulars issued with 1espect to the change in shareholding of any lessee company of MIDC,
which Circulars are also refened 1o in the REIT Circular issued by MIDC, as long as the natural persons belonging to the same family holding directly or indirectly in the lessee company
by reckoning the shareholding within the shareholding entity does not fall below 51% post transfer of shares of the lessee company as compared to the position prior to the transfer of
shares, the transfer premium payable will be a nominal sum being reated as a Formal Transfer under the MIDC Circulars

In pursuance of REIT acquiring entire shareholding of a Gigaplex, the position with respect to satisfying the said 51% holding is fully satisfied and the Gigaplex has fumished substantial
evidence and documents in support of the same to MIDC  Therefore, in Group’s view there is na such premium payable as demanded by MIDC except a nominal transfer premium as a
Formal Transfer for which the Gigaplex has made provision of Rs 6 million in the books of account Subsequently, the Industries Department of Government of Maharashtra (controlling
Ministry for MIDC) pronounced that, MIDC has the powers to amend its REIT circular, as deemed necessary Such madifications are done through the process of relevant proposal being
discussed in the MIDC Board Meeting for concemed approval The matter is under “approval process” at MIDC Considering pendency in the disposal of this matter, in management’s
view, no further provision is presently required to be made

The said Transaction is in pursuance of swap of shares of the Gigaplex by inter alias by the Sponsor Group i. e K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and Ivory Property Trust (Erstwhile Shareholders)
in exchange for the units of the Mindspace Business Park REIT The Erstwhile shareholders have agreed to provide an indemnity and also make gzood the differential premium or any
other amount which is finally decided by MTDC in this respect and in the process of execution of a counter gnarantee in favour of the Gigaplex for such demand liability, if any, and any
expenditure as may be incuried by the Gigaplex for obtaining the bank guarantee or any security in respect of the bank guarantee and any other cost, whether direct or indirect, as may be
incurred by the Gigaplex in relation thereto

Horizonview

RPIL has executed a Deed of Conveyance dated 19 August 2023 (“first conveyance”), in favour of Horizonview for transfer of 78% undivided interest in the Land, which has been
submitted for registration with the concerned Sub-Registrar of Assurances Kundrathur (“Registrar ') Chennai Further, RPIL has also exccuted a Deed of Conveyance dated 02 September
2023 (“second conveyance ') In favour of Horizonview for transter of 1ts units 1n the buildmg along with the correspanding 22% Undivided Interest in the Land Both documents have been
submitted for registration with the Sub - Registrar of Assurances Kundrathur (“Registrar®) The Registrar has issued demand notices for deficit of stamp duty and registration fees
aggregating to Rs 221 28 million in respect of the conveyance deeds and most of the demand is with respect to the Registrar’s view that there is transfer of the building besides transfer of
Land under the first Conveyance Horizonview has responded to the demand notices, objecting to the same as it has constructed the building together with plant and machinery in the
building for itself, on its own account and thercfore there is no transfer from RPIL As the transaction, which is subject matter of deed of conveyance, is only for transfer of the 78%
undivided right, title and interest in the land and not the building/ machinery, in view of management, the demand is not tenable Further, regarding the 22% conveyance, the demand has
been made for stamp duty and registration fees on the TDS amount deducted which demand is not tenable since the stamp duty and registration charges have been paid on the entire
consideration which includes the TDS amount under the conveyance deed The Registrar further issued letters from time to time for payment of deficit of stamp duty and registration fee
Horizonview responded to the letters / demand notices, objecting to the same and requested for release of documents Horizonview has the right (o appeal to a higher authority The matter
is pending By subsequent orders, the Deputy Inspector General Registration has issued demand notice for deficit stamp duty and regisiration fees aggregating to Rs. 279 95 million in
respect of the conveyance deeds Horizonview has filed appeals against the orders

Horizonview filed 2 writ petitions in the Madras High Court praying for the appeals to be heard by the Tnspector General of Regisiralion The Madras High Court disposed of the matters,
directing the Inspector General of Registration to hear and dispose of the appeals within a period of eight (8) weeks from the date of its order Vide order dated 09 July 2025, the Inspector
General of Registration allowed the Horizonview's appeal for the second conveyance and set aside the order of the Deputy Inspection General Registration Subsequently the Deed of
Conveyance dated 02 September, 2023 was registered and released to Horizonview Vide order dated 25 September, 2025 the Inspector General of Registration allowed the appeal for the
first conveyance and set aside the order of the Deputy Inspection General Registration

Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal™) had, by letter dated 27 August 2009, sought
information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (*APLRAC") in respect of the entire land parcel at
Mindspace Madhapur The Revenue Department of the Govermment of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated 05 September 2009 for fumishing of certain information to the
Govermnment of Andhra Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009 Sundew had filed a detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land
was originally granted by the Govemment of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited (KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, (c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is
therefore exempt from the local laws, (d) the land was shown as a non-agricultural land in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC The
Tribunal issued a final notice lo Sundew in January 2012 requesting to submit a declaration for full and correct particulars of the lands held. In September 2009, Sundew also submitted a
copy of the order dated 09 August 2012, which was passed by the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh (“High Court™) in a similar matter (being Writ Petition No. 19300/2012 filed by
Neogen Properties Pvt. Ltd.) wherein a stay was granted by the High Court until further orders The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal Future cash flows in respect of above
matters are determinable only an receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities
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Sustain

A Public Notice/ Advertisement have been given in the Local Newspaper, to verify the title and ownership of (i} Janina Marine LLP and (ii} Dyumat Hotels LLP to the property described
in the Schedule to the Public Notice subject to the development rights granted to Sustain in respect thereof and inviting objections, if any, to the same In pursuance of the Public Notice/
Advertisement objection dated 23 March 2022 was received from Advocate Mr Wajid Bin Sayeed (WBS) representing Mr Khader Ali Khan S/o Late Hasham Ali Khan R/o Hyderabad
allegedly claiming that Mr Khader Ali Khan is the rightful owner and has very strong objection and claim in and over the property mentioned in the Public Notice dated 01 March 2022
and further advised Sustain not to indulge any further in any illegal activity or to create any charge in Sy No 1 to 109 including Sy No 83/1 of Raidurg Panmakhta Village

A letter dated 19 April 2022 was sent to advocale of Kader Ali Khan requesting for documents, for which no response has been received till date

A writ petition (W P No 9591 of 2023) has been filed by Janina Marina Properties LLP (*Janina") in Telangana High Court both against Union of India and others (wherein Sustain
Properties Private Limited is Respondent No 7 in WP No 9591 of 2023 seeking an order that Petitioners are not liable to GST to the extent of transfer of development rights under
Development Agreement dated 12 January 2018, as in essence, it is a sale of land by the Petitioners which is exempted under the GST Act It challenges the Notification No 4/2018-
Central Tax (Rate) dated 25 January 2018 and Notification No 4/2018 dated 28 February 2018 to the extent such notification seek to impose GST on sale of land by wrongly treating it as
transfer of development rights in land by the Land owner (Petitioner) Sustain Properties Private Limited has filed its Counter Affidavits both dated 25 July 2024 in the respective writ
petitions. The matter is pending

A writ petition(WP No 9606 of 2023) has been filed by Dyumat Hotels LLP (“Dyumat”) in Telangana High Court both against Union of India and others and Sustain Properties Private
Limited is Respondent No.5 in WP No 9606 of 2023 seeking an order that Pelitioners are not liable to GST 1o the extent of transfer of development rights under Development Agreement
dated 12 January 2018, as in essence , it is a sale of land by the Petitioners which is exempted under the GST Act It challenges the Notification No 4/2018- Central Tax (Rate) dated 25
January 2018 and Notificalion No 4/2018 dated 28 February 2018 to the extent such notification seek to impose GST on sale of land by wrongly treating it as transfer of development
rights in land by the Land owner (Petitioner) Sustain Properties Private Limited has filed its Counter Affidavits both dated 25 July 2024 in the respective writ petitions The matter is
pending

Management and Support fees

Management Fees*

Property Management Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park charges or any other
compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to operations, mai and of the Assel SPVs, as applicable to be reduced to the
extent of employee cost directly incurred by the Asset SPVs The fees is charged based on the billing done to the tenants. The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the
Tnvestment Manager to undertake the services provided to the Asset SPVs

Property Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2025 amounts to Rs 158 09 million and Rs 302 04 million and for the quarter and half year ended 30
September 2024 amounts to Rs 127 60 million and Rs 244 50 million There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager

Support Services Fee
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0 5% of the total rent ( lease and fitour, car park charges or any

N The fope

{ih stration and cther support service of the Asset SPVs, as applicable The fees

oithel compensation vn accourii of leiling oui) per annum of the i property i respeci o general
has been determined to meet the angoing costs of the Tnvestment Manager to undertake the services provided to the Asset SPVs The fees is charged based on the billing done to the
tenants

Support Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2025 amounts to Rs 30 40 million and Rs 58 76 million and for the quarter and half year ended 30 September
2024 amounts to Rs 24 51 million and Rs 48 52 million There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager

REIT Management Fees
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, the Manager is eutitled to fees @ 0 5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows which shall be payable either
in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Manager The fees has been determined for undertaking management of the REIT and its investments

The REIT Management fees (including GST) accrued for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2025 amounts to Rs 21 51 million and Rs. 42 66 million and for the quarter and
half year ended 30 September 2024 amounts to Rs. 17.98 million and Rs 3564 million There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computalion of fees paid to the
Manager

* Refer note 47 for related party disclosure
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42A  Asset acquisition - Mack Soft Tech Private Limited
During the period ended 30 September 2025, Horizonview Properties Private Limited (HPPL), an Asset SPV of Mindspace REIT entered into share acquisition
agreement with shareholders of Mack Soft Tech Private Limited for acquisition of 100% equity shareholding of Mack Soft in exchange of cash consideration funded
by debt The acquisition was effected on 23 July 2025 (“Acquisition Date™) making Mack Soft as an asset SPV of Mindspace REIT and HPPL as a HoldCo within
Mindspace REIT

Requirements of Ind AS 103 apply to a transaction in which assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business. However, para B7A and B7B of Ind AS
103 allow an optional concentration test to perform simplified assessment of whether acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The consequence of the
test is that if the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no further assessment is needed.

HPPL opted to apply optional concentiation test in respect of acquisition of this SPV. Acquired SPV is engaged in the business of development and leasing of
commercial space and also provide ancillary services related thereto. Major asset pool of this SPV comprises of investment property. Based on the assessment
performed, management determined that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired was concentrated in investment property (including other
assets which meet the definition of group of similar identifiable assets as per definition provided in para B7B of Ind AS 103 such as investment property, attached to
these investment properties which cannot be physically removed and used separately from these investment properties, without incurning significant cost, or
significant diminution in utility or fair value to either asset)

Accordingly, acquisition of this SPV was accounted as acquisition of group of assets not constituting a business and requirements in Ind AS 103 for business
combination accounting was not applied to this transaction. HPPL accounted for the transaction as follows:

a, Identified asset or liability initially measured at an amount other than cost and applied applicable standards for initial measurement of these assets and liabilities

b. Plant and Machinery recognised at fair value as determinced by an independent valuer

c. Deducted from the total acquisition price of the group acquired, amount recognised in respect of items listed in point {a) and (b) above

d. Allocated the residual acquisition price to the remaining identifiable assets (i.e. Land and Buildings, Plant and Machinery which are then being classified as
Tnvestment Property) based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, arrived at by an independent valuer

As consideration for the assets acquired, HPPL paid Rs. 5,118.18 million in cash HPPL also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to the asset
acquisition, amounting to Rs. 239.67 million, resulting in the total acquisition price of Rs. 5,357.85 million (out of which Rs, 172.18 million is payable as at 30
September 2025). The foliowng tables summarize the total acquisition price and the allocation of the acquisition price.

The transaction did not result in recognition of goodwill or bargain gain in the books of the MREIT
Since Horizonview Properties Private Limited acquired Mack Soft Tech Private Limited on 23 July 2025, The Management provided the information in Condensed
Consolidated financial statements with eftect fiom said period i.e. 23 July 2025 for the period ended 30 September 2025.

3 Amount
Partculars L
(in million)

Putchase consideration 5.118.18
Transaction costs 23967
Total acquisition price 5.357.85

Based on the above total acquisition price and adjusted for the other assets and liabilities assumed as per the Ind AS financial statement, the Total acquisition price
was as follows:

IParticulars .Am?u.nt

L . |__(in million) _|
| Total Acquisition Price 5,357.85
Less: Other Assets (838.85)
Add: Other Liabilities 21551
:)/':I;:le allocable to Investment property and 473451

Based on the above total acquisition price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the total acquisition price was allocated as follows on the basis
of the allocation explained above :

Particulars .Am(.xu.nt
(in million)
Land as part of Investment property 2,545.00
Building as part of Investment property 2,090 99
Plant and machinery and other assets as part of Investment Property 80.44
Plant and machinery and other assets as part of PPE 18.08
Total 4,734.51

Depreciation on building, plant & machinery and other assets is calculated on the above allocated amounts based on the balance useful lives of these assets as per
the accounting policy




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/603

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

42B  Asset acquisition - Sustain
In financial year ended 31 March 2025, Mindspace REIT entered into share acquisition agreement with sharcholders of Sustain Properties Private Limited, Asset
SPV for acquisition of 100% equity shareholding of Sustain SPV in exchange for the units of Mindspace REIT. The acquisition was effected on 6 March 2025
(“Acquisition Date”) making sustain as an asset SPV of Mindspace REIT,

Requirements of Ind AS 103 apply to a transaction in which assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business, However, para B7A and B7B of Ind AS
103 allow an optional concentration test to perform simplified assessment of whether acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The consequence of the
test is that if the concentration test is met, the sel of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no further assessment is needed

Mindspace REIT opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of this SPV. Acquired SPV is engaged in the business of real estate
development and leasing. Major asset pool of this SPV comprised of investment property. Based on the assessment performed, management determined that
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired was concentrated in investment property (including other assets which meet the definition of group of
similar identifiable assets as per definition provided in para B7B of Ind AS 103 such as investment property, attached to these investment properties which cannot be
physically removed and used separately from these investment properties, without incurring significant cost. ot significant diminution in utility or fair value to either
asset)

Accordingly, acquisition of this SPV was accounted as acquisition of group of assets not constituting a business and requirements in Ind AS 103 for business
combination accounting was not applied to this transaction. The REIT accounted for the transaction as follows;

a Tdentified asset or liability initially measured at an amount other than cost and applied applicable standards for initial measurement of these assets and liabilities

b. Plant and Machinery recognised at fair value as determined by an independent valuer

¢. Deducted from the total acquisition price of the group acquired, amount recognised in respect of'items listed in point (a) and (b) above

d. Allocated the residual acquisition price to the remaining identifiable assets (i.e. Land and Buildings, Plant and Machinery which are then being classified as
Investment Property) based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, arrived at by an independent valuer

The transaction did not result in recognition of goodwill or bargain gain in the books of the Mindspace REIT.

As consideration for the assets acquired, Mindspace REIT issued 1,61.65.452 units at unit price of Rs 379.08 per unit totalling to Rs. 6,128 00 million Mindspace
REIT also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to the asset acquisition, amounting Lo Rs. 15.74 million, resulting in the total acquisition price of Rs
6,143.74 million. The following tables summarize the total acquisition price and the allocation of the acquisition price

Mindspace Group obtained two independent valuation reports as required by the REIT regulations for the above acquisition and the average of the two valuations
amounted to Rs. 22,022 00 million. The valuation approach adopted by both the valuer was Discounted cash flow method and the weighted average cost of capital
considered was 11.75%. Acquisition consideration was at 7.5% discount to average of two independent valuation reports amounting to Rs.20,380 million. No fees
o commission was paid to the Sellers in relation to the transaction. All the material conditions and obligations for the transaction were complied

Since Mindspace REIT acquired Sustain Properties Private Limited on 6 March 2025, The Management provided the information in Condensed Consolidated
financial statements with effect from said period i ¢ 6 March 2025 for the period ended 31 March 2025

) Amount
Particulars R,
(in million)
Purchase consideration 6,128 00
Transaction costs 15.74
Total acquisition price 6,143.74
[ssue price per unit 379.08

Based on the above total acquisition price and adjusted for the other assets and liabilities assumed as per the Ind AS financial statement, the Total acquisition price
was as follows:

Particulars .Am(?u-n(
(in million)

Total Acquisition Price 6,143.74
Less: Other Assets{including rental support} (1,724.11)
Add: Other Liabilities 14.593.51
Value allocable to 1 t t P

alue allocable to Investment property and 19,013.14
PPE J

Based on the above total acquisition price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the total acquisition price was allocated as follows on the basis
of the allocation explained above :

Amount

Particulars N i
(in million)

Development rights of Land as part of Investment

property 9,543.71
Building as part of Investment property 822191
Plant and machinery and other assets 1,247.52
Total 19.013.14

Depreciation on building, plant & machinery and other assets is calculated on the above allocated amounts based on the balance useful lives of these assets as per
the accounting policy
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/0603

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

44  Financial instruments
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Financial assets As at As al Asat

30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FYTOCI")
[nvestments in equity instruments 0.02 0.02 0.02
Fair value through Profit and Loss('FVTPL')
Investment in overnight mutual fund measured at FVTPL - 154,77 =
Amortised cost
[nvestments - non-current 43.24 38.86 3886
Trade receivables 533.27 586.69 64730
Cash and cash equivalents 6,285.82 6,224.54 4,967.03
Other bank balances 1,333.76 1,031.73 758.88
Other financial assets 12,062.38 10,187.65 8,300.32
Total assets 20,258.49 18,224 26 14,712.41
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 1,12,447.92 1.01,097.82 77,672.04
Lease Liabilities 144.11 15517 134 46
Security deposits 12,967.42 11,155 81 9.341.49
Trade payables 1,197.86 131276 1,271.21
Other financial liabilities (other than Securty deposits) 2,853.39 2,213.98 2,134.94
Total liabilities 1,29,610.70 1,15,935.53 90,554.14

Tlhe management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value

B. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy

= Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1. that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly: and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 30 September 2025

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 September 2025:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value:

FVTPL financial investments: 30 September 2025 - - - -
FVTOCI financial investments: 30 September 2025 0.02 = - 0.02
FVTPL financial investments: 31 March 2025 154,77 154.77 - -
FVTOCI financial investments: 31 March 2025 0.02 = - 0,02
FVTPL financial investments: 30 September 2024 - E = =
FVTOCI financial investments: 30 September 2024 0.02 - = 0,02

C  Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 30 September 2025, year ended 31 March 2025 and period ended 30 September

2024,

D  Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disciosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date
i1) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values
iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market rate.

iv) Security deposits accepted are measured at fair value based on the discounted cash flow method considering the discount rate determined as the average borrowing

rate




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

45 Segment information
Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segment

Business Scgment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'Commercial Real Estate Development' and ‘Power Distribution’, which are
determined based on the internal organisation and management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the
nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of Directors of the manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) CODM
evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed
below

Commercial Real Estate Development

Commercial Real Estate Development comprises development and management of projects including incidental activities under Special Economic
Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets. The Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune
and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial assets

Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infia as Deemed Distribution Licensee for
Power The approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ

Sundew has a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers in its SEZ project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad

Sundew had filed a Civil appeal on 15 November 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for obtaining the Deemed distribution licensee
status in terms of Ministry of Commerce and Industry Notification dated 3 March 2010 and Sec 14(b) of the Electricity Act, 2003 to operate and
maintain a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers in its SEZ project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad
The matter is disposed off vide Judgement dated 17 May 2024 by Hon'ble Supreme Court allowing the Civil Appeal allowing Sundew to operate and
maintain a power distribution license for supplying electricity to its consumers, Submitted a letter to TGTRANSCO for network connectivity,
awalting reply.

For the quarter ended 30 September 2025 l;l_un.ml]ludj

Particulars Commercial Real | Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment ~ Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment revenue 7,533.33 276.71 (8995) 7,720.09
Segment result 4,864 67 9.04 (245 82) - 4,627.89
Less: Finance cost 136.47 0.02 1,899.82 - 2,036.31
Add: Tnterest income / other income 2741 098 157 74 * 18613
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items 4,755.61 10.00 (1,987.90) - 2,777.71
Less: Exceptional Items 447 56 - = = 44756
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,308.05 10.00 (1,987.90) - 2,330.15
Less; Tax - - 1,062 25 - 1,062 25
Profit / (Loss) after tax 4,308.05 10.00 (3,050.15) - 1,267.90

For the quarter ended 30 September 2024 (Unaudited)

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination
Segment revenue 6,133.48 367.96 - (122.18) 6,379.26
Segment result 3,820.35 8.81 (243.54) - 3,585.62
Less: Finance cost 103 05 0.04 1,201 95 = 1,305.04
Add: Interest income / other income 7.70 032 134.24 = 142.26
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items 3,725.00 9.09 (1,311.23) - 2,422.84
and tax
Less: Exceptional Items - - - = -
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,725.00 9.09 (1,311.23) = 2,422.84
Less: Tax - - 1,073.09 - 1,073.09
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,725.00 9.09 (2,384.34) - 1,349.75




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

For the half year ended 30 September 2025 (Unaudited)

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment revenue 14,761.67 538.84 - (177.79) 15,122.72

Segment result 9,548.84 13.63 (460.98) - 9,101.49

Less: Finance cost 244 55 0.07 3,820.19 = 4,064,81

Add: Tnterest income / other income 31.56 1,67 298.34 = 331.57

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items 9,335.85 15.23 (3,982.83) - 5,368.25

and tax

Less: Exceptional Items 44756 - - - 447.56

Profit / (loss) before tax 8,888.29 15.23 (3,982.83) - 4,920.69

Less: Tax - - 1,984 84 - 1,984.84

Profit / (Loss) after tax 8,888.29 15.23 (5,967.67) - 2,935.85

For the half year ended 30 September 2024 {Unaudited)

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment revenue 12,162 70 761.16 - (267.15) 12,656 71

Segment result 7,441,40 11.08 (395.60) - 7,056.88

Less: Finance cost 20006 0.09 2,367 88 - 2,568.03

Add: Interest income / other income 13.86 1.01 262.29 - 277.16

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items 7,255.20 12.01 (2,501.20) - 4,766.01

and tax

Less: Exceptional Items - - - - -

Profit / (loss) before tax 7,255.20 12.01 (2,501.20) - 4,766.01

Less: Tax - - 2,039.20 - 2,039.20

Profit / (Loss) after tax 7,255.20 12.01 (4,540.40) - 2,726.81

For the half year ended 30 September 2025 (Unaudited)

Other Information

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment assets 2,67,104 04 2,450.58 11,941 21 - 2.81,495.83

Segment liabilities 16,666.33 2,188.64 1,19,317.22 - 1.38,172.19

For the half year ended 30 September 2024 (Unaudited)

Other Information

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment assets 2,30,573.32 1,837.39 10,643.10 - 2,43,053.81

Segment liabilities 12,557.41 1.365.18 83.078.88 - 97,001.47

For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Audited)

Other Information

Particulars Commercial Real Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Estate Development elimination

Segment assets 2,56,440.12 1,707.69 13,455.47 = 2,71,603.28

Segment liabilities 14,919.22 1,174.14 1,07,404.42 - 1.23.497.78

Secondary segment information

Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India.

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have

been followed for segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly attributable to the segment
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’.

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/RETT/19-20/003

Cond

1 Consolidated Fi

Notes to Accounts
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

47 Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 September 2025
S, No. |Particulais Name of Entities Promeoters/Partners* Directors
Ms Dcepa Rath till 05 Februany 2025
Mr Sumit Bali w ¢ f. 16 January 2024 10 16 August
2024
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited Axis Bank Limited m: g:ﬁ:;;’d:;:;] we U3 May 2024
Mr Arun Mchtaw ¢ £03 May 2024
Mr Rahul Choudhary w ¢ f. 06 February 2025
Mr. Bipin Kumar Sarafw ¢ £, 11 April 2025
Mr.Ravi C Rahcja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Decpak Ghaisas re-appointed w c £ 20 November
2024
Mr Bobby Parikh rc-appointed w c . 17 December
Mr Rawvi C Rahcja 2024
2 Manager K Raheja Corp [mvestment Managers Private Limited M. Neel C. Raheja Ms. Manisha Girotra re-appointed w.c.F. 20
November 2024
Mr Manish Kejriwal
Mr Vinod Rohita
Mr Akshaykumar Chudasama w ¢ f. 06 March 2025
Mr Ramcsh Nair w e f. 30 April 2025
Mr Sandcep Mathrani w e . 04 August 2023
Me. Ravi €. Raligja -
Mr. Neel C Raheja
3 Anbce Constructions LLP M Clramdin L Rabepa
Mis Jvon € Raheja
Sponsors Me Sumath Raheg
Mr. Rtavi © Rahega =
Mr. Megl . Raheja
4 Cape Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L R{'\hl.‘fa
Mrs Jvol £ Raligja
5 Spansors Group Mr. Chandru L Raheja -
6 Mr. Ravi C Rahcja -
7 Mr. Neel € Raheia - =
8 Mrs Jvoti C Rahcja -
9 Ms. Sumati Rahcia - B _ - =
10 Ais JavaN. Rahcja w ¢ £ 06 March 2025 -
Mr Ravi € Rihep
. Mr. Neel © Rahuga
11 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L, Rilicja
Mrs Isati € Rabegs
Mr. Ravi €. Raheja -
. . Mr. Mee) C. Rahega
12 Casa Maria Propertics LLP Mr. Chandru L, Raleja
Mrs. Tvait . Rahipn
Mr. Ravi C. Raheis T
Mr. Neel © Raheja
13 Raghukool Estate Devel LLp

Mr. Chamdru L. Raheja
Mrs. hvoti € Rahiga




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/RETT/19-20/003

Cond i C. lidated Financial St

Noles tv Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

47 Related party disclosures

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 September 2025

SI. No. |Particulars Name of Entities

Promoters/Partners*

Directors

14 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

Mr Ravi C Rahcja
Mr Ncel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L, Rahcja
Mrs Jvoli C Rahcja

15 Sponsors Group K. Raheja Corp Private Limited

Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jvoli C Rahcja

Mrs Jvot1 C Rahcja Jomtly with
Mr Chandru L Rahcja

Mr Ravi C Rahgja Jowtly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jvoti C Rahcja

Mr Neel C Rahcja Jointly with
Mr. Chandvu L, Rahuja Jointly with
Mrs Jyvoti C Ralicja

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Mana Propertics LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

Mr. Neel C Raheja (shares Lransferred from)
'Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with Mr Ramesh
Valecha' to 'Mr, Neel C Rabhgja’ wef. 02
Scptember 2024 )

Ravi C Rahcja

Neel C Raheja

Ramesh Valccha

Ramesh Ranganthan till 02 December 2024
Sunil Hingorani

Mr_ Anand Chandan w ¢ f. 02 December 2024
Mr Manoj Jasrapuna w ¢ f. 02 December 2024

16 Sponsors Group Ivory Property Trust

Chandru L. Ralicja

Jyoti C. Rahcja

Ivory Propertics & Hotels Private Limited
Ravi C Raheja

Neel C Raheja

(all arc trusiees)

17 Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointhy with
Mrs Ivoti C Raheja

Mr. Ncel C Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Rahcja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoli C Rahcja

Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Jyoti C
Ralicja on behalf of the beneficiaries of Tvory
Property Trust till 24 April 2025 (Equity
Shares held by Trust have been distributed to
Mr. Ravi C. Rahjea and M. Neel C. Raheja
cqually)

Mr Ravi C. Raheja w e £ 24 Aprl 2025
Mr Neel C Rahcjaw c £ 24 April 2023

Ravi C Rahcja

Necl C Raheja

Ramesh Valecha

Ramcsh Ranganthan tll 02 December 2024

Mr. Anand Chandan w e f. 02 December 2024
Mi. Manoj Jasrapuria w ¢ f. 02 December 2024




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond
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Notes to Accounts
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47

A

Related party disclosures

Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 September 2025

SI. Neo.

Particulars

Name of Entities

Promaters/Partners®

Directors

Board of Directors/Governing
Board and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Manager (K
Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited)

Board of Directors

Mr. Decpak Ghaisas (Independent Director)

Ms Manisha Girotra (Indcpendent Dircctor)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Indepeadent Dircctor)

Mr Manish Kejriwal (Independent Director)

Mr. Sandeep Mathrani (Independent Director) wef. 04
August 2023

Mr Ravi C Rahcja (Non Exccutive Non Independent
Dircctor)

Mr, Neel C Raheja (Non Exccutive Non Independent
Director)

Mr. Vinod Rohira (Non Excculive Non Independent
Dircctor)

Mr. Akshaykumar Chudasama (Independent Dircctor) w e f.
06 March 2025

Mr Ramesh Nair, Chicf Exccutive Officer, also appointed as
Managing Dircctor effective 30 April 2023

Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Precti Cliheda (Chicf Financial Officer)

Entities controlled/jointly
controlled by Board of
Directors/Members of Governing
Board/Key Managerial Personnel
of the Manager

Brookficlds Agro & Development Private Limited

Grange Hotcls And Propertics Private Limited

Immense Properties Private Limited

Nove! Propertics Private Limited

Pact Real Estate Private Limited

Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Privatc Limitcd

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limitcd

Carin Propertics Private Limited

Astcrope Propertics Private Limited

Content Propertics Private Limited till 21 August, 2023
Convex Propertics Private Limited

Madhurawada Holdings Private Limited (w ¢ £03 April 2024)
Gencoval Stratcgic Scrvices Private Limited

Stemade Brotech Prvate Limited

Hariom Infrafacilitics Services Private Limited

K Raheja Comp Advisory Scrvices (Cyprus) Private Limiled
till 26 March 2025

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

Curzon Realty LLP w ¢ f. 06 March 2025

Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas & Co w e f. 06 March 2025

20

Close Member (Relatives) of
Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Manager

Mecra Rohira (Wife of Mr. Vinod Rohira)

* only when acting collectively
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

47 Related party disclosures (Continued)
C. Balances as at the period ended

Particulars As at As at As at

30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Other Receivable/ Advance to vendors
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited 0.56 326 6.23
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 0.14 951
Ivory Property Trust 554 6.06 -
Anbee Constructions LLP - 0.77
Axis Bank Limited 137 -
Advance to KMPs / Board of Directors
Preeti Chheda 000 028 =
Ramesh Nair 0.04 0.18 -
Trade Payables
M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates - - 0.07
Axis Bank Limited 050 047 -
K Ralheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited 11.11 11.15 11.93
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 026 124 -
Other Payables
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 0.81 0.48 -
Cape Trading LLP 1.13 1.16 -
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 025 025 -
Vinod N. Rohira - 0.01 -
Axis Bank Limited 3.90 - -
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited 0.18 - -
Anbee Constructions LLP 113 - -
Sitting Fees Payable
Neel C Raheja - = 004
Ravi C.Raligja - - 004
Advance from customers (Lease rent)
Axis Bank Limited - - 0.66
Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited 21.35 23.09 27.17
Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas & Co. 25.55 225 -
Security Deposit
Axis Bank Limited 65.51 6551 6551
Other Deposits
Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited 16.09 16.09 =
Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP 0.01 001 0.01
Cape Trading LLP 0.01 0.01 0.01
Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)
Axis Bank Limited 4270.12 4,029 59 2,586.25
Overdraft Balance
Axis Bank Limited 2,951.94 2,439.07 1,696.88
Fixed Deposit Balance
Axis Bank Limited 1,233.34 1,437 46 1,148.12
Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited 57.72 2326 11.80
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C.

Related party disclosures (Continued)
Balances as at the period ended

Particulars As at As at As at

30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024
Term Loan / Working capital facility
Axis Bank Limited 1,634.95 1,655.66 3,407.10
Trade Receivable
Meera Rohira - 0.04 0.01
Axis Bank Limited 577 11.81 -
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited - 546 -
Non-Fund Based Facilities
Axis Bank Limited 1,120.73 804 55 904,42
Counter Guarantee outstanding (Refer note 40(10)(b))
Ivory Properties Limited 205.29 20529 -
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 32245 32245 -
Borrowings
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited '’ = 209.18
Rental Support fees receivable
Surnati Ravi Raheja 19.61 58.83 -
Jaya Neel Raheja 19.61 58.83 -
Jyoti Chandru Raheja 9.80 29.41
Capital advances
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited - - 0.13

Note 1 Includes Ind AS adjustments

Note 2 Borrowings from K Raheja Corp Private Limited on account of acquistion of Sustain Properties Private Limited
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:TN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

49 (a) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2025 are the bulancing figures between the fgures in respect of the half year ended 30 September 2025 and the
figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2025, which are subjected to limited reviev:
(b) The figures for the quarter ended 30 Sipiesuber 2024 are the balancing figures between the figures in respect of the halt year ended 30 September 2024 and the
figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2074, whith were subjected to limited review.

Considering the weak micio market dynamics and no immediate deimand visibility aod also this being o non-gore asset, the Board of Directors of the Manager, at i
meeting held an 29 January 2024 hud approved injtstion of the process of zale of Mindspace Pocharam, comprising all picee and parcel ol lanel admeasuring
approximately 26 acres dlong with the struciures thercon located it Mindspage Pocharam, Telangana, This investment propeny i pan of “Real Estate” segmont of
the Group An artive program for sale 18 in place ‘On conclusion of the process, @ detailed proposal shall be plaved lefore the Bobrd for its consideration and
approval and subject to such other spprovals as may be required The asset, which was expected to e sold within 12 months, was classified bé o leld for sile and
presented separately in the bilance sheet The sale process has been delayed beyond 12 months. as the Manigement continiies 1o engage with potential buvers te
seeure i competitive ofterthat reflects the fair value of the asset. Due o weak micro-market conditions and linted demand, the divésiment has not been campleted in
the ufpresaid period The minagément i pursiing discussions with interested parties and remains fully committed t completing the sale and continues to aclively
pursye sultable opporunities

The Group estimated the fair value less cosis of disposal of this asset hased on the external fair valuation, which was less than the carrying valuc as on 30 September
2025 Accordingly, the asset was recognised at the lower of carrying value and fair value less cost of disposal resulting into impairment loss of Rs. 447.56 miilion,
whicl was recognised in the sttement of profit and loss for the quarter unil half year ended 30 September 2025 as an Exceptional Ttem

2

Axsets classified as held for sale are as follows

Asset class As at As at As at
30 September 2025 31 March 2025 30 September 2024 |
Investment property 1,387 37 1,387.37 1,387.37 |
Property, plant and equipment 355 355 355
Investment property under construction 44192 441 92 441 93
Deposits 8.90 890 8.90
- Less - Impairment 844 71) (397 15) (363 93)
Taotal 997.03 1,444 .48 1,477.70

5

Gigaplex had filed a petition under Sectian 6ifi read with Section $2 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, before the Hon’ble National
Campany Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (*MOLT'} socking confirmation for reduction of its share capital on 11 November 2024. The proposed reduction involved
wilizing se balance available in the securities premium account 10 offset the accumulated losses i e , the debit balance in the profit & loss account of Rs 2,226 35
million

The said petition was approved by the NCLT vide |14 order dated 20 March, 2025 (‘Order’). Subsequently, Gigaplex filed the certified true copy of the Order with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai FROC' and the ROC Kas registered the form of minutes and issued the cetificale of registration of Order on 22 April 2025
Accordingly, all substantial eondicions far the reduction of shme capital were completed on 22 April 2025 Therefore, the impact of the reduction of share capital is
accounted for and given effect in the books of account of Gigaplex for the period ended June 202>

52A During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group acquired certain units admeasurinyt app 0.7% msf at Mindspoce Madhapur, Hyderabiad along with the undivided
Jand for a consideration of Rs 2,959 15 miliion (including uansactiou cost thereon). Thc consideration seated to individisally idetifinhle assets aeninred on
the basis of theit relative fair values as determined by an independent valuer al the date of purchase A ardingly. the land was recorded at Rs. 1,672 44 milliun,
building was recorded a1 Rs 1,284 66 million and plant and machinery was recorded at Rs 2 05 million

52B During the quarter ended 30 June 2025, MBPPL acquired a unit in a property located at Yarwada, Pune on 28 May 2025 The fair value as determined by an
independent valuer at the date of purchase amounted to Rs. 82 million

52C Sundew has received show eause notice on 13 May 2025 from the GST authority pursuant to GST Audit conducted for the period 2018-19 to 2021-22 for not
charging GST on the recovery of wilities beng water and DG back-up power provided to tenants amounting to Rs. 2.8 million. The management has filed its detailed
reply to the show cause notice an 30 June 2025, Currently the same 15 under adjudication

52D Hurizunview has received show calsse natice on 02 April 2025 from the GST authority pursuant to DGGT investigation conducted for the period 2020-21 to 2021-22
for not charging GST on the recuvery of utilities being electricity, water und DG back-up power provided to temants amounting to Rs. 1.6 million The management
hats filed its detniled reply to the shuw cause notice on 12 May 2025 Currently the same is under adjudication

53 Subsequent to the period ended 30 September 2025, K Raheja 1T Park (Hyderabad) Limited has repaid outstanding secured loans of Rs 2,379 21 million to Union
Bank of India

54 Previous period / year figures are regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current period / year classification / disclosure
55 0,00 represents value less than Rs 0.005 million

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Curp Investinent Managers Private Liwited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

N fon o el

Nuir Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
and Managing Director

DIN: 09282712

Place: Mumbai
Date : 05 November 2025

Place Mumbai
Date 05 November 2025
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